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SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 220)

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman,

KY1-1104,

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE

No. 131, Linhong Road

Shanghai Honggiao Linkong Economic Zone
Changning District

Shanghai

China

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 703A, 7/F., Golden Centre

188 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS

www.uni-president.com.cn

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony

Mr. Lo Peter

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Fung Kwan Ho (appointed with effect from 1 January 2019)

BEREES AUDIT COMMITTEE
SBlEEE (FE) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairman)
PREEfE LA Mr. Chen Sun-Te
PRERFEE Mr. Chen Johnny
B EE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming
KaErE Mr. Lo Peter
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Financial Summary

XERE
SUMMARY OF RESULTS
BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ARBTR ARBTRT AREBETT AREFTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Z&E7)
(Restated)
(P7E)
(Note)
Wz Revenue 21,772,240 20,821,949 20,985,532 22,101,871 22,487,671
EF Gross profit 7,288,599 6,576,938 7,227,800 8,140,733 7,308,387
B PT1S B A& Profit before income tax 1,539,774 1,276,824 1,067,972 1,170,761 414,678
FSBMA% Income tax expense (510,070) (398,608) (460,643) (336,256) (129,141)
FEHEF Profit for the year 1,029,704 878,216 607,329 834,505 285,537
NN Profit attributable to equity
B AEGER holders of the Company 1,029,704 878,216 607,329 834,505 285,537
g Dividends 1,029,704 614,751 121,466 166,901 57,107
AR¥S ARES ARES ARES ARES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
BRERAF Basic earnings per share 23.84 20.33 14.06 19.32 7.18
M 5T - Note:

AEBECR -_Z- ) N\FEENEBUHRELEDZE  The Group adopted HKFRS 15 in 2018. Comparatives for year ended 31

155 - HE_T—+F+-A=1+—HIEFEME  December 2017 have been restated accordingly. The financial result prior to
SHTFTEMHEEYN S —cFURNPEELE 2017 have not been restated.
L BT o
®12A831H
As at 31 December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ARETR ARBTT ARBTLT ARETIT ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE Total assets 21,732,558 20,036,552 20,705,427 21,606,419 21,264,409
HwaE Total liabilities 8,510,251 7,221,075 8,665,316 10,004,016 10,427,671
e ] Total equity 13,222,307 12,815,477 12,040,111 11,602,403 10,836,738
BeMEEEEY  Cashand cash equivalents 1,563,945 2,356,350 2,076,839 1,473,317 1,804,022
mE (BE)F5E Net current (Liabilities) (439,236) (475,101)  (1,868,005) (1,337,930 (632,403)
4 #i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2018 F#§



2018 i — b EFEERERAA ([ARQ
AEREMBAR (KRB IAEE] K [#&
MDERHHEHE AFKEIHELEE
SBFIERECEINES BITRER
Bl BREBETRE FEELLBERAR
—EAEIRE] - [REIBIRK]N=5
3

BEEKFIERIES BB BRNERE
BB FESR HEEEA R
Em HMRkGE GREHEENEL R
EHEREAERRERNNE AEEHT
HEEHEEARNR R LB ZENL
REEMmIATMEE T ERFER - 20185 IEfEH
EBZHELARIRERR Wi ZERK
BRANEE BATEXRXRNSEESR
CEMH ARBABELSBERERT 212
REREFHFAREEREARK  WEA
EVEBR-SPHEE URRIFATE LR
R #8 3R X 1E & $a 8 (Bottle Can)— RJIE M
At ARE-—EBNARSHEEREE
B ATAT

REBE2018F WK AFEILRAL.6%  Fifk
FUEBR17.2%  EXBEMFEENERE
EmRlaigi BN HESHNER [5
EABEBERE EASEARKS0T
MAEEER G RN EEMGE IR
SEREES  [H—MES] HEFEXEE
BEEEE BEDFREZE KBRIZHKH (5
— KRR [ GF—BE ]| FEBHTS R
SIFRHEE TERERE-

In 2018, Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together as the “Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our”
or “us”) adhered to its corporate vision of “Honesty and Diligence;
Innovation and Excellence (B #)i& - BI¥TK#E) 7, as well
as upholding the principle of “Honest Operation ( IE &AL &) "
and “Healthy Practice (#2EE#2{E) ", for the purpose of steady
development, ongoing optimization and evolving into an enterprise
boasting its “Integrity (& #%) ", “Brand (& K2) " and “Taste (&

BR) .

With the improvement of economic growth, innovation-driven
development accelerated the change of the times, new industries,
new business models and new technologies, new products, new
services, etc., impacting the lives of consumers. Accompanied
by consumption upgrade and changes in lifestyle, the Group
pays attention to the consumers’ demand for quality life, and
develops various new products to meet such demand. In 2018,
in accordance with the trend of consumption, self-heating hotpot
and meals as well as various snack foods were launched, which
improved the convenience and variety of enjoying gourmet. For
our beverages business, refrigerated tea drinks and juice were
launched, which are kept refrigerated from production to delivery for
better and fresher taste. We also entered into the botanical protein-
soy milk business, and planned the launch of the convenient and
environmental-friendly ultra-modern aluminum can (Bottle Can)
product series. The Group has been striving to continue to move
forward for better consumer satisfaction.

The Group’s revenue and profits after tax for 2018 increased by
4.6% and 17.2% respectively as compared with those of last year,
thus achieving our goals of “growth of annual profit exceeding that
of revenue” and “enhanced profitability”. The revenue of “Soup
Daren (/53 A ) ” recorded steady growth and was able to uplift
the attributable share of lifestyle noodles revenue priced at RMB5.0,
thereby successfully refining the product mix and strengthening
FEEs) "
continued being the favourite product among customers, and

our profitability. Meanwhile, “Uni Assam Milk Tea (% —

ranked the top in the category of milk tea products. Classic tea
JKALZE) 7 and “Uni Green Tea
(8 —#%25) " kept on developing the market to attract young

drinks, including “Uni Ice Tea (45—

customers so as to establish them as evergreen brand names in
the market.
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DIVIDENDS

Having accounted for the Group’s overall performance, surplus,
financial condition, capital expenditures, etc. in 2018, the board of
directors (the “Board”) will propose to declare a final cash dividend
of RMB23.84 cents per share (amounting to a total dividend of
RMB1,029.7 million) for the year ended 31 December 2018 at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PROSPECT

The economy of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
is expected to grow steadily in 2019. The Group will proceed
with focused operations and brand building, and develop new
products to enhance customers’ convenience and satisfaction,
aiming at optimizing our operation results and striving to maximize
Shareholders’ interests.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our Group’s steady growth is credited to every party’s support
and dedication. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers, business partners,
financial institutions and shareholders for their unparallelled support,
especially for all our colleagues’ efforts and contributions in the past
year.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

22 March 2019
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The GDP of the PRC increased by 6.6% in 2018 as compared to
last year, which was lower than the growth rate of the previous year
by 0.2 percentage point. The year on year growth of the first three
quarters of 2018 were 6.8%, 6.7% and 6.5% respectively, while
the rate of 6.4% recorded for the fourth quarter of 2018 was the
lowest. Though the quarterly growth rate was trending down with
the first quarter delivering the highest one and the fourth recording
the lowest, it was still about 6.5% which was the forecasted
annual economic growth target of the PRC government. The
national economy continued to develop steadily, and the industry
also experienced structural adjustment and transformation, thus
enabling the upgrading of the sector as well as the optimization of
development quality.

In 2018, the domestic consumption in the PRC maintained an
upward trend. However, disputes on international trade arising from
protectionism were yet to be settled through negotiations, thereby
clouding the general economic landscape with uncertainties and
financial risks. Business operations were inevitably subject to
negative impact of these concerns.

In respect of the food and beverages industry, given the soaring
prices of raw materials seen in 2017, the industry took this
opportunity to adjust the price quoted in sales channels. The
market started to slow down in the third quarter of 2018 when
the market demand diminished, thus lowering the growth rate of
our revenue. In recent years, it has been more difficult to predict
and understand the preference and taste of customers. The
instant noodles market even went separate ways in 2018, which
was characterised by the trend towards low-end and high-end
products. Customer groups were further differentiated accordingly.
With regard to beverages, classic products became the top
pick of customers again. In order to capitalize on new business
opportunities, industry players made every endeavour to introduce
new products and promote new categories to gain recognition
from customers. Besides, they are also well prepared for the ever
changing trend by making contingency plans in place. The Group
proceeded with focused operations and cherished its brand value,
and also attached top priority to the enhancement of customer
satisfaction. On the other hand, the Group continued to seek for
innovation and improvement, and fulfill the needs of customers by
developing popular products desired by customers.

Annual Report 2018 £ #§
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, the Group proceeded with focused operations and brand
building and committed to the management of product freshness
so as to uphold the principle of “Healthy Practice (2 F##{E) ” and
stable operation. The Group recorded a revenue of RMB21,772.2
million in 2018, representing an increase of 4.6% as compared with
the corresponding period last year. Information about the Group’s
core businesses are as follows:

Food Business

The Group continues to research and innovate its instant noodles.
With the advancement of the times and changes in consumer
lifestyles, we develop self-heating foods, frozen fresh noodles and
snacks, so that consumers can enjoy convenience and delicacy in
various occasions.

Instant Noodles Business

Instant noodles business of the Group continued to focus on
operation and improvement of product mix. Revenue in 2018
was RMB8,425.1 million, representing an increase of 5.7% over
the same period of last year. Our mid and high end brand “Soup
Daren (/53 A )" continued to be well-received by the market,
becoming the growth engine of our instant noodles business and
driving the increase of profitability. Brands with various appeals
and prices were targeted to various consumers, enabling precise
investment of marketing resources while building brand values to
meet consumers’ needs.

Our key product “Uni-President
Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and
Beef Flavoured Noodles (£ —
EZEBEXFAM)” continued
to be the leader of the product
category. With “Establishment
for 15 years (HBI+HBEF) "
as marketing theme in 2018, the
“Establishment for 15 years, Scan
QR Code & Win Gold (F &I+ &
campaign was launched and continued

Eﬁin‘f'@#

-1

BAf RFiEReE)"
to strengthen the brand value and market leadership. Extensive
promotion was achieved though the web show “Scream Screen
(AP #%BE)” and riding on the 2018 World Cup craze, our

— e EhEER B R 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FolfEAKEE: BREEEEE [  video “Sour Moments of Goalkeepers (P8 B 3&RE %) ” created

] BRE B AT A SBMKEER  ahuge buzz among football fans while our sponsored short video

e LB FEEHESAFE O [4—ZEEESZ  “E Di Shen (/&%) ”, which was close to the focus of attention

SM] ERXEB AR of customers, gained exposure through the web media. With the
young generation drawn to try out “Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled
Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles (4 — 1B A4 A% ) 7,
our customers base was broadened.

AEE [BI5] REE T 7o Since the launch of “Vine Pepper Beef Noodles (  #
R FIEMOR - HHE [HER 4 4-PI%E) " by our “Teng Jiao (B#E) " brand focusing on
P4 ETRAR AB innovating and developing the flavor of “vine pepper ( B
KB RFB ORI - 554 #1) ", the noodles brought electrifying taste stimulation to
HEEBSMRERER
WO OREE DR |
2018 F BAESEHMM & | F)
SHE LLEBARDE [
m@%ﬁﬁ%i%%%%r
RE FEVKBHERELTA
B ESRPRERESTT @

consumers with its fresh aroma and unique numbing taste,
and has been well-received by the market. We focused on
. if key cities and advanced gradually in 2018. In the first half
ﬂ'@ﬂmﬂﬂ-’ﬁ of the year, we sponsored the Tenth Session of National
j ¢ | College Students Advertising Art Competition, inspiring the
creativity of college students and quickly increasing brand

awareness among them. In the second half of the year,

MRME: THEMZFE we collaborated with “Love and Producer (4B & {EA ) 7,
ZHET MR [HEEEAIEMAIE.  the popular web game among young women. Through packaging
EHpRMEHESEYS Y77 [REFEE-  and voice interaction etc., the “Love Teng Jiao with electric shock
W5 L2RE | RS RN FERE 15 mhE  (FEEE TS5 E2KE) " campaign actively embraced the young
DR MRS — PR - generation, further improving brand reputation and awareness.

['53E A 2018F Wy 25 4 48
REEMNEEE  REZL
BaRETEHEEE TR
mm—HREI gk
2018@%&7&19&%55%% [7T
RE = EDJ JZE=7 = é,ﬁé it
[TTR] 90 RI5EEF
IR WalBEKEZE
b [T/ B0 m
JRBE - 2018 FFNEE
NeEANRAFMERESR
BEREERBREAH
(23 55 BX xTHR]

The “Soup Daren (% # A)” continued to maintain
double-digit growth in 2018, and the core spirit of the
brand adhered to bringing the experience of “Bottoms-
up for the Genki Soup (TTE® 5 —MAEK)”
the consumers. The “Genki Music Festival (Eﬁ“ﬁa"
£1) " was held in major cities in 2018, in which music
was used to awaken the original spirit of the “Genki
(JLR) ”. The festival was well-received, igniting viral
response over the Internet and strengthening our core
brand value. In the fourth quarter of 2018, Mr. Turbo
Liu (2I248) , actor of the new generation, acted as
the spokesperson of “Soup Daren (5 A) .
“focused, youth, sunshine and healthy (Z;¥ 5 %\

mEREFEA My £ L m— (25 . 57 47) ” image perfectly match with the qualities
BHIEERE BREBLER of “Soup Daren”. The heavy exposure over quality
HEMTEHEETEaTEEERY BEE  traditional media and emerging media platforms garnered positive
BOE BAEEE F—Eg- response, raising the brand awareness to the next level.

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 9
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In order to bring street delicacy of urban local flavor to the
consumers, “Sour and spicy pig intestine noodles ( B4 % A 5 /& Bk
#9348 ) ” was launched by “Urban Bistro (#&/\¢8) ” in 2018. With
meticulous research and development, the taste of pig intestine is
restored to the utmost. The sour and strong soup is served with
the double texture of bean vermicelli and noodles. Since the trial
sale in June, its special flavor and texture arouse hot discussion
and widespread positive comments on the
internet, leading to it becoming a hot item on
e-commerce channels.

As the representative of the high-end lifestyle
brand of the Group,‘Imperial Big Meal (i
B KEZ )" regards inheriting Chinese cuisine
as its mission. Its exquisite soup is served
with fresh meat and original flavorings sealed
in a package, striving to be the best value
for money and most uncompromising noodles for the customers.
Focusing on “Taiwan Braised Beef and Beef Tendon Noodles ( &
NEHERALFAZE) " in 2018, the marketing strategy of “Hitting
the market with beef (BT TIU) " was adopted to engage
with customers. We will continue to develop new flavors to satisfy
consumers’ pursuit of raw ingredients and will expand sales
channels as well as open up markets of premium noodles.

Other Food

The Group entered the market of self-heating food in 2018,
enabling customers to enjoy hot food anytime and anywhere they
want. After the debut of the classic spicy flavor of “Chongging Old
Hotpot (EBEE A #8) ” of “Lazy Time (ZEE ), the new flavor
of “Tom Yum (ZH £ ) " was launched. With refreshing lemon
and the bitter spiciness of facing heaven pepper as its base, added
with freshly squeezed low-temperature concentrated coconut milk
and a rich selection of classic ingredients, it brings consumers
with the spicy and sour flavor of the Thai soup. Our
innovative self-heating “Premium Meal (F/)Njt) "
takes only 15 minutes and cold water without the use
~ of fire and electricity to produce as real “wok hei ( #i
&) " and restore it to the taste of hot meal cooked in
the kitchen. It has refreshed consumers’ knowledge
of self-heating meals since its launch and will continue
. to market with the theme of “Premium Meal on the
oy go (HFIFESN B/ NkE) ", focusing on in-depth
engagement with consumers on the go.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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“Q-Fresh (Q/)N) " continues to target at the market of frozen
fresh noodles, bringing a more convenient new choice for the home
setting. “Little Raccoon Pea Crisp (/|NZERHZ M) ” entered the
market of snacks with a unique cartoon image as its brand features.
Through low-temperature non-frying extrusion production technology,
pea is made crunchy with its rich aroma preserved, bringing
consumers the “cutie-crunchy” leisure shack and feeling
relaxed, refreshed and regaled. lts distribution was first limited
to specific sale outlets and would gradually expand as we gain
experience.

We will continue to focus on innovation to advance with the
" times and consumers’ taste as well as to enrich our products
to meet consumers’ expectation of better quality of life.

Beverages Business

Beverages business of the Group has always adhered to the
strategy of focusing on operation and brand building. We continue
to keep our products fresh and strive to bring customers a better
taste experience in 2018. Due to economic growth and the change
in lifestyle, our beverages business was developed in the direction
of diversification and refinement. As a result, beverages kept
refrigerated and fresh from production to delivery were launched,
including iced tea, fruit juice and “Honest Bean (&S ) ” soy milk
and they were well-received by the market since launching in 2018.
We have also launched our premium Bottle Can products in early
2019 after years of research and will spare no efforts to meet the
demands of customers as well as innovate and move forward with
the times.

The annual income of our beverages business amounted to
RMB12,619.4 million, representing an year-on-year growth of 3.6%
in 2018. The business performance of our major beverages are as
follows:

Tea Drinks

Revenue of tea drinks in 2018 amounted to RMB5,943.7 million,
representing a growth of 2.0% compared with the same period last
year. The increase was mainly driven by the sales of “Uni Ice Tea
(B —VKALZL) " and “Uni Green Tea (48— 47 %%) 7.

#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] /]
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Through the brand attitude of “Stay Young for Ever or
Fight for it (B&MEGMR - TR EE) " in 2018, “Uni
Ice Tea (4 — /KALZL) " brightened the unlimited and
passionate spirit of youth. In terms of communication,
we continued to stay close to current trends and
youth culture such as street dance battle and gaming
challenge. Through media communication, E-sports
« challenge, battle by scanning bottle body using
L augmented reality technology (Augmented Reality) and
embedded props of e-sports etc., the youth are drawn
l 0 engage and show their unlimited and passionate
spirit. Combining scenes of youth enjoying our drinks
and cross-industry cooperation with web famous snacks
brands, the joint promotion using physical and virtual media drawn
more attention and purchase.

“Uni Green Tea (#i—#k%%) " as a brand
to promote “Close to Nature” continued
the green-themed activities of “Close to
Nature, Plant Trees with Real Actions (%}
EER T84 EB) " in 2018. Media
platforms which closely matched with
young consumers was chosen for in-depth
B¥1 cooperation to launch the tree-planting
i : Sl activity in a down-to-earth way. Combining

e e e— o \/0Uth approach of celebrity spokesperson

and live online shopping, the green and
healthy approach to life of the brand was highlighted.

“Classmate Xiaoming (/& £ ) ” continued the efforts of pushing
results of the brand and brand loyalty in 2018. With the theme of
“Scattering Dog Food in the Dog Year (£ #{4&) " in the year
of the Dog, the humorous culture of “Classmate Xiaoming (/N
[F1£) " was innovatively launched. Joint promotion with the web
variety show “Choose Big Star (EJf&ARBHZ) " in the sales high
season spread the noise for the brand through fans economy. In
addition, we continued to support football education in secondary
schools with the “Rising Star-Happy Football & Healthy Growth (&
Bz E2ReRs@EFEREK)" campus carnivals as our continued
efforts to support sports development for the youth in China and
build brand value.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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ﬂ” market of fresh and healthy refrigerated tea for the health

Innovatively applying the cold extraction of tea leaves,
“Refreshing Tea (4% o B ) " was targeted at the high-end

and quality-conscious consumers. Since its launch in May
2018, operation was focused on five key cities and was
well-received with positive feedback. With the phenomenon
of “Youth with multiple careers (RFLE )" as a starting
point, we encourage our young customers to actively and boldly
try the multiple lifestyle by communicating the values of “Bringing
something fresh to life (454 )& R EFTEERY) 7 of the brand in
August 2018.

The annual theme of “Stay Young for
Ever or Fight for it (F&ERR * Tk
BEBL) " of our “Uni Ice Tea (#— ik
4I1%%) " continued in 2019. Multiple-
channels communication was carried
out with the popular games “King Pro
League (KPL) (EESBBIREE)". |
The green action of “Experience the
Nature (F¥ B )" of “Uni Green
Tea (£ —#%Z%) " continued, creating
interesting and valuable contents
to communicate with customers.
“Classmate Xiaoming (/N2 & £)”
has cooperated with the British Museum to develop a series of cultural
and creative crossover products and related auxiliary products for
“Classmate Xiaoming (/NE F£2) ", which has created creative and
interesting contents for the product, as well as new attractions for
the brand. We will continue to work on brand building and product
competitiveness of “Refreshing Tea (4 e B %) ", providing customers
with fresh and quality refrigerated drinks. In response to changes in
consumer trends, we will launch new tea drinks to meet the needs of
consumers for various fields and consumption settings.

Juice Drinks

The juice drinks business of the Group recorded a revenue of
RMB1,723.4 million in 2018. In line with the freshness management
and continuous optimization of product mix, we focused on the
three main products which are “Haizhiyan (/&2 =) ”, “More
Orange Juice (E£# %) ” and “Crystal Sugar Pear Drink (/k#ESE
%1) ", increased the proportion of small size package, improved
product mix and effectively increased gross profit margin. In view
of the increase in consumption power and demand for health,
refrigerated juice drinks “Fruit Trio (5222 ) ” and 100% vegetables
juice “Vitality Awakening (7T & &)~ were developed, further
improving strategic layout of the brand.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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1119 Focusing on the new generation of consumers,

_.N) \

“Uni More
Orange Juice (#—££#% ) ” continued to rejuvenate the brand
and use poetry as a medium to convey the brand proposition
of “Beauty” to consumers. The “Beauty Poetry Society (JZ 5% &5
1) " campaign jointly launched with network platforms popular
among the youth, enhanced interaction with consumers while
the “Love singing, More poems, More beautiful ( DFE KIS %
F%IZ %) " series of activities drew the brand closer to young
consumers. At the same time, our product specifications were
extended to meet the needs in various occasions, and 315ml of
canned “More Orange Juice” was launched to open the market
of catering and banquet as well as gift box.

Focused on the core appeal of “Pear Juice Moistures your Mouth
and Heart (EZLEJTH) ", “Crystal Sugar Pear Drink (£t — k1
EF) " delivered an authentic juicy drinks made of crystal sugar
and pear to the customers. With the new package can 245ml|
size, we actively targeted to expand into the hot drinks market
and continued to promote the brand image of the moisturizing and
hearts-warming pear drink with rich texture.

“Haizhiyan (&2 5 ) ", with its focus on lemon flavor, continued
the “Take a Refreshing Walk to the Sea (B EEKN/E)”
campaign and hosted urban sports events for several consecutive
years, attracting many contestants. Sharing on online media by
netizens was leveraged to maximize promotion effect, so that
the experience of “Instant Refreshing (B#fE/E%&) " of Haizhiyan
entered the hearts of the customers and brand assets are built.

Juice businesses completed the “1+1” strategic planning
of the refrigerated category in 2018, namely “innovatively
creating a sub-category” and “entering the healthy food
category” to meet the trend of consumption demand for
personality, style and health. “Fruit Trio” juice drinks was
launched in May 2018, creating the wonderful experience
of the triple taste of juice, pulp and fibre jelly (£t 2
A4 E %) and was widely approved by the market.
Strategic cooperation with the headphone brand FIIL of
the famous musician Wang Feng (7T &) strengthened
the music attributes and sensibilities of the brand. The

Q
\
21-:"

i mm 100% vegetable juice “Vitality Awakening (TR EE2)

a cup was launched in October 2018, being the first in the
beverages category. With the appeal of “delicious”, “healthy” and
“fresh”, the drink offers an integrated solution for the convenience
of contemporary urban people to supplement nutrition of fruits and
vegetables with delicious taste.
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In 2019, our juice business will adhere to the business strategy of
value marketing, continue brand building and product improvement,
enter consumers’ lives on different temperature levels and drinking
occasions, complement the communication and interaction
methods that are favoured by our new generation of consumers,
actively expand the market and advance on the road to healthy and
quality growth in a steady pace.

Milk Tea

As a leader in the milk tea category, “Assam (P EH) ” Mik Tea

of the Group adhered to freshness management of products and

enhancement of consumers’ drinking experience. In 2018, our

revenue increased by 13.6% compared with the same period last
' year and operated on the right track.

F[fE#) " adhered to
the core values of “Smooth and Good Mood ( I&
B 70 E) " and continued to create different
“Good Mood (&2 18) " experiences for
consumers by comprehensive interpretations of
various scenarios of “Good Mood”, building brand
awareness and favorability. In 2018, “Assam (]
&) ” and “Good Mood (#f 03 1E)” was softly
embedded in voice browsing of Baidu map with the “Good Mood
All the Way (—J& 70\ F) " spokesperson Guo Caijie ($F52) |
expanding the brand to the scenario of enjoying the drink while
travelling. In the “Non-stop Bumping Deliciousness with Happy
Mood (EWKRE = Z BT 0 15) " event, the novelty collision
of different ingredients created more good mood experiences.
Taking the “ACGN (Animation, Comics, Games, Novels) Dance
(%) " loved by the youth as starting point, to bring them good
mood that exclusively for summer is created. Cooperated with
Discovery, documentaries were taken as starting point to deliver
our brand contents and values, offering immersive and interactive
experience in a journey with technology and fun to the customers in

»

“exploration of good mood (FERRF L) "

With continued focus on the hot drinks season in 2018, “Assam
Small Milk Tea (PFAIFEM /NI ) ” satisfied the market demand for
hot drinks in winter. In terms of product strength, with continued
improvement and upgrade, the rich and luxury drink meet the
growing demands of consumers. In terms of marketing, tied-in
with iSharing of Taiwan created the image of “iSharing True Love
(iSharingE E BB ) " in winter with the theme of “Milan”. “Uni Milk

Annual Report 2018 £ #§
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Tea (#—1%%) ” unveiled a new and rejuvenated packaging
with the popular chocolate bear in 2018. Settings of start of
school year, examination and graduation at school campus
in key cities were integrated into marketing targeted at
student customers.

In 2019, our milk tea business will continue to
improve freshness management of products, with the
communication focus on core brand appeals and building
of brand assets. Through the cooperation with Discovery,
“Uni Assam Milk Tea (#t—PFiE# ) " continued to create
“Exploration of Good Mood (& &2 1E)” and deliver
the brand value of “Smooth and Good Mood (JIE/& &7 0
1) ", With “Mouthful of Malt ($Z£8K) " and “GO MY WAY” as
the main axis of communication of the year, “Uni Milk Tea ( &1 — )
#%) 7 continued to shape the selling point of “Malt (%) ”. Through
the young and personalized packaging of “Mouthful of Malt ( #9%
BK) " and the creative video for marketing, the smoothness of our
milk tea, the bright, candid and fun spirit of youth as well as positive
attitude to life and brand spirit were conveyed.

Aqua More

The brand proposition of “Turning Boredom into Fun (GB{REI=
IX) ", i.e. turning water-drinking into fun, of “Aqua More (7K
%) " with the refreshing flavor of lactobacillus in fun packaging,
continued in 2018. Leveraged on the famous lovely cartoon
character of Tuzki, the brand image of “Not Boring but Interesting
(TZ8 A#)" was created, bringing a brand new interesting
experience to consumers. Targeted to parents and children in core
cities, steady operation of business was achieved.

Others
Coffee

2018 was a competitive year for the coffee market, with increased
investment in display stores and delivery services by “brew-as-
order” industry players. For the instant coffee market, new products
were launched, challenging new prices and testing new tastes.
With competition fiercer than ever, it brought both opportunities and
challenges to each coffee manufacturer.

#F—EFPEER AR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Our “AHa Iced Coffee (FERE/KMIBE) ” continued the
communication theme of “Chat Happily (faiR#Ix) ”
and focusing on the development of Coffee business
within selected key regions in 2018. Tied in with the hit
web cartoon series “Drama Queen Dormitory (B HETE
%) we initiated the event of “The more we chat, the
better connection we build” as well as the integrated
communication plan of “Warm Chat about Astrology ( £
FERZED)  was launched during winter with campaign-
wised popular celebrity “Uncle Tong Dao ( [El3& A#) " to join with our
“AHa Happy Chatting Coffee Pop-up Store ( F R a5 B0 BEE )
event, we successfully and effectively reached our core target audience.

Bottled Water

With the growing demands of consumers and
increased interest in drinking-water, the natural
mineral water category continued to expand.
We continued to focus on the high-end natural
mineral water brand “ALKAQUA (£35)” in
2018, achieving an annual increase of 12.9% in
revenue compared with same period of last year.

20184 ' [ALKAQUAE 5 | R 2 Mg LR
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The brand proposition of “Colorful and outstanding natural mineral
water (—Jf i EBERATERIK) " of “ALKAQUA (B #) ", launched
in 2018, represents its outstanding external appearance and water
quality. Mr. Wang Kai ( £8l) , the brand spokesperson, starred in
the new stylish commercial which incorporated the unique product
benefits of “water source from Changbai Mountain (£ A1) ” and
“contents of HzSiOs exceeding 50mg/L (1R & & AH50 mg/
L)”. At the same time, we joined hands with PANTONE, international
expert in colors, to launch the colorful bottle of “ALKAQUA (&
# )" with exclusive color names and stories. Our limited edition
products jointly launched with fashion brand i.t became must-have
items of fashion hipsters. We sponsored the hip activity “Electric
Runs (EUFE ) " in key markets and incorporated elements of
colors, electronic dance music, sports and drinking water, calling
consumers to “run with colors (812 H @) " together. The Wang
Kai Fans Meeting (£l R EE) innovatively tried on the theme of
art exhibition and collected outstanding works from consumers for
display, gaining enthusiastic participation from consumers and further
building the brand assets. In terms of products, the new 1.5 L family
size was launched in 2018, expanding the occasions for enjoying the
drink and catering the needs for cooking and tea and coffee brewing.

#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 7
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We will continue with the brand proposition of “Colorful and
outstanding natural mineral water ( — i BERKAERIK) " of
“ALKAQUA (E ) " in 2019 and further explore the needs of the
“new generation” and “new middle class” consumer base. The
rational appeal of “contents of H2SiOs exceeding 50 mg/L” and
emotional resonance of “Born to be colorful and outstanding ( X4
H ) ” of the product will be communicated in our commitment to
provide consumers with better natural mineral water choices and a
more “colorful and outstanding” consumer experience.

We launched the “Honest Bean (&S )" soy milk
products and entered the botanical protein market in
June 2018. With the appeal of “nutrition with light burden
(EE®EAEE) ", we created the settings for consuming
the product as breakfast drink and gifts and first focused
on key markets. In terms of marketing communication,
focus on the “Breakfast (%) ”. Building up nutrition
breakfast tips with nutritionists, yoga masters, fitness
instructors etc. created market awareness of “I am honest beans,
nutrition with light burden (B2 EZ - £ &K A E) .

Bottle Can Drinks

With the upgrading of quality of life and the growing concern for
health, green living and the pursuit of taste, a new series of Bottle
Can products was launched in January 2019 to explore the high-
end beverages market. For our “Manya (£ #) ” specialty coffee,
100% Ethiopian fine coffee beans, Irgachefe, was selected, cold
dripped and extracted in 12 hours with 0-5T water, completely
preserving the unique natural fruity aroma of the coffee beans
and resonating with consumers with “Manya Life Aesthetics”.
For our “Chuan Qi ({Z34])) " tea, for which famous
national-level tea is selected and the modern and
innovative technique of “cold extraction” is used to
extract the mellow aroma of Melan (2§ ), delivering
| the concept of “traditional tea with a new life (%
l/ #x)

of black tea of Quinta de San Pedro Alejandrino with

For our “allegre” milk tea, limited quantities

rosy aroma is selected and mixed with premium

imported milk, delivering a silky and pure taste. With the

ﬁ. communication theme of “Encounter allegre, Indulge

ﬁ true self (i Rallegre" SEE E FK )", we set a new
standard of premium ready-to-drink milk tea.

#F—EFPEER AR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our Research and Development (“R&D”) Centre strives to maintain
its edge in innovative technologies and develop products loved by
consumers. In 2018, we established the mechanism for reviewing
new products proposals and inventory of new products ideas.
We also optimized model for external testing, established core
technology proposals and review mechanism. As of December
2018, our R&D Center had authorized patents of 59 items and 56
patents were in application. We continued to create barrier for our
superior technologies and reinforce our intellectual property rights.

In 2018, we continued to innovate and revitalize our existing main
products. Built on the core technology of our “Soup Daren (/5=
A7, we extend the product line to meet the needs of potential
consumers and launch the new flavor of “fish soup with tofu ( & /&
£5)”. The grease anti-oxidation technology of our “Assam ( FiJ i
1) ” original milk tea was improved to enhance its flavor, delivering
a smoother and better taste.

Our innovation in new products focuses on the enhancement of
product value in 2018, breaking away from traditional food and
beverages categories and traditional packaging. Efforts were
devoted to new products and new areas of future consumption
trends, with the following results:

Our self-heating “Premium Meal (F/)\kt) " offers a convenient
and delicious option for consumers, from core raw materials used,
“anti-scalding (F73%) ” and “anti-flood (B #t32) ” design of its
containers, to the space allocation of rice and dishes as well as the
innovative uniform heating by “dual airway ($#84,) ”. By controlling
the procedure, time, fragrance, craftsmanship and temperature,
the essence of Chinese cuisine is genuinely restored with 12-

15 minutes of self-heating. Three flavors have been launched in
2018, namely “stewed beef brisket with potato (+ S #E4fE) 7,
“simmered pork with small mushroom (/NEZEEEA) " and “Kung
Pao Chicken ( Z{RZE T ) "

% — ¥ FEZ R AR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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For our “Honest Bean (& 2 ) " soy milk, premium soybean from
specific regions and soybean varieties are used, with attention
being paid to conditions of sail, climate and water. Two soybean
varieties that are most suitable for processing are selected after
their natural growth of about 150 days. Ceramic fine grinding is
used to fully extract nutrients in the soybeans while the unwanted
flavor is removed, enhancing its richness and stability, with more
natural flavor, smoothness and fragrance.

To cater the upgrading demands of consumers
and changes in consuming patterns of the young
generation, we developed the refrigerated cup series
with the whole process from transportation and to
sale being refridgerated. With a shelf life of only 21

days, freshness and flavor is preserved to the utmost.

RE:’{' With “Refreshing Tea (%t ¢ B &f) ”, “Lemon Green
Tea (1154 Z%) " and “Green Tangerine Oolong Tea

SIEEBESY) " under the series, fresh fruit tea sold in

m— street shops is used as prototypes. Cold extraction of

e tea leaves is innovatively applied, with the production
process completed in 24 hours and the cup sealed
under —18C. Fresh lemon juice and green tangerine is selected,
with no preservatives added, bringing the experience of wonderful
freshness and original flavor as the product philosophy of “Bringing
something fresh to life”. For our “Fruit Trio (2&2) ", “Peach
Peach Fine Jade (#k#k#E ) ” and “Lemon Fine Jade (1854 E ) »
fruit beverages, selected cold fresh fruit juice is mixed with large
pieces of soft pulp and chewy fibre jelly, delivering a cup of unique
cold drink with three types of texture by fast chilling technique
and bringing a wonderful and fun experience to taste bud. The
secondary filling and rapid freezing process is applied for our
“REMIX (&R
well layered and intimately blended, enhancing drinking experience,
to deliver a dessert-like drink with “distinct texture (B #) ”.

" Pudding Milk Tea making puddings and milk tea

In 2019, our R&D will continue from the perspective of consumers,
integrating resources in multiple directions, adhering to innovation
of value and the beverages category, establishing core technologies
as well as optimization, upgrade and innovation of products, with
the objective of enhancing their satisfaction.
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We uphold the philosophy of “Three Goods and One Fairness:
Good Quality, Good Credit, Good Service and Fair Price (=
H—RE mEF ERE RBEF ELRRE)” and offer
safe, healthy and delicious food to consumers. To enhance
the level of food safety management system, we have set up
Food Safety Committee and Food Safety Centre to implement
food safety assurance system, formulate food safety policy,
improve assessment, alert and monitoring of food safety risks for
guaranteeing food safety, undertake quality assurance system
management of the Group, formulate and implement policy of
product quality for guaranteeing product quality.

We continue to improve regulatory mechanism of supply chain of raw
materials and focus on strengthening food safety management of
the source of supply chain and safety monitoring of food products.
We have implemented assessment of food safety qualifications of
suppliers and field inspection of food safety of suppliers, established
monitoring mechanism of food safety projects of raw materials to
ensure the implementation of monitoring of food quality and safety
starting from the source of supply chain and established mechanism
of qualification review of production plants and field assessment.
Food products will only be delivered after strict inspection and
monitoring in all food safety aspects according to regulations so as to
ensure safety and taste of our products.

We actively promote source management of suppliers. In
addition to provision of training, we have introduced third party
professional agencies to evaluate our suppliers, and assist them
to establish their own scientific and effective food safety and
quality management system. We have fully introduced Food Safety
Protection Program covering the production and sale process
starting from product design to ensure consumers are rest assured.

We pay close attention to various food safety incidents of other
food manufacturers, timely carry out risks assessment, inspect
raw materials and food products similar to the ones used in
those incidents, improve food safety management system to
guarantee food safety, actively participate in the formulation and
revision of relevant national standards, compile and promulgate
food regulations and food safety information home and abroad
to enhance food safety awareness of the Group, promote the
full implementation of food regulations and safety standards to
safeguard consumers’ interests.
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Our Food Safety Centre passed the annual China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS
accreditation) since 2005 and 167 projects of the Group had been
approved thus far. Meanwhile, with the co-operation of laboratories
of each of our subsidiaries and external detection and testing
institutions, the needs for detection and testing key food safety
items are met, providing us with professional and authoritative
detection and testing service and technical support to guarantee
food safety. With our innovation in laboratory detection and testing
system, three technical achievements were awarded with national
patents.

As of 2018, 29 subsidiaries of the Group have passed the
ISO9001 International Standard Quality Management System
Certification, and 27 subsidiaries have been accredited with the
ISO22000 International standard Food Safety Management system
certification. These certifications and awards recognised our on-
going improvement of food safety and quality assurance system
and our capability of safeguarding food safety as well as our
dedication to providing consumers with delicious, healthy and safe
food.

The Group spared no effort in our operation, research and
development, innovation, brand building and sales expansion,
aiming to meet customer needs, develop and strengthen the
corporation constantly and maximise the revenue. In order to
focus the use of resources, maximize the benefits, the Group did
not solely rely on its own production resources. It also outsourced
its production to other professional beverages manufacturers
(including external independent third parties and related party
companies). A strategic alliance was formed under such long-term
co-operation with the external manufacturers, enabling the Group
to outsource production mode to adjust production capacity in
addition to the basic production capacity, providing the Group with
production flexibility. Thus, the Group was able to fully utilise its
resources on core operation and optimise its efficiency.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB21,772.2 million, representing an
increase of 4.6% from RMB20,821.9 million (restated) for 2017.
Revenue from the instant noodles business increased by 5.7%,
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and revenue from the beverages products business increased by
3.6%, standing at RMB8,425.1 million and RMB12,619.4 million
respectively, accounting for 38.7% and 58.0% respectively of the
Group’s total revenue. During the Year, gross profit of the Group
increased by 10.8% from RMB6,576.9 million (restated) for the
corresponding period last year to RMB7,288.6 million, while the
gross profit margin increased by 1.9 percentage points from 31.6%
for the corresponding period last year (restated) to 33.5%, which
was mainly due to partial adjustment in price and continuous
optimisation of product mix.

During the Year, the selling and marketing expenses increased to
RMB5,097.7 million (2017: RMB4,679.2 million (restated)). During
the Year, administrative expenses amounted to RMB1,114.5
million (2017: RMB987.7 million). Selling and marketing expenses
increased because more resources were invested by the Group on
brand building and establishment of distribution channels whereas
the increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the
corresponding increase in staff costs.

Operating profit was RMB1,331.9 million for the Year, increasing
by 12.2% from the operating profit of RMB1,186.6 million for
2017. Benefitting from the increase in the investment results of
joint ventures, the share of profits of investments accounted for
using the equity method increased by 196.0% to RMB84.4 million
(2017: RMB28.5 million) during the Year. Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the Year was RMB1,029.7 million,
representing an increase of 17.2% as compared with RMB878.2
million of the corresponding period last year, which were mainly
attributable to a growth in profits from the beverages business.
Earnings per share during the Year were RMB23.84 cents (2017:
RMB20.33 cents).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and bank balances
of RMB5,176.5 million (31 December 2017: RMB2,782.7 million),
among which 99.65% was denominated in Renminbi and 0.29%
was denominated in United States dollars. The Group mainly
financed its operation and capital expenditures with internally
generated cash flow. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total
financial liabilities increased by 48.9% to RMB1,987.7 million (31
December 2017: RMB1,334.8 million), which was due to the
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preparation for payment due within contractual periods at the
end of the period. None of such financial liabilities was repayable
over one year. 99.3% of the Group’s total financial liabilities was
denominated in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2018, all of the
Group’s financial liabilities bore floating interest rates, save for the
RMB500 million notes due in 2019 which was at fixed interest rate
of 3.9% per annum. As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not
have any secured bank borrowing (31 December 2017: Nil).

The Group aimed to maintain an appropriate capital structure.
Taiwan Ratings Corporation, a credit rating agency, issued a report
about the Group’s credit rating on 31 July 2018, and maintained
the Group’s long term credit rating at “twAA”, with a rating
outlook standing at “Stable (323 ) ”. The following table sets out
the gearing ratios of the Group during the two years ended 31
December 2018:

2018 2017
AR TR AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BEE Total borrowings 1,987,726 1,334,768
i B RARTT A B Less: cash and bank balances (5,176,478) (2,782,731)
R&eFHE Net cash (3,188,752) (1,447,963)
AR Total equity 13,222,307 12,815,477
FER= N Total capital 10,033,555 11,367,514
BARBELE (HE) Gearing ratio (Note) (31.78%) (12.74%)

Mer: EABELERERRSFHEMRULEZKLIES  Note:  The gearing ratio was computed as the net cash divided by the sum

FEZ M E -
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of total equity and net cash.

The Group reviewed its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According
to the capital plan for the future, the Group tried to maximise
revenue for its shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind.
Capital structure was constantly adjusted according to changes in
the operational environment.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a year-on-year
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB793.2 million,
comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB2,563.2
million, net cash outflow from investing activities of RMB3,389.5
million and net cash inflow from financing activities of RMB33.1
million. The Group’s capital expenditure for the year was RMB985.8
million (31 December 2017: RMB750.8 million), which mainly
resulted from the procurement, improvement and upgrading of
equipment, the building of a sales and distribution network and the
investment in R&D equipment.

Sales to most customers were made on a delivery on payment
basis. Trade receivables were generated from credit sales to credit
customers from modern channels (including but not limited to food
and groceries stores, stalls, department stores and e-commerce
merchants) with credit terms normally ranging from 60 to 90 days.
During the Year, by systemizing the risk prevention system in sales
channels and improving the client credit early alert management
model, net trade receivables decreased by RMB32.9 million to
RMB530.1 million (31 December 2017: RMB563.0 million).

The Group'’s trade payables mainly arose from credit purchase of
raw materials, and the inventories mainly comprised raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods and low-value consumables.
Trade payables of the Group increased by RMB158.2 million
to RMB1,554.2 million (31 December 2017: RMB1,396.0
million), while the inventories increased by RMB299.6 million to
RMB1,459.0 million (31 December 2017: RMB1,159.4 million). The
increase was due to the increase in revenue, and the increase in
products, raw materials and finished goods required in the early
preparation for increased production and sales during the Chinese
New Year. The following table sets out the major turnover days
during the two years ended 31 December 2018.

BZ12A31BILEE
Year ended 31 December

2018 2017
FEUE B AR IR A 8K Trade receivable turnover days 9 9
FEREEXE Inventory turnover days 33 30
JERE 5 R EE X E Trade payable turnover days 37 32
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Trade receivables turnover days was calculated based on the
average of trade receivables balances as at the beginning and the
end of the year divided by revenue multiplied by days in the year.

Inventory turnover days was calculated based on the average of
inventory balances as at the beginning and the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

Trade payables turnover days was calculated based on the average
of trade payable balances as at the beginning and the end of the
year divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

The Group reckoned that inventory turnover days, trade receivables
turnover days and trade payable turnover days in the distribution
channel helped the Group in understanding the efficiency of
inventory liquidity and the sales and cash conversion cycle.
Through reviewing and improving the turnover days, the Group
could improve its revenue, profit and the ability of on-going growth
for the sake of enhancing operational efficiency.

The Group adhered to the principle of financial prudence. It
sought to control risk variables and moved forward prudently by
moderately adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according
to market conditions, and made appropriate capital expenditures
to optimise and expand its infrastructure. The Group’s finance
department formulated financial risk management policies based on
the policies and procedures approved by the Board and guided by
executive Directors. These policies were reviewed by the Group’s
internal audit department and the internal control department
regularly. The Group’s financial policy aimed at reducing impact of
interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall
financial position, as well as minimising the Group’s financial risk
exposure.

The Group’s finance department provided centralised financial risk
(including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow
management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and its
members. During the Year, the department organised and adjusted
its finance management process and implemented specialised
division of labour, so that its finance function shifted from cost
accounting to value creating. By creating a function-based finance
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sharing centre step by step with reference to our business form,
the department provided support to the management on decision-
making. Also, it facilitated the business development in terms of
compliance, risk management, and performance enhancement to
create higher value for our shareholders.

It was the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage
in any highly risky investment or speculative derivative product
and not to invest the working capital in financial products with
significant underlying leverage or risks, including hedge funds or
similar instruments. The Group continued to adopt a conservative
approach to financial risk management with no significant bank
borrowing during the Year.

Most of the Group’s receipt and payment were denominated
in Renminbi since a majority of its revenue was derived from
operations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
Group might be exposed to foreign exchange risks arising from
future borrowings from overseas and certain recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in other currencies, such as cash and
cash equivalents and borrowings. The Group would use foreign
exchange forward contracts outside the PRC, when appropriate,
to manage risks and to control the Group’s assets and liabilities
when interest or exchange rates were uncertain or fluctuating, or
whenever suitable.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income was RMB218.6
million (the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets as at 31
December 2017: RMB222.1 million), which resulted from the fair
value changes of listed securities. The financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income mainly consisted
of the fair value of the equity of China Haisheng Juice Holdings
Co., Ltd. (“Haisheng Holdings”) (listed securities) of approximately
RMB6.9 million (31 December 2017: RMB10.4 million) and the fair
value of the equity of Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Joint Stock
Co., Ltd. (“Wondersun”) (non-listed securities) of approximately
RMB211.7 million (31 December 2017: RMB211.7 million).
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Haisheng Holdings is a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 359.HK), which is mainly engaged in the
manufacturing and processing of juice concentrate. Wondersun
is a company limited by shares established in the PRC, which
is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of milk powder and
liquid milk products. After reviewing the latest financial statements
of Wondersun and discussing with its management, the Board
expected the business performance of Wondersun will be stable
in 2019. With respect of the prospects of Haisheng Holdings, the
Board noted from the announcement of Haisheng Holdings dated
15 March 2019 that the board of directors of Haisheng Holdings
expect it to record a decrease in profit attributable to owners of
Haisheng Holdings of over 30% for the year ended 31 December
2018 as compared with that for the same period in 2017, which is
mainly attributable to the increase in expenses incurred to expand
distribution channels for the sale of apples and other fruits. The
Board will closely monitor the performance and prospects of
Wondersun and Haisheng Holdings to safeguard the interest of the
Company’s shareholders.

The Group invested in established upstream raw material suppliers
to enhance its competitiveness in the overall beverages business.
Currently, it has no further investment plan. The Group will persist to
implement prudent investment strategies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge on group assets as at 31
December 2018.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.

— e EhEER B R 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.



EEWR NARSAH REENHEERH
RITERA B EEHIN AEERE Y ET S
MEBENEARENEREE-

M2018F12H31H A& B EEBAE A
291NN - AEBRFRELE HEBRED
RA BEECABTADGEE BEDERS

ERARE-FAARE L AEEREFR
BB -AAETHAERE BRTENHE
A ANERBREEES BREKETEREN
B E @A ER I B 5t 28 A
A INBEEE  TERALRAE  AREEX
O AR SKRRRE AR BRARNBRER
T INEERAARE AUEZRZFHS BRE
EEREKRRENEE S - RERFEHTH
FZEBE AEBBRENES R ERE

RO LEERAEEEBELEEERNE
RIEE BHNREBBEAEEELEUREES
BALER W FEE R REENER
FEAZBE AR o

AEENEBRREKBEEERESFNHNRR &
FE - FrRIR 2 BE D - MG AL E R R AR B A
RBRFHER - EAAREME RN R
AEBEEAREBAZERNERBAL EHFR
TE #HeRERN TESMEERELER
B BAENENRTE LA LGESE-

KEE BETIRA(BEEEHE) BARE
321748 BT (2017F : AR#Z,025.28 &
JT) °

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this report, there was
no current plan to acquire any material investment or capital assets
other than those in the Group’s ordinary business of manufacturing
and sale of beverages and instant noodles.

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of employees of the
Group was 29,192. The Group adhered to the policies of focused
and streamlined operation, and organisational structure and staff
structure were improved on a continuous basis to make the
enterprise stronger and more efficient. In terms of recruitment,
the Group was streamlining its administration and progressing
towards meritocracy. The Group insisted on building a stable and
robust team through mechanisms like comprehensive training,
humane care and etc. Internal training, regular position transfer,
external part-time study and other measures enhanced our overall
performance and provided talents for key positions of the Group
steadily. Meanwhile, priorities were given to internal promotion
over external recruitment, and performance appraisal and other
measures were implemented to keep the current management
team ambitious and strong. To achieve the Group’s annual goals,
the Group had performance bonuses and incentive schemes in
place to commend and encourage employees at all levels to make
outstanding contributions to the Group’s business. Performance
bonuses were distributed on the basis of the realised earnings and
profits objectives of individual business units and the Group as a
whole, as well as the performance appraisal.

The Group’s remuneration policy rewarded our employees and
directors with reference to their performance, qualifications,
demonstrated capabilities, market comparable information and the
performance of the Group. As part of the Group’s remuneration
policy, the Group entered into individual employment contracts
with each of its employees, which covered wages, social security
benefits, workplace safety and hygiene environment, confidentiality
obligations on trade secrets and termination conditions.

During the Year, total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were RMB3,217.4 million (2017: RMB3,025.2 million).
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of 31
December 2018 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 85 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB23.84 cents per share of the Company for the Year amounting
to a total dividend of RMB1,029.7 million. The payment of the
final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details are
set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. There
was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under
which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 89 of the annual report and Note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB7,948,363,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB692,625 (2017: RMB1,434,740).

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and as at the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui,
Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Each
of Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election. There is no service
contract entered into between any of the Directors (including each
of Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter)
and the Company which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 51 to 55 of
the annual report.

Holdings Ltd.
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As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

MR EE

Number of shares
20185
12A81A2
1853 EREAL
UTFL Percentage of
Bl Es shareholding
Interest of NEER as at
child under Corporate #3531 December
18 or spouse Interest Total 2018
(#E4)
(Approximate)
93,182,918 - 97,242,013 1.71%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts/letters of appointment with the
Company, during the Year, no other contracts of significance,
transaction and arrangement to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Hre/ Ke Long positions/short positions
H20185
12A31H
ZERBSH
YN Percentage of
ZEREE shareholding
Number of as at
18 514 ordinary shares 31 December
Name Capacity of the Company 2018
(#E49)
(Approximate)
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (Note 1) Interest of controlled 3,050,893,983 (L) 70.63%
H—OERGAERAR (M) corporations
REHDEEE R
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (Note 1) Beneficial owner 3,044,508,000 (L) 70.49%
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (KfzE1) EREAA
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (“JPMorgan”) (Note 2) Beneficial owner 5,219,738 (L) 0.12%
JPMorgan Chase & Co. ([JPMorgan |) (ffzE2) EEHEEA
376,000 (S) 0.008%
Investment manager 32,543,620 (L) 0.75%
REKE
Person having 1,635,000 (L) 0.04%
a security interest in
the shares
RGP EEES
Bamz AT
Approved lending 176,571,415 (P) 4.09%
agent
RERHRIEA
% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 86
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(L) denotes a long position in the Company’s shares.
(S) denotes a short position in the Company’s shares.
(P) denotes the Company’s shares held in the lending pool.

Notes:

1. Out of 3,050,893,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
3,044,508,000 Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd.
(“Cayman President”), which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (‘UPE”), 2,445,983 Shares
were held by President (BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd.
(“President (BVI)”), which is indirectly owned by UPE as to 69.37%,
3,940,000 Shares were held by Kai Yu (BVI) Investment Co., Ltd. (“Kai
Yu (BVI)"), which is indirectly wholly-owned by UPE. Accordingly, UPE
was deemed to be interested in all the Shares respectively held by
Cayman President, President (BVI) and Kai Yu (BVI) by virtue of the
SFO.

2. Out of the aggregate of 215,969,773 Shares which JPMorgan held
in the long position, 176,571,415 Shares were held in the lending
pool by JPMorgan as a lending agent. All such Shares were held by
JPMorgan through various entities affiliated with it.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no other
substantial shareholder or person had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Report of the Directors, (i) no contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. During the Year and as at the date of this annual report,
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of the
Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not exempt under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

#— P EZ R AR A R Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2017 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
certain beverages, instant noodles and bakery products and
such other products as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. The pricing basis and the other terms of the sales
transactions contemplated under the 2017 Framework Sales
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties by the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the
2017 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2017.

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement (the “2017 Framework Purchase
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase or procure the purchase of, on a non-
exclusive basis, from UPE Group certain raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods, low-cost consumables
and such other goods as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. The pricing basis and the other terms of the purchase
transactions contemplated under the 2017 Framework
Purchase Agreement shall be subject to the terms and
conditions contained therein and determined in accordance
with the internal control procedures of the Group, which,
in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group than
those offered to the Group by independent third parties in
comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2017
and 19 May 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 26
April 2017.
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On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement (the “2017 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE agreed
to provide or procure the provision of, on a non-exclusive basis,
to the Group transportation and logistics service (including,
but not limited to, storage and design of, and the provision
of support service to, logistics application systems and such
other logistics related ancillary and support services as may be
agreed by the Group and UPE Group) for a term from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020. The pricing basis and the other
terms of the transportation and logistics service transactions
contemplated under the 2017 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered by
independent third parties suppliers to the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the 2017
Framework Logistics Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2017.

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement (the “2017 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide or procure the
provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
technical support and management services (including but
not limited to the human resources management services and
such other technical support services as may be agreed by
the Group and UPE Group) for a term from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2020. The pricing basis and the other terms
of the technical support service transactions contemplated
under the 2017 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties by the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the 2017
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24
March 2017.
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BEFEERS Logistics Service Agreement and the 2017 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement (collectively, the “2017
CCT Agreements”) for the Year are set out below:

Actual
2017 BHEBERZHER Transaction FELR
2017 CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
(ARERAET) (AR®BEERT)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
2017 Framework Sales Agreement
Total sales value 79.4 296.0
2017 Framework Purchase Agreement
Total purchase value 3,5647.4 4,920.0
2017 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
Total transaction value 19.5 39.0
2017 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement
Total transaction value 51.3 59.0
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When determining whether the above transactions have
been conducted in accordance with the pricing policies
under the above framework agreements, the management of
the Company would obtain sufficient market intelligence to
ascertain the relevant prevailing market rate, payment terms
and practices, as well as the latest market and independent
third party information. For example, the management would
review quotations from at least two independent suppliers
or service providers and evaluate them from a commercial
perspective, so as to ensure that the products or services to
be procured from the UPE Group are of comparable prices for
such products or services being offered by the independent
third parties. Where there are no sufficient comparable
transactions available, the prices of such products or services
would be determined on arm’s length basis with reference to
historical prices and cost analysis. Likewise, the management
would also determine the prices of the goods to be provided
to the UPE Group by reviewing market information to ensure
that they are of comparable prices for such products being
offered to independent third parties by the Group.

The internal audit team of the Company has reviewed the
continuing connected transactions based on the relevant
documentations and internal control procedures and have
provided findings to the independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors consider that the
methods and procedures established by the Company were
sufficient and effective to ensure that the transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial to
the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders,
and that appropriate internal control procedures were in
place. In the opinion of the independent non-executive
Directors, the above transactions pursuant to the 2017 CCT
Agreements were carried out in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and
were in accordance with the relevant 2017 CCT Agreements
and the pricing policies of the Company, and on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding
the continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

- for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, such transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

- the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; or

- the transaction amount of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions as mentioned above have
exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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Report of the Directors

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 34(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 34(b) and Note
34(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered into between the Company and
UPE on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)).

#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business, financial
key performance indicators and performance of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to beverages and instant
noodles business and some are from external sources. Major risks
are summarized below.

() Consumer preferences risk

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. Consumer preferences
change and the Company’s failure to anticipate, identify
or react to these changes could result in reduced demand
for the Group’s products, which would, in turn, cause
excessive inventory levels and lower sales volume. The Group
will continuously introduce new products throughout the
seasons and will further shorten the product development
cycle in order to improve our portfolio of products to satisfy
consumers’ changing preferences.

#— P EZ R AR A R Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to
a significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish
its products from those of the Group’s competitors by
providing high quality products at reasonable prices that
appeal to consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s
competitors have varying abilities to withstand changes
in market conditions. Some of the Group’s competitors
have larger market shares in the PRC with respect to
beverages or instant noodles products, have operated their
respective businesses longer than the Group has, have
wider geographical coverage for its products and/or stronger
distribution networks in the PRC, may have substantially
greater financial and other resources than the Group has and
may be better established in the market. Should the Group’s
competitors manage to seize a larger market share, the
Group’s sales volume may be adversely affected. To manage
competition risks, the Group will continue to research and
develop new technology, introduce new products as well as
maintain a high level of quality of its existing products for a
better competitive edge.

The food and beverages industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level
of disposable income, which translated into lower demand
for the Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of
operations. As a result, the global and local economies,
including the PRC economy, continue to experience
significant volatility. Significant volatility or another downturn
in the PRC and global economy in the future could have an
adverse effect on the food and beverages industry in the PRC
and the demand for the Group’s products, which may affect
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition. With a relatively stable cash flow in the food and
beverages industry, the Group will continue to launch new
products to boost revenue, strictly control costs, and maintain
a stable and appropriate capital structure to reduce the
impact from global economic and financial market volatility.
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All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s instant noodle products and a large percentage of
packaging materials used in the production of its beverages
products are supplied by independent third parties or related
party suppliers. In the event these independent third parties
or related party suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot
meet the Group’s demand for such packaging materials, or
the Group is unable to reach agreement upon reasonable
terms with them in relation to such continued supply, the
Group may be unable to find a comparable substitute
supplier of packaging materials, which may lead to delays
in the delivery of its products to customers. Such delays
may affect the Group’s results of operations. The Group
strives to maintain stable and cooperative relationships in the
procurement of important raw materials, develop long-term
strategic partnerships and productivity strategies with three or
more suppliers to reduce the risk on being over dependent on
a single supplier.

AEBMKNIMKERES /B - 287  The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
MEFEEZWEENI - relationships which comprise employees, suppliers, distributors and
customers.
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Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages
and food products in the PRC, the Group is continuously
recruiting talented professionals. In respect of the new lower-
level staff, the Group devotes considerable resources in staff
training and monitor their development and progress in a
timely manner in order to familiarise them with the working
environment and build up team spirit. Meanwhile, the Group
recognises the value of its key personnel in maintaining
team morale and competitiveness. Both internal promotion
and external recruitment are applied to select and promote
outstanding personnel for vacant positions and attract
qualified candidates to join the Group. On the other hand, the
Group ensures the continuity of the senior management by
grooming management talents with various measures, such
as continuous internal training and appropriate job rotation as
well as external on-the-job training.
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The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of suppliers and take great care to ensure that they
understand the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. To
achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
suppliers, the Group carefully selects suppliers in conformity
with the food safety requirements of “three lines of defense”
(i.e qualification audits, on-site evaluation, food safety testing),
through inviting quotations from suppliers to be procured to
the extent that those products are of comparable nature,
quality, quantity and condition via open tender.

The Group sells products to end customers through third-
party distributors. The Group works with distributors like
business partners with the same interest, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
growth. The Group requires distributors and sub-distributors
to comply with its policies, including but not limited to
retail selling price, promotional activities and standardised
application of the Group’s system.

The Group is committed to offer tasty, differentiated and
trendy products to customers. The Group provides safe,
healthy and delicious beverages and instant noodles to
consumers. The Group also stays connected with customers
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preference
through various channels like the Company’s website,
customer hotlines, marketing materials and social media.
In the instant noodles and beverages industry, the Group’s
vast number of customers are from modern sales channels
(including but not limited to food and groceries stores, stalls
and department stores) which are scattered and separated.
Therefore, the Group does not have major customers which
account for a significant part of the Company’s revenue.
The credit terms and subsequent settlement for customers
have been disclosed in the paragraph headed “Analysis of
operating efficiency” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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The Group has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) on 31
December 2018 to enhance the transparency of the Company and
to facilitate its shareholders (“Shareholders”) and potential investors
to make informed investment decision relating to the Company.

According to the Dividend Policy, in addition to final dividends, the
Company may declare interim dividends or special dividends to the
Shareholders from time to time.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board will take into account, inter alia, the Group’s
general financial position, current and future operations, working
capital requirements, liquidity position and any other factors it may
deem relevant from time to time. Any payment of the dividend by
the Company is also subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”).

Subject to the factors set out above, the final dividends to be
declared and paid by the Company shall be not less than 20%
of the Group’s audited consolidated profit attributable to the
Shareholders in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time
and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or that the Company is
obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from time to time.

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the shares of the Company are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by
Hong Kong and PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December
2018 and as at the date of this report, we have complied with
the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact in
the PRC and Hong Kong. In particular, as a food and beverages
manufacturer, the Group’s operations are regulated by the
applicable food safety and environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the year under review, the Group
did not have any material non-compliance with such laws and
regulations.

Annual Report 2018 £ #§



EEEHE

Report of the Directors

BRRBR

RERETNEEAKENET TERME
—AMEBEE - AKEBEB—RINERB DK
MERBERNTE  BEERHKEE:
BT A9 R B Ko B B A 2 FE A RO [ IR AR o 3 AP
RESRK T EEBBARIERERORER D
REANEE URKATHEEEHFIN -8
EarA R

RARREBARRER

FREEIRIEEETWEINT] B8 &

ARREBRARBERON BENNERE
m £ £
FAmARAESERE &0

BEWPRNEHN

AEERBEHEMBEERNE o

RREZS
BH-hEPEERARDA
E
BER
aE &t
201953 H22H

50

Annual Report 2018 F#§

Environmental Policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of the Group,
it is also the responsibility of each of us. The Group initiates and
strives to minimize environmental impact by using water-saving
facilities, saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials. The Group also requires factories
of original equipment manufacturer (OEM) to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary permission and approval from the PRC
regulators.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

The discussion of future development of the Company business
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

Taipei, Taiwan

22 March 2019
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Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (Z&%5 %), aged 62, is the chairman and
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director and/
or the chairman of the board of directors of most of the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in September 1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He has over 33 years
of experience in the food and beverages industry and is currently
the chairman of President Chain Store Corporation (%t — 8 &
DB AT), Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (i—E XM AR A
&), TTET Union Corporation ( K&tz kB R A F), Prince
Housing & Development Corp. ( K- F &2 FERH AR A7) and
ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. ( & &8 ERH AR AR, all of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also
the director of Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. ({5217
AR AR, a company listed on the Taipei Exchange. He is
also the chairman and group chief strategy officer of Uni-President
Enterprises Corporation (£t — 2R % B R 2 7) ("UPE”),
the substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)), and the director of 108 companies associated with UPE
and its subsidiaries. Mr. Lo holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of California, Los Angeles, U.S.A.
His spouse is Mrs. Shiow-Ling Kao, a director of UPE.

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2137 ) , aged 48, is the president of the Group
and the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd. (i —% (FE)EEFRAF]) (“Uni-President
China Investments”). He has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. He has
over 25 years of experience in strategic marketing in the food and
beverages industry. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 1994 and since
then has been involved in sales and marketing for the Group. He
acted as the sales general manager for the Sichuan province of
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (K& H— D ER
AR E]) from November 2006 until August 2008. From August
2008 to September 2014, he acted as the general manager of the
food business department of Uni-President China Investments.
From October 2014 until June 2016, he acted as a general
manager of the marketing planning office and convener of strategic
marketing committee of Uni-President China Investments. Mr. Liu
holds a doctoral degree in business management from Southwest
Jiaotong University ( FERE 328K 5 ) in the PRC.
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Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (£ 52%%), aged 61, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Su joined the Group in August
2007. He joined UPE Group in August 2000. He is currently the
vice-president of UPE and a director of President Chain Store
Corporation (#t — 7 I 7 B R A 7)) and ScinoPharm Taiwan,
Ltd. (A EERHBERAQF]), al of which are members of UPE
Group and are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Mr. Su is also a director of 24 members of UPE Group. He has
over 33 years of experience in banking and financial management.
Before joining UPE Group, he was the vice-president of the Taipei
branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial specialist of Seibu
Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and the senior specialist
of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a
master of business administration degree from the University of
lowa, the U.S.A.

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FRE /&), aged 50, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in May 2011
as the chief financial officer of the Group and is also a director and/
or supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
in the PRC. Mr. Chen has worked in UPE from November 1997
to April 2011. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company between August 2013 and June 2017. Since July 2017,
Mr. Chen was re-designated as a non-executive director of the
Company and was re-designated as the chief financial officer
of UPE. He is currently a director or a supervisor of 5 wholly-
owned subsidiaries/joint ventures of the Group and a director of
Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. ( 28/I% %
ZINILERMARAR), a company in which the Group has an
interest. Mr. Chen is also a director of 3 members of UPE Group
and a director of President Securities Corp. which is listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He has over 22 years of
experience in financial management. Mr. Chen holds a master’s
degree in business administration from University of Strathclyde in
the United Kingdom.
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Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (FRE272), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Chen has over 35 years of experience in the banking
and financial industry and is currently the Chairman of Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank. He is also an independent director of China
Telecom Corporation, and Lion Travel Services Co., Ltd. and also
the director of Fubon Financial Holdings. Prior to that, Mr. Chen
served as the president of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd.
(North Asia and Greater China regions) between 2005 and 2012,
the president of Chinatrust Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (now
known as CTBC Financial Holding Co., Ltd) in 2005, the chairman
of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd. between 2003 and 2005, the
country officer and country head of the corporate bank in Taiwan
of Citigroup between 2001 and 2003 and the regional head of
financial markets in Asia Pacific of Citigroup between 1998 and
2001. He gained extensive financial management experience from
various positions held with Citibank and Citigroup and has acquired
general knowledge about the food and beverages industry through
dealing with clients from that industry. Mr. Chen holds a master’s
degree in business administration from University of Missouri, the
U.S.A. and a bachelor’s degree in political science from National
Chengchi University, Taiwan.

Annual Report 2018 £ #§



BRERKLE 5955 M2015F12AKET A
RAARBUFPATEZ - HERAEAREKX
EBUBERREEEARBAAK REE
F2005F M ARt Ri B ([ E])
EIRE - RN 2005F3 A £2015%2 A B R
BRtDARETZEHRREEERS M
BREHREE r HEBUATRHEASR —K
REBEFE - MAHRE A - REERBEE
FxBEMEBR([BEEFHKE]) KF
EEREEFEREBELZEENTEE UK
BERKEBIERDEEERAC

BREEMBRERRBIERARAA (BRHK
S 1019) EFRAITES  WNEERERA
A (DA 1836) MEEEEX&E
BRAE (MR :1060) & & & ik E
BRIGEBRAE (BRMHMASE:308) 28Ik
BITESE ZERAHORBRIMERLM-
R20156%F12 A E2018F 11 A EEHER
EemERAERAR (RHOMR:245) R
2017F7AE2019F3 A  EEHFEE M (£
E)ARAR (RMHNRSE:3818) MBI IEH
TEEF ZERAARBZMERLET R
2010F6 A =2019F 27 I EEIE LR Bl
BRERRAAINBEZIERNITES (RMHRRK:
8032) ,#% A Al N EE X FTGEM L 11 o BR AL A 4%
EREEREBEENSIZREBETEMR
BEBRBRTABRENGHEZLEMA I
REBIBE G A

Annual Report 2018 F#§

Mr. CHEN Johnny ([R5 7 ), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Chen Johnny is currently an Adjunct Associate Professor
of Department of Finance and Department of Management, Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chen Johnny
joined the management of Zurich Insurance Group (“Zurich”) in
2005. He worked in Zurich from March 2005 to February 2015 in
multiple senior managerial roles in the Asia-Pacific region. His last
position in Zurich was the chairman of the life and general insurance
business in China. Prior to joining Zurich, Mr. Chen Johnny was an
executive member of the Greater-China Management Board and
the Operating Committee of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), as
well as a managing partner of PwC'’s Beijing office.

Mr. Chen Johnny is also the chairman and an executive director
of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019), an
independent non-executive director of Stella International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1836), Alibaba Pictures Group Limited (stock
code: 1060) and China Travel International Investment Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 308), all of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. From December 2015 to November 2018,
he was an independent non-executive director of China Minsheng
Financial Holding Corporation Limited (stock code: 245) and from
July 2017 to March 2019, China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 3818), all of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. From June 2010 to February 2019, he was
an independent non-executive director of Viva China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8032) which is listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny holds a Master of Science Degree in
Accounting from the University of Rhode Island and a Bachelor
Degree of Accounting from the Johnson & Wales University and is a
U.S. certified public accountant.
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Mr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony (5B{Z3% ) , aged 58, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of AsialLink
Capital Limited and also an independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), Raymond
Industrial Limited (stock code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited (stock code: 563), Renhe Commercial
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6868), Citic Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1205), China Development Bank
International Investment Limited (stock code: 1062), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882),
Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (stock code: 1868) and Semiconductor
Manufacturing International Corporation (stock code: 981). Mr.
Fan was an independent non-executive director of Lerthai Group
Limited (formerly known as LT Commercial Real Estate Limited,
stock code: 112) from March 2013 to June 2017, Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (stock code:
1296) from September 2011 to August 2017 and of CGN New
Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1811) from September
2014 to June 2018. All of the said companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fan holds a master’s degree in
business administration from the U.S.A..

Mr. LO Peter (5% £), aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in November
2007. Mr. Lo is currently a director of China Enterprise Capital
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director of Ajisen
(China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 538), and from March 2011
to June 2018, he was the chairman and an executive director
of China Outfitters Holdings Limited (stock code: 1146), both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo
has over 25 years of experience in the business field and holds a
bachelor’s degree in mathematical economics and econometrics
from the London School of Economics and Political Science, the
United Kingdom.
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Mr. LIU Xinhua (2372 ), aged 48, was appointed as the
president of the Group since 1 July 2016 and an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. Mr. Liu’s
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Directors’
Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. LIU, Tzu-Chiang (2738 ), aged 49, is the chief financial
officer of the Group. Mr. Liu joined the Group in April 1998. Mr.
Liu also acts as a supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries in the PRC. He has over the years served
as the manager of the finance department at Uni-President
Enterprises (Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd. (¥ —CEERERE A
7)), Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (FE#%— %A
R 2 7]), Shenyang President Enterprises Co., Ltd. C&E & — 1
¥EMR A7), Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (A%
HE—¥RMARAT) and Zhengzhou President Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (BB — % BRAF), al being the subsidiaries
of the Group. From August 2007 to May 2012, he was also the
administrative director of the the Group in the Northeast region
and Southwest region of the PRC. Since 2014, he has been the
chief accountant of the Group. From July 1994 to April 1998, he
had served in UPE Group. He has over 25 years of experience in
financial management. Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from National Cheng Kung University, Taiwan.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (3512 ) , aged 50, joined the Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(MEH—MEAMRAR), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. CEB#— % BR A7) and Wuhan President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd. (REZH—TERBHABMRAAF]).
2010, Mr. Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food

In January

Department of the Group and was promoted to the position of
General Manager in October 2014. Mr. Zhang has over 24 years
working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from
the Hankou brand of Huazhong Institute of Technology of the RPC
(now renamed Huazhong University of Science and Technology,
with a bachelor degree of engineering. He is currently pursuing an
EMBA master degree in Wuhan University, the PRC.
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Mr. HUANG, Wei (=#), aged 37, joined the Group in June
2004. From June 2006 to October 2009, he was responsible for
the planning and brand marketing of the food product business.
From 2010 to 2013, he served as the manager of the marketing
department at Beijing President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (4t
RHE—RMBARAR)and Kunshan President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (BRI —BRMBEMR A A) . From 2013 to 2014, he
was responsible for brand management of the Instant Food
Department of the Group. From 2014 to 2016, he was employed
as the general manager of the E-commerce Department of the
Group and concurrently served as the strategic development
director of the marketing strategy office. Since September 2017,
he has been the general manager of the business unit of the Life
and Food Business Department and the E-commerce Department
of the Group. He is currently the general manager of the Life and
Food Business Department. Mr. Huang holds a master degree in
business administration (MBA) from the School of Management,
Fudan University, the PRC.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (& &), aged 42, joined the Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (BIlLZE—ERBARA
A]) from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed
as the head of bottled water business of the Group since October
2006. He has been a general manager of the combined drinks
business of the Group since October 2014. He has more than 20
years of experience in the food and beverages industry and holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime University,
the PRC.
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Mr. WEI Chih-Chung (£t & f) , aged 50, joined the food
product business (Taiwan) of UPE and the Group in 1999 and 2003
respectively. Prior to 2010, Mr. Wei served as product manager
of food product business, combined drink products business and
juice business and as manager of the investment planning unit of
the Company. In 2010, he served in the PL (Private Label) OEM
business, which is new business unit of the Group. In 2011, he was
transferred to a subsidiary, Uni-President (Shanghai) Private Label
Marketing & Trading Co., Ltd., as general manager of the Group.
In 2012, he was the general manager of the trading business unit.
He has been the general manager of juice business of the Group
since 2013. He has more than 25 years of experience in the food
and beverages industry. Mr. Wei graduated from Drexel University
in Pennsylvania, U.S.A. with a master’s degree in business
administration.

Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen (FRI%2%5), aged 46, joined Guangzhou
TEERAA), a
subsidiary of the Group, in February 2009 and was responsible

President Enterprises Corp. (&M & —

for the management of marketing functions of Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. (EMFZ— 1% FR A E) and Wuhan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (RZHG— ¥ ERBRE R
Al), subsidiaries of the Group, prior to October 2011. She was
re-designated as the deputy general manager of the head office
of the Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was promoted
to the position of general manager in July 2013. Before joining the
Group, she has engaged in marketing in various companies such
as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan Branch, Ting Hsin International Group
(TBFTEIFR ) and YFY (k%4 ) and has 22 years of experience
in the food and fast moving consumer goods industries. In 2006,
she started to work in Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan
Foods Corporation (k2R & T2 KM AR A A]) of Ting Hsin
International Group (JE#T Bl &£ & ) and has since gained 13
years of work experience in Mainland China. Ms. Chen holds both
master’s degree in nutrition and health sciences from Taipei Medical
University in Taiwan and EMBA (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s National
Chung Hsing University.
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, “Group”) is committed to ensure a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures and appreciates
that good corporate governance is crucial to enhancing investors’
confidence in the Company. In the opinion of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the Company has
complied with all code provisions of the corporate governance code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”), except that
pursuant to Code Provision A.2.7 of the then prevailing Corporate
Governance Code, the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) has to
hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) without the
executive Directors present. As Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, the Chairman, is
also an executive Director, the Company has deviated from the then
prevailing Code Provision A.2.7 as it was not applicable. However,
Code Provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code has been
amended with effect from 1 January 2019 and now requires the
Chairman to hold meetings at least annually with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.
The Company will comply with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code in coming years.

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter
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The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code, any new Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by shareholders of the Company at the first general
meeting of the Company after the appointment. In accordance with
the articles of association of the Company, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-third of the Directors
for the time being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Directors’ remunerations
are determined with reference to the Director Nomination Policy (as
defined below) and the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) of
the Company, the Directors’ qualifications, duties, responsibilities and
experiences, and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
and strategic decisions, maintaining the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, and monitoring the
performance of the Group. There are currently four committees
established under the Board, being the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the investment, strategy and development
committee (the Strategy and Development
Committee”). Each committee has its terms of reference and
reports to the Board regularly.

investment

“Investment,

The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the president of the Group (“‘President”).
The roles of the Chairman and the President are performed by
separate persons. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that
the Directors perform their duties properly and ensuring discussions
on material matters take place on a timely basis. The power and
authority to carry out day-to-day operations and implementation of
the strategies and directions set by the Board are delegated to the
management team of the Company (the “Management”) which is
led by the President. The Management assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operation of the Group.
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The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of the minimum
required number of independent non-executive Directors
which shall be at least one-third of the Board with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules: (a) having served
the Company for more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive Director’s independence, and (b)
if an independent non-executive Director has served for more than
nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders of the Company. Each of
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter have
served as the independent non-executive Directors for more than
nine years since 2016, and the shareholders of the Company have
approved their appointment under separate resolution at the AGM
held on 20 May 2016.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors his respective confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule 3.13. Mr.
Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter have in-
depth understanding of the Company’s operations and business,
and since they are not involved in the daily management of the
Company nor are they in any relationships or circumstance which
would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments,
the Board is of the opinion that each of them has the required
integrity and independence to continue fulfilling the role of an
independent non-executive director.
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The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to have
full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of
the Group and they have been updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed
by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance,
at the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that they
have complied with Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all of the
Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars/in-house briefing and/or reading materials
on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.
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EENR Topics on training covered

Name of Directors (Note)

BESLSTE(EE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) a, c

RIS A (ABAFFE) Mr. Liu Xinhua (President) a,c

FeR B8 4@ S A Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui a
R EE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a

5%5%5‘6& Mr. Chen Sun-Te a,c

RERTE Mr. Chen Johnny a,b,c

SBICESLAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a, b

BREE2iL4E Mr. Lo Peter a,b,c

B 3E Note:

(a) TEEREE (@  corporate governance/regulatory

(b) o (o) finance

(c) HEITH (c)  industry-specific

EEERESZEESER BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

EESTHRTEHR HPEE ERKAER
Eﬁﬁ&@Mﬁ ’\/%E&L@$Am¥ﬁ§
BB NI - Bl E2018F 1231 IFFE
ETeRTTHERSH-

Board meetings are held at regular intervals for, among other
matters, reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies
and policies of the Company. The Board met four times during the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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WmERE Mr. Liu Xinhua
FHTEE Non-executive Directors
BEELE Mr. Chen Kuo Hui
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BUFHITEE Indgpendent Non-executive Directors
REELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te
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The attendance of individual Board members at the Board and
Board committees meetings during the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the table below:

B/ BIEERE (M)
Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

RE HER
EVZE88 RE%ZE88 FMZEE %RZE%
Ezges EE ] EE ] gz g2 RRBEAg
Investment,
Strategy and
Audit Nomination Remuneration  Development Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting
4/4 - 33 212 212 n
4/4 - - - 212 0/1
4/4 - - - 212 il
4/4 213 - - 212 11
4/4 33 - 212 212 11
4/4 33 33 - 212 01
4/4 33 - 212 212 il
4/4 3/3 33 - 212 11
Note:
1. Attendances during the Year were made by reference to the number

of meetings held during the Directors’ respective tenures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Fan Ren-
Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Lo Peter,
being independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
being a non-executive Director. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors,
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

reviewing financial information
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the interim and annual financial statements and the effectiveness of
the internal control practices of the Group. A summary of the work
performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the interim and annual financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 and for the Year respectively;

(i)  met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

(i)  reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control
systems and the internal audit function of the Group;

(iv) conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

(v) approved the audit plan for the year ending 31 December
2019;

(vi)  reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

(vi) reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and terms of reference of Audit
Committee.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised Mr. Chen
Johnny and Mr. Lo Peter, being independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, being an executive Director. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Peter.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individuals nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong and the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company needs to meet the business
demand, opportunities and challenges and to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. The Nomination Committee
has adopted a director nomination policy (‘Director Nomination
Policy”) on 13 December 2018, which serves to improve
the transparency of the process and criteria in selecting and
recommending candidates as directors of the Company for the
Board’s approval from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. The Directors and the Nomination Committee
will consider and nominate candidates according to the Director
Nomination Policy based on objective criteria with due regard to
the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board Diversity Policy of
the Company, to the Board for approval. In identifying individuals
and making recommendations for nominations, the Nomination
Committee considers whether such individuals have the appropriate
qualifications, ability and perspectives that would enable them to
effectively fulfill their roles and responsibilities as directors of the
Company. The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee (as
further set out in its terms of reference) form the key part under the
Company’s Director Nomination Policy.

Where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, his/her independence will be assessed
in accordance with, among others, the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as
may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/she
has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise for filing the office of an
independent non-executive Director as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held three meetings
to review (i) the composition and structure of the Board; (ii)
the confirmation of independence by the independent non-
executive Directors; (i) the Company’s progress on compliance
with the corporate governance requirements as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and terms of reference of
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has reviewed
the independence of each of Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter who has served more than nine years as
an independent non-executive Director at the Company pursuant
to Code Provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Nomination Committee has also reviewed and recommended the
adoption of of the amended Board Diversity Policy.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board. The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy
(“Board Diversity Policy”). The Board also reviewed and adopted
the amended Board Diversity Policy on 14 December 2018 in order
to align with the amendments of the Corporate Governance Code
and to comply with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules which came into
effect on 1 January 2019.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, in order to achieve a diversity of
perspectives, skills and experience within the Board, a number of
factors will be considered when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, skills, regional and industry experience. In forming
its perspectives on Board diversity, the Company will also take into
account its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. Please refer to the Company’s website for details of the Board
Diversity Policy.
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In addition, the composition, experience and balance of skills
on the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains core members with long-standing knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring
fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, and will propose
and recommend any amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as
it thinks fit to the Board for consideration and approval.

The names of the current Directors and their biographies (including
their role as well as their skills and experiences) are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te
and Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony; and one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.
Chen Sun-Te throughout the Year.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year. A
summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee is set
out as follows:

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board on the fees of the
non-executive Directors;

(i)  assessed the performance of executive Directors, reviewed
the current remuneration structure/package and approved the
specific remuneration package of the executive Directors; and

(i) reviewed the current remuneration structure/package of the
senior management.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the year, the range of remuneration payable to the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group is
set out below:

Number of

S E Remuneration range persons
AH

AR #41,500,0007T = A R #2,000,0007T RMB1,500,000 to RMB2,000,000 6

RE BRMRBEREZEES

EEETRUKRE BRLERZEEGKER
HMITESFEEREERBTELRE FFNTE
ERBIE LA MERE AU MBS IETT
EEMRERBAEE RERELE BLEXELER
BEESLAK BETTERKRE BBE
HREEQTR-

BE BEMERZEENAFERITMAE
#oRE BRMERRZEGCIERER
BAKEZIRE MNERFEIREE BHERE
ERYMNEESRIEZZ -RE BRILER
ZEENRTREREES AIRARRELEE
BERWHIEHERER-

INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Board also established the Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee, which comprised Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and
Mr. Liu Xinhua, being executive Directors, Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui and Mr.
Su Tsung-Ming, being non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Sun-
Te, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter,
being independent non-executive Directors. The Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held two
meetings during the Year. The primary functions of the Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee are to review the investment
and development plan and policies of the Group and to review
investment proposals and make recommendations to the Board.
The specific written terms of reference of the Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee are available for inspection upon
request at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong.
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with the applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s external
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC”), is independent and
have recommended the Board to reappoint PwC as the external
auditors of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming AGM. During the Year, the remuneration paid/
payable to all external auditors engaged by the Group for their audit
services amounted to RMB7.0 million. No significant remuneration
was paid to PwC for the provision of non-audit related service to
the Company during the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the Year and up to
the date of the annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the securities dealing
code adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than the
Model Code when dealing in the Company’s shares.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and is designed to help the Group to identify and manage
significant risks to achieve the Group’s overall business objectives,
determine the Group’s risk profile, oversee risk management
framework structure, review key risks and mitigation strategies
and to ensure risk management effectiveness and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported
by key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-
down approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively
identified, prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units
to accomplish the Group’s objectives. The management team is
regularly monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based internal audit
plan and periodically assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk assurance
purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and
control framework.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect
fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure
that proper accounting records are maintained and applicable
legislation and regulations are complied with. During the Year, through
discussions with the management, the internal audit team and external
auditors and with reference to a report submitted by the internal audit
team, the Board has conducted assessments and reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system in various perspectives, including, among others, financial
control, operational and compliance controls and risk management.
The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed by the
Board annually and each review covers a whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board, the guidance of the Audit Committee
and co-ordination with the external auditors. It regularly reports
to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and
recommendations on internal control. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than to eliminate risks
of failure in the Group’s operational systems and to achieve the
Group’s business objectives.
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During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
During the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and material internal control system and
is of the opinion that the resources for and qualifications of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
considers them effective and adequate. During the Year and as
at the date of this annual report, nothing has been found which
requires substantial improvement.

The Company adopted a policy for the Directors, senior
management and other employees of the Group on disclosure of
inside information to ensure that inside information is handled and
disseminated properly. During the Year, the Company regarded
information of an event as inside information if it assessed that
such event might impact the price or trading volume of the shares
of the Company. Should public disclosure of inside information be
required, announcements in relation to inside information, being
approved by the executive Directors under powers delegated by
the Board from time to time, would be published by the Company
as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and
18.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).

The Group has also adopted an internal policy for certain
employees who, because of their office in the Company, may from
time to time encounter inside information (as defined in the SFO).
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The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules and providing updated information
of the Group on the website of the Stock Exchange at*http://www.
hkexnews.hk”; and (i) the availability of latest information of the
Group and, if appropriate, press releases of the Company at the
Company’s website at“www.uni-president.com.cn”.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of
the Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was
held on 18 May 2018. Members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo
Chih-Hsien (Chairman), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
Mr. Fan Ren-Da Anthony, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Lo Peter, were
present at the AGM to answer questions raised by the shareholders
of the Company at the AGM. The Company’s external auditors and
Company Secretary also attended the 2018 AGM.

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong a written requisition specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as
at the date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s)
hold not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at a general
meeting of the Company.

Annual Report 2018 £ #§
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after three months
from the date of the original deposit and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
Company Secretarial Office by post to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or by fax to +852
2893 11560.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at the general meetings
under the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”)
and Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to
do so, they may request to convene an EGM as stipulated
above and specify the proposals in such written requisition.
Pursuant to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no
person shall, unless recommended by the Board, be eligible
for election to the office of director at any general meeting
unless during the period, which shall be at least seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting,
there has been given to the Company Secretary notice in
writing by a member of the Company (not being the person to
be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.
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Corporate Governance Report

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional
documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from
the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of the annual
report. In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the role of the Company Secretary (‘Company
Secretary”) of the Company was performed by Mr. Pang Ka Fai,
Angus (“Mr. Pang”). Mr. Pang served as an external service provider
to the Company and the primary contact person of the Company
with Mr. Pang is the chief financial officer of the Company.
According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Pang has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.
On 1 January 2019, Mr. Pang resigned as the Company Secretary
and Mr. Fung Kwan Ho, a full time employee of the Company, was
appointed as the Company Secretary.

#— P EZ R AR A R Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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To the shareholders of Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 85 to 228, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HEL KB e A AT B IRK P
At : +852 2289 8888 » K : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

° Deferred income tax assets

5 — ¥ EE R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Wi R BmHE

Refer to Note 2.24 and Note 5 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

F2H ESESEUBmEWE2.24 %K
5 °

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group has recognised revenue from sales
of goods amounted to RMB21,772 million.
EE2018F12A31BILFE - BEERER
AmiHE KRR ARK21, 77288 T

Revenue is recognised when the Group
satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring the control of promised good
or service to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for that
good or service.

g EEENTRARTFPEZRERIIREE
HENENEE BEremxkg S5EE
AR ZEE RN RGERESHRE
77 IR AR R Y 8 s

We focused on this area due to the huge
volume of revenue transactions generated
from sales of numerous kinds of products to
a large number of customers, including direct
customers and distributors in many different
locations.

MmN BEEEAENAMEERZIREFIR
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNETNAEEBRENEE

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls
in respect of the Group’s sales transactions from customer order’s
approval, goods delivery, sales recording, reconciliation of cash
receipts and customer’s records through to subsequent settlement
of trade receivables. In addition, we tested the general control
environment of the Group’s information technology systems and
the automatic controls that were related to revenue recording.
BT ERFARR TETRIAREER S 2 AEPES
BEINHEXINTEEH AmBEL KRR KRETFR
BHZE BEEBMERKERNEE 2 TBBIE M HEHES
Rt —MEHRFETAIS WAREKSBREHRZ 258
Bz o

We conducted testing of revenue recorded covering different
locations and customers, using sampling techniques, by examining
the relevant supporting documents including customer contracts
and orders, goods delivery notes and customer’s receipt notes.
In addition, we confirmed selected trade receivables balances as
at the balance sheet date. The items tested were selected on a
sample basis by considering the amount, nature and characteristics
of the customers.
HHERAMEAERN L HTRBERTRERE WA ES
BETHE  REHEBEERERRANtIEREEORETE 1
BREFEWCHSREFETAR N RMBBREEFP S8
MEMERsZ8 WEEANHRAEERNETEKE SEX
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Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date, by reconciling recognised
revenue with the goods delivery notes and customers’ receipt
notes, to assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct
reporting periods.

o BMH B EEABERBAEREHBANHEERR S ETA
AR EERENEE BRI - LA AR R W e
RREEE AR -

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s revenue from
sales of goods being tested was recognised in a manner consistent
with the Group’s revenue recognition accounting policy.
BREHFMATOET TE HFRE EXERRESKEZ®
REEERRER GTTBE -
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Deferred income tax assets

EEFEHEE

Refer to Note 2.21 and Note 20 to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
B2 BESKEGEESMBEHREMT2.21 R
720 °

As at 31 December 2018, deferred income
tax assets of approximately RMB109
million were recognised for tax losses that
can be carried forward, to the extent that
realisation of the related tax benefits through
the availability of future taxable profits is
probable. On the other hand, the Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB180 million in respect of
tax losses that can be carried forward against
future taxable income.

2018512310 - EHREREARKERHE
REFGEERNENT TS - ST H AR RER
A AREBEN BB EERABRELREN
BESBEHR/RAREIOBE T BN H
2R 2K B ] AT 4540 40 52 P 45 R B0 B S IS
B BEEERBERAEEMEHEENS
BHR/ARKIB0BE T

Significant judgement is required in
determining the recognition of deferred
income tax assets, considering whether future
taxable profit will be available against which
the accumulated tax losses can be utilised.
FRURFEPRS IR EENRIS R EE A
FERIARKRBREESE RN ERANTIFIF
FELA R RIEIN Rt IS 18 -

We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity and judgement on the forecast
of the availability and timing of future taxable
profits, including the key assumption of
revenue growth rates and gross margin.
ZRIZ G A RSB AEM L HEZH
B N B R R NPT SRR AT B IR M R H
AR TR AR B ER AR ERERNE
SHRMEER WEMIESBREFTFE-
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETUAEERRENEE

As part of our risk assessment in this area, we compared the
current year actual results with the prior year forecast to consider,
with hindsight, whether key assumptions included in that forecast
had been subject to management bias.

ERERTEN -2 BAEBRAFEEREELEUNFEZ
BANFER - AR FRAGRNFERNF 2 ARREACESFEEERE
mE -

We then evaluated and challenged management’s profit forecasts
for the next five years of individual entities that have accumulated
tax losses. Our assessment focused on certain key assumptions,
such as revenue growth rates and gross margin, by comparing
them to these entities’ historical operating results and future
operating plans, together with economic and industry forecasts.
We also considered the potential impact of reasonably possible
downside changes in these key assumptions.
BAFTEREREEEHEZEANBEENSR FRARIMIENR
RAOFRMEAZAEE ERMNVTEPERHBIZLEEZR
RIEF  PINE AR REFENE T2 RBLLEABFRAINE
SFEUR KRR EE B WS HLBRITE 2T B8 &AM
I P ERIEF AR EEN TREBEE A RS ERT RN E
R BETA -

The existence and amounts of tax losses, together with their expiry
dates, and the income tax rates applicable to the entities have
been verified by examining the tax returns submitted by the relevant
entities and reviewing the correspondences with the tax authorities.
BPEEERS FTAREBEE FHMEARETEH B AR
NEBRERBEENTLE ENERTE JHNFRAREARE
FRE PSR R -

Based on our work performed, we found that management’s
judgement and estimation for the recognition of deferred tax assets
were supported by the evidences that we gathered.
REBEHPPFATHESTIE RPRR BEBHEETHRENE
ERRzHEREAEER BB K-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

#— ¥ FEER AR 2 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.



=
pwec

EERERZEEENARAUBR
RARKFEHNEE

BERAEFARERBEEAEGMAEMR
) (BB BHREER) KRB (RAK
) MEBEREREEEMPENEREMB
BR UHERRREREMBRROEME
THEEHNRFFHERMEBMNWERERR
AATHEHARZEHES -

ERBEGEVBRRS EZ8ETE &
SERBEQLENREN YHEERBERATHE
ESEKLEEHNER URERAFELE
REGFER RIEFAEN BEXEBR
HFIERE P EEMERNERTER-

ELRE
E

RBETR B RS M| R AR
MEE

]
i3S

P

ERENMBRE B

BAWER THREMBHRRERES T
T 7 e 70 BRAF 288 BR 1 8 B B oK S AR Rt
BMEAERE YHABRRMEROEE
A - HFIER BT (FREE)®RE-
FRt 2 MR REREEMB A - AT S5
ABENABTAEAEMALTE ESAEE
MEF - AaERBIZSKFORE BTk
REZER (BAERSNER) ETTNEHN &
X —BARERRAFER LI - HRR
AMFTIARMFFH RS MREEEHRE
P BN ERERA T EREMBRRE
RERBR AW BRRAMELORERE
A1 B B0 3 AR B AT AR E K

B % B )RS
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BERAE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BERpKE
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the consolidated financial statements represent

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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HEARBYREMBRENETBEBEASE AR  The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

b % auditor’s report is Dou Wang, Angel.
EERKEETHMERM PricewaterhouseCoopers
RS Certified Public Accountants
HA 20193 H22H Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
84 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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HZE2018512 8318 IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
B 5t AR®TR AREKTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(g=5))
(Restated)
W Revenue 5 21,772,240 20,821,949
& A Cost of goods sold 6 (14,483,641)  (14,245,011)
EF Gross profit 7,288,599 6,576,938
HihEiE— %5 Other losses — net 7 (9,421) (31,526)
H At A Other income 8 382,406 383,777
HmAx Other expenses 6 (117,463) (75,682)
HERTSHERX Selling and marketing expenses 6 (5,097,691) (4,679,213)
TBAX Administrative expenses 6 (1,114,505) (987,683)
mEER Operating profit 1,331,925 1,186,611
BE WA Finance income 169,617 113,484
BhE PR AR Finance costs (46,142) (51,774)
BMEWA—F5E Finance income — net 10 123,475 61,710
FEANRZELHIRE T Share of profits of investments
accounted for using the
equity method 18 84,374 28,503
BRATE B AR R Profit before income tax 1,539,774 1,276,824
Frisfif = Income tax expense 11 (510,070) (398,608)
FERAQATAEREEA Profit for the year and
PEfRER attributable to equity holders
of the Company 1,029,704 878,216
FEAQARAERERA Earnings per share for
EhEFzERAER profit attributable to equity
(ANEBRARKES|E) holders of the Company
during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—EARREE - Basic and diluted 12 23.84 cents 7 20.33 cents 7

FO2E228A LMWK ALRE M B REK Z

—#5

The notes on pages 92 to 228 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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#HZE201812 8318 IFFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Bt & AR¥TR ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
F Bt Profit for the year 1,029,704 878,216
Htb2m (R W Other comprehensive (loss)/
income:
B EERm B Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
AHHESREE L Fair value losses on
NTHEEE-BRTFE available-for-sale financial assets,
net of tax 19 - (8,435)
Attt EcREERE Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets 19 - 20,419
TRIEF7IEEEzm A  Items that may not be reclassified
to profit or loss
BRAFERA Fair value losses on financial
HE2EKAZ assets at fair value through other
TRMEEZAFEEE comprehensive income, net of tax
—BRBFRE 19 (3,472) -
FEEHM2E (EFE) WE Other comprehensive (loss)/
—BRBIFE income for the year, net of tax (3,472) 16,984
FERADTEZFEA Total comprehensive income
EhzzmRnHEE for the year and attributable
to equity holders
of the Company 1,026,232 895,200

FO2E228A M AR AR EM B RERZ

—mEbITe consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 92 to 228 are an integral part of these

Annual Report 2018 F#§
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Land use rights

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using
the equity method

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Deferred income tax assets

Other receivables — non-current
portion

Long-term time deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Current income tax recoverable

Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Share premium account

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

gz
Note

14
15
16
17

18
19

19
20

24
26

22
23

24

25
26

27
27
28
28

2018412 A31H As at 31 December 2018

2018
AR®T R
RMB’000

1,967,815
9,906,103
335,929
15,391
747,837

218,621
328,684

11,912
550,000

14,082,292

1,459,019
530,062

1,002,819
31,888

4,626,478
7,650,266

21,732,558

39,764
4,829,899
2,506,851
5,845,793

13,222,307

2017
AR®EF T
RMB’000
(#&5E75)
(Restated)

2,108,701
10,504,391
353,123
18,959

719,716
222,093

286,972

7117

14,216,072

1,169,373
562,952

1,255,424

60,000
2,782,731

5,820,480

20,036,552

39,764
4,829,899
2,384,476
5,661,338

12,815,477

20174
1H1H

1 January
2017
ARET T
RMB’000
(gE5))
(Restated)

2,221,526
11,097,233
365,384
29,645

730,474
225,528

349,727

11,280

15,030,797

1,214,627
542,934

1,453,968

2,463,201
5,674,630

20,705,427

39,764
4,829,899
2,236,765
4,938,683

12,040,111

Annual Report 2018 £ #§



72018512 A31H As at 31 December 2018

20174

1H1H

1 January

2018 2017 2017

iz AR®BTR ARETT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(g&E3) (&&&E5))

(Restated) (Restated)

a8E LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
BEMSHAR Deferred income tax liability 20 183,094 174,175 191,802
BEE Borrowings 31 - 500,000 500,000
H M JE 1~ 5RI8 Other payables — non-current
— SRBNEAER > portion 30 237,655 251,319 430,879
420,749 925,494 1,122,681
RBERE Current liabilities
JEISE S ERFK Trade payables 29 1,554,219 1,396,000 1,138,154
Hin e IB N EsHEH Other payables and accruals 30 2,753,153 2,656,520 2,469,978
AHEE Contract liabilities 5(b) 1,698,986 1,369,209 1,574,355
BEE Borrowings 31 1,987,726 834,768 2,100,169
BEHMGEHAE Current income tax liabilities 95,418 39,084 259,979
8,089,502 6,295,581 7,542,635
wmes Total liabilities 8,510,251 7,221,075 8,665,316
ExREEHEEE Total equity and liabilities 21,732,558 20,036,552 20,705,427

F02FE228B B RALABT MK Z  The notes on pages 92 to 228 are an integral part of these
— &85 o consolidated financial statements.

FT6E228H A M MK B H2019F3H  The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 228 were
2R EEZS WM WH T ALTRRESE approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and were

BHEE- signed on its behalf.
BER Bz
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HITEF HITESF
Executive Director Executive Director

Annual Report 2018 F#§



For the year ended 31 December 2018 #; 201812 318 IF F &

AQRERBEEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
P &E B R4 RE Hft e REEF ait
Share Share Other Retained
Note capital premium reserves earnings Total
R2017F1A18 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2017 39,764 4,829,899 2,236,765 4,933,683 12,040,111
2EKE Comprehensive income
FEmF Profit for the year - - - 878,216 878,216
H‘rﬁli Other comprehensive income
AfHE HEQFZ — Fair value losses on avallable-for-
NS EE&TE BREi%E sale financial assets, net of tax 19 - = (3,435) — (3,435)
-nHHESRERERE - Imparment of available-for-sale
financial assets 19 - - 20,419 - 20,419
Htt2EWELE Total other comprehensive income - = 16,984 = 16,984
FERZEKRRAR Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 16,984 878,216 895,200
BREEAETZRS Transaction with owners
BAREETHE Appropriation to statutory reserves 28(c) = = 130,727 (130,727 =
H2016F B 2R E Dividends relating to 2016 = = = (119,834) (119,834)
20175128318 248  Balance at 31 December 2017 39,764 4,829,899 2,384,476 5,561,338 12,815,477
R20175128318 Balance at 31 December 2017
BEE2 e as originally presented 30,764 4,829,809 2384476 5561338 12815477
IR # Change in accounting policy - - (33,345) 33,345 -
201851 A1H Restated total equity
REJZERAE as at 1 January 2018 39,764 4,829,899 2,351,131 5,594,683 12,815,477
2EKE Comprehensive income
EEEF Profit for the year - - - 1,029,704 1,029,704
Hip2ENRE Other comprehensive income
—BATERA - Fair value losses on financial
HiZ2EBAR assets at fair value through other
PREELATERE comprehensive income, net of tax
~BEEE 19 - - (3472) - (3472)
Htt2ENEEE Total other comprehensive income - - (3,472) - (3,472)
FEZR2EKRARE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (3,472) 1,029,704 1,026,232
BREAETZRS Transaction with owners
BREATRE Appropriation to statutory reserves 28(c) = = 159,192 (159,192) =
H017E BB 2R Dividends relating to 2017 - - - (619,402)  (619,402)
MW2018%F12A31A 248  Balance at 31 December 2018 39,764 4,829,899 2,506,851 5,845,793 13,222,307

FO2FE228E I BR AL AT HRKXZ  The notes on pages 92 to 228 are an integral part of these
—EB5 e consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest expenses paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities
Payment for land use rights
Proceeds from disposal of
land use rights and property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of investment properties
Purchases of intangible assets
Proceeds from capital reduction of
investment in a joint venture
Payment for financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from sales of financial
assets through profit or loss
Increase in restricted bank deposits
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits
with maturity more than 3 months
Dividends received from
joint ventures and an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

B 5
Note

32

32

18

18

2018

AR®BTR

RMB’000

3,110,451
(57,752)
(489,495)

2,563,204

(275)

71,388
(908,149)

(2,747)
(4,826)

60,000
(33)

(2,661,119)

56,253

(3,389,508)

2017
ARETT
RMB’000

3,114,670
(93,562)
(568,345)

2,452,763

49,741
(994,012)
(6,331)
(462)
35,766

(60,000)

4,663
(500)

185,481

3,495

(782,159)
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HZE2018512 8318 IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings

Dividends paid to equity holders
of the Company

Net cash received/(used)
in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase

in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of the year
Exchange gain/(losses) on cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

MBmiz

consolidated financial statements.

=S
Note

32
32

26

2018
AR®TR
RMB’000

17,013,970
(16,361,483)

(619,402)

33,085

(793,219)

2,356,350

814

1,563,945

2017
ARBTIT
RMB’000

11,062,327
(12,326,829)

(119,834)

(1,384,3306)

286,268

2,076,839

(6,757)

2,356,350

The notes on pages 92 to 228 are an integral part of these

Annual Report 2018 £ #§



e B R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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M EREZERBRAA (AR
al])R2007F7R4B B (H = B
EREE) EREHNETMKLAE
HEBRAG - ARAIGFMPERE 2
ik AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands °

ARRRREEBRAR MEWMBRF
(BEARBGH[AEE]) TBETE
ARKEME ([HE)REEERIFE
BB R EAEER ([FESRHRTE
MER]) -

ARFIEEKEERERAREE A
DAl R2007FE12 8178 £ & BB
ERGFERAR ([BRZM])ERLE
mlEml)e

BRARAFHAIN AR MBHREAAR
BT (TARSTT]) 25

EEETHEME

AMEINERREEZEEAV B RE
RBAARAZEIZRABR -BREBHA
S ZERREBERNRAZI A
FE-

2.1 RBIEE

REB 2z e W wER TR
EERBEMBREEA (&
AMBWE L] RE - ZFK
BMBRERCRE L RARERELR
B ARFEAENETEREE
LREBERN (BEITETE) -

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC
Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (‘RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRS”). They have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments) measured at
fair value.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2.1

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4,

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments to standards relevant to the

Group are mandatory adopted for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

° HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers”

° Annual Improvements 2014-2016 cycle

° Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers to

Investment Property”

° Interpretation 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration”

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2018 £ #§ 9 8



e B R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESBERME (&)

04

2.1

wmREE (&)

21.1 Bt HRRFEZEE
(#4&)

@ AEEERAAIFE RASIEETE
B (%)

LTEBHBRELER BTN
20181 H1R M B E ARk -
WEREEBMLEEA (T
BRERGREMHZEE) -

o FEMBWMEEAE2R
A TABMD XN B 20!
KEt &

B ®

s FAMBWMEEAFARE
BRE 3=

SEAREHGERR  WARR
BBV BRELERFEIRLER
PR EERNBISFRIELE T
EBWAE - IR E AR
THEyZEBTHRCERSE
TERTGEAZEAYRARE
HAfE o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

The following amendments of HKFRSs are effective
for the first time for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2018 and not relevant to the Group’s
operations (although they may affect the accounting for

future transactions and events):

. Amendments to HKFRS 2 “Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment

Transactions”

° Amendments to HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”

The Group had to change its accounting policies and
make certain retrospective adjustments following the
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. Most of the other
amendments listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future

periods.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

EEESBREE (& 2

21 RBEHE (&

4= )

21.1 B BHRRBEZEHE

(4

(b) T BEEMER2018F 1
H1H G689 81 B F R A
B A IR B IEFTERANEI#TET
R - #ERZ FTEEFERNISET

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 and have

REFE: not been early adopted:
Effective for
RATEES annual periods
AR beginning on
EEBEEN or after
FRnEGEEY HE 1951318 () HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 (i)
F16%
BEREENE  MEREEL 195118 (HK)Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income 1 January 2019
TR Tax Treatments
BEMEREEY  EBAREREC  09BIAIR Amendmentsto  Prepayment Features 1 January 2019
EORE RHER HKFRS 9 with Negative
Compensation
FReiENENE NBELAR 1951 1A Amendmentsto  Long-term Interests in 1 January 2019
i £Eb32 HKAS 28 Associates and Joint
&9 Ventures
NHEE NOE1A1E Annual 1 January 2019
WITEEEY Improvements
EENE 2015-2017 cycle
Fagel  HEBTERYL 09FiAIE Amendmentsto  Plan Amendment, 1 January 2019
Ealt ) i HKAS 19 Curtailment or
Settlement
EEYBAEEN  2BNRE MNEIAIE Amendmentsto  Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
X ) HKFRS 3
FRefEHRg EANEs A0E1 A1A Amendmentsto  Definition of Material 1 January 2020
REESE HKAS 1 and
B E HKAS 8
EYBEEE  RRAD ANEIRIR HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2022
Bl
BEbAMEEY  RAEE fER Amendments to  Sale or contribution To be determined
EI0R R HBENEY HKFRS 10 and of assets between
BREHE] AERTERZ HKAS 28 an investor and its
EREE BENEYES associate or joint

venture
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2 EESTHRME(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

96

21.1 Bt HRRFEZEE
(4

() TSI EEEMER2018F 1
A 1H F16 887 B F Z R 4
R A IR BIEBTERAN B FTET
BRI #ER 2 Fap FERAIEET
REpFE: (&)

) FEMBWMELELE 165 B

PEHE

BB B HRE LR E1658 742016
FIRBEM - HBSEBAREE
BERERBRIHMAE - 1A
REEERERECHNES T
WK - RIEF LR BRI
BE(FHEEEEZER) R
HHRENSRERE - B—FIME
RAEEHREEERES-

i
2

S
It

AEEEEVIRB DR REFE
HBRELENFIRNOFTEHES
AARAENARBEREFNME
HERF -ZENTBZRELREE
REHENSFTHE-

RERE B REE T REEA
R EAE R ARYE6,550,000
T (R MI5E33) c A2 S A EH -

M ARH8,952,000T B A E
AR W R BERPIRERETE
REBHAL -

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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21 mEEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted: (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 16, Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet
by lessees, as the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

Impact

The Group has set up a project team which has
reviewed all of the Group’s leasing arrangements over
the last year in light of the new lease accounting rules
in HKFRS 16. The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating leases.

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB66,550,000,
see note 33. Of these commitments, approximately
RMB8,952,000 relate to short-term leases which will be
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in the
income statement.
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2 EESTTHEME (& 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21.1 B BHRRBEZEHE
(#4)

(b) T BEEMER2018F 1
H1H G689 81 B F R A
B A IR BIERTERANEIFTET
R - #ERZ FTEEFERNISET
R2FE: ()

) BBMBHRELERE 165 H

g (&)

2E (B

B THERENS  ASLEBEH
R2019F1 1B REAREE
HWARKESTEEBTL HEAEA
R#¥538 8 T (&5 12018412
AB1HERNEBEN R REFTHE
NREHARER) -

NEBEFEE - 2019F K T 12 4B
FERFEMFRMB D OAR
#563,0007T °

AREEEBERSIBNHERK
HEEETHOERRET WL
ReRkMERSRER D HE
B > 89 AR ¥1,724,0007T °

AEBEERBEANEHLTE
KBt AEEERT S Y5
WREETMERZE - A BH
FREBIERELE THRIMIE-

21 mEEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted: (Continuea)

(i) HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

For the remaining lease commitments the Group
expects to recognise right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB57 million on 1 January 2019,
lease liabilities of RMB53 million (after adjustments for
prepayments and accrued lease payments recognised
as at 31 December 2018).

The Group expects that net profit after tax will decrease
by approximately RMB563,000 for 2019 as a result of
adopting the new rules.

Operating cash flows will increase and financing cash
flows decrease by approximately RMB1,724,000 as
repayment of the principal portion of the lease liabilities
will be classified as cash flows from financing activities.

The Group’s activities as a lessor are not material and
hence the Group does not expect any significant impact
on the financial statements. However, some additional
disclosures will be required from next year.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 EESHHEHME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

98

21.1 Bt HRRFEZEE
(#4&)

(b) T HREEMER018FT
A 1H F16 887 B F Z R 4
R A IR BIEBTERAN B FTET
BRI #ER 2 Fap FERAIEET
REpFE: (&)

) FEMBWMELELE 165 B

5 (#)

A5 B ey PR B 5

7N B A 2E I A 58 I B 40 B R
2019F1 A1H A ZER - K
SERERGEREEL BETEgY
BRARMAIFENLRSEET
B RS EBRRARHE
EaBESHETE (REMENK
FEAAERAIIEHAE) -

P& B RS ERIF165% N
BEEMEAREN BEEHEN
BATSR RIS HHEEER LA
BRKOZXHEREAFZENE
Al

21 mEEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted: (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption. Right-of-use assets will be measured at the
amount of the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for
any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

Apart from HKFRS 16, there are no other standards
that are not yet effective and that would be expected
to have a material impact on the entity in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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2 EESHBEREE (&)

2

SHBEZ 2D

AMERERKNBT Y B RERE
AFESR eMIAI REBYH
BEEREISR[REFTFPALH
ZWam | HAKREHTBHREROF
& 3 [ B 3 FE 201851 A1 H
FERERBEHEMERESRM
TR EYHT & R

(@ HUBHERZZE

MR ER R RRORE - BT
R RRATES

HNB B BREEREOHR —R
BEHLIREMNETEY AR
MY R gmE T AERIN AR
EERMNB BV BREER BN
RERBEETEERE - Bl E5
SRR PRI EHPN 2017612 A31
HNEERABERPRME -HEER
2018F1H1AMEIMEEAER
R o

AREBEFERE2EEBHEIRMNE
B R EERE1GS WY
2017TF B FEM LR FTHT
Ep7l

TREI BB EHRKIAB ERA
HE - AREXIFENARLEH
ATER - FIFHRRAEEN TR
FANEL EFENBEE-

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers on the Group’s financial
statements and also discloses the new accounting
policies that have been applied from 1 January 2018,
where they are different to those applied in prior
periods.

(@) Impact on the financial statements

As a result of the changes in the entity’s accounting
policies, prior year financial statements had to be
restated.

HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating
comparative information with the exception of certain
aspects of hedge accounting. The Group used modified
retrospective approach while adopting HKFRS 9. The
reclassification and adjustments are therefore not
reflected in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017,
but are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2018.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the full
retrospective approach and has restated comparatives
for the 2017 financial year.

The following tables show the adjustments recognised
for each individual line item. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included. The
adjustments are explained in more detail by standard
below.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 EZETBEBE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 EBFtBEz2® (E&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(@) HUBHEFETE () (a) Impact on the financial statements (Continued)
EB

2017 BMBRE 20175 Bi# 2018%
12A31R %8 12A318  BBHE 1A1A
Ex275 % 15% KEH  ERIFR &E75

31

December

2017 31

As December 1 January
originally HKFRS 2017 HKFRS 2018
EESER (H%)  Balance sheet (extract) presented 15  Restated 9  Restated

AHNEEBEE Available-for-sale financial

(A EE]) assets (‘AFS’) 222,093 - 222,093 (222,093) -
BATERA Financial assets at fair
HitzEBAZ value through other
SREE ([ comprehensive income
RAYEF AR (‘FvOCI)
EL OND) - - - 222,093 222,093
HENFIER Other payables and accruals
[EiTE R 4,025,729 (1,369,209) 2,656,520 - 2,656,520
anak Contract liabilties - 1369209 1,369,209 - 1,369,209
HinfkE Other reserves 2,384,476 - 2,384,476 (33,345) 2,351,131
REEH Retained earnings 5,561,338 - 5,561,338 33,345 5,594,683
BB
B ®E
REZ%5  ZEAIZE155 rE5
Statement of
profit or loss
BuRk and other
Htt2EWK=ER comprehensive As originally
(F8%) —20174F income (extract) - 2017 presented HKFRS 15 Restated
& Revenue 21,296,534 (474,585) 20,821,949
HEMMEHEMY  Seling and marketing expenses 5,153,798 (474,585) 4,679,213
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2 EESTTHEHME (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 BFBEz2H (&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) EEBHBHKEERFEIF LM (b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

I A
() SERIASIEA AR EZRARE () Equity investments previously classified as AFS

BEMBEREENFIRIMATE
BRI EREIREREREE
MEMABENRER DBREFE .
TRTARIER SREERE

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of
financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and

KRG RIZHBARE

REBEEREMEERA ([E
tE2EWAL) R 2IERAED
BERIHEENRAKREN AT
B2y REAZSREARER
BRI E s g R R AR
e A - R2018F1A1H A
FE AR 222,093,000t 2 &
ERAHEEENDEERATY
BEFFAEMEERA - MR EEIE
58 A R #33,345,0007T B #E 1R
BRANEFDEELNTFERE-

H2018F1 A1ARKRMNE BT
WEERFEES T EER S
BEHBEE UKV BRE
NERHN SBELFAE -5
BRSEE P A T UK aE2.11 < 1R &
BB B mEERFEIR(7.2.15)
R(7.2.26)8) B FE X AR AE
BN EERE R TR A WES
P BB T o

hedge accounting.

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) changes in the fair value of all its equity
investments previously classified as AFS, because
these investments are held as long-term strategic
investments that are not expected to be sold in the
short to medium term. As a result, assets with fair
values of RMB222,093,000 were reclassified from AFS
to financial assets at FVOCI and net impairment loss of
RMB33,345,000 was reclassified from retained earnings

to fair value reserve on 1 January 2018.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from
1 January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in
the financial statements. The new accounting policies
are set out in Note 2.11 below. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26),
comparative figures have not been restated as the

Group does not have any hedge instrument.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 EESHHEHME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

22 EBFtBEz2® (E&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) FEEBEEIREERFEIN M (b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
TAH(#E)

() SERIAEEAAHRNEZRAE ) Equity investments previously classified as AFS
Z (&) (Continued)

DIERFTE Classification and measurement

R20185F1A1E (VIRIEAEE
B EERNFIORWAL) - K
SEEEECHHERNRARKHE
P REEMNEBEN  AHHE
ERMIEASRETEYBHREE
AR TR E BRI - ZEH D

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed
which business models apply to the financial assets
held by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.
The main effects resulting from this reclassification are

B EEZE20T . as follows:
EAFESA
AHEE HMEEKRA
ERMEE-2018F1H1H Financial assets - 1 January 2018 AFS FVOCI
A20175F 12831 B AR 48 Closing balance 31 December 2017
- REBEEBGHER - HKAS 39
IR E 222,093 -
HEEEREAAHELEE Reclassify non-trading equities from
EFHBEEERAFERA AFS to FVOCI
HEi2mKA (222,093) 222,093
A2018F1 B1B WA & 64 Opening balance 1 January 2018
- REEEBVEREEAR - HKFRS 9
FOEFE - 222,093

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 EEESTHRESE(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 BFBEz2H (&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) EEBHBEHEEEREIREH (b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
IE (&)

() FERIAIEAARHEZRAK () Equity investments previously classified as AFS
Z (&) (Continued)

DERETE (8) Classification and measurement (Continued)

ZERPHEAEERGNFES The impact of these changes on the Group’s equity is

PR as follows:

HAVERE HERERN

VR W
Effect on Effect on
fair value retained
reserves earnings
A2018FE1HA1BE WHi# 48 Opening balance 1 January 2018
- RESBSTER - HKAS 39
ERILiA -] (8,430) 5,561,338
EIEEERERTHEE Reclassify non-trading equities from
BB ERATERA AFS to FVOCI
Hi2EmmA (33,345) 33,345
A2018FE1HA1B HWHi# 48 Opening balance 1 January 2018
— RIS BB HRE 2R - HKFRS 9
HOWTHE (41,775) 5,594,683

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] OS
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2 EESBERME (&)

2.2

104

SRR 2EH (F)

(b) FEEBEEIREERFEIN M
TH(#E)

i) EEEEZHE

AEBBEMEEE BV KRS
ZAFOFHRAEEBRER Y
ERBEANNSREE:

e HEEMWEWEZRN:
IS4

s REBERAFEZHMER

MBEREZRBEEREES
B I E B G5t R FI9HR M
RECEENEEBEREZNE
B AREFTERBERBHEER
SRANBORETHAMEANLF

BRI EEMRBETE-

HARESRBECFEYNAET
BAEMBREEAFOFBELE
H AR PR - B30 8 55 R R B & 1A

& W B 5 BR K

AEEERAEBMBRMEERNE
MMM A A EBEEARE
B BEAERERIRE SE
REEDAPERBERE -RE
% R2018F1A1E 2 5
BRETESKEE - ME3.1(b)
RUEEEAEBRBENFE -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are
subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables for sales of goods; and

° other financial assets at amortised cost.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of
these classes of assets.

While cash and cash equivalents were also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, no
impairment loss was identified.

Trade receivables

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 did not
have material change after reassessment. Note
3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the
allowance.
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EEESTHRBE (&

22 BHE22H (&)

(b) BEUBHREEREIRZH
ITE (&)

(i) EHEEZHBIE(E)
RN EZEBEREE

REHEKAGEZHEMEREE
BIE B W BB 5 )8 I H b E UL
FIE - HEBREMNELRRK
BT AEBEREDEMNTIHN
AHMBERET Hewm B AR
KEERR WA 12(EA
EHEEBEETERBRME-
REFFTH%E  R2018F1A1H
ZIEEREBTEENEH-

(c) EBEBUBHEERE15HK
BEFEHMZ Wit —RAZF

e RS AR YA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
amounts due from related parties and other receivables,
which are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term, and therefore the impairment provision
is determined as 12 months expected credit losses.
The loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 did not have

material change after reassessment.

(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers - Impact of adoption

E-/4

NEEB2018F1 A1HEREME
B RS EBFEIHEKERF
ARz HBREFER TR
By P RE T BHRE AR
BEHAZE - AELEEHD BPHER
HRB W W01 7TE B B EE
ML BB THEITES - BEMS
REREFABE (2018F1A1R)
NEEABRTRRAZCHEYE

RS

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers from 1 January 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. The Group has adopted the new
rules retrospectively and has restated comparatives
for the 2017 financial year. In summary, the following
adjustments were made to the amounts recognised
in the balance sheet at the date of initial application (1

AT January 2018):
B [ic%
g BRMBRE
R 251855 B 58155
SFENERESE AENERESHE
2017412A31H E¥ioE 2018%1H1H
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
Hih B RIERESER Other payables and accruals 4,025,729 (1,369,209) 2,656,520
EHBE Contract liabilities - 1,369,209 1,369,209

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 EESTHESE(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 EBFtBEz2® (E&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(c) FBEBUBHEEREISHERK (c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
BEFG#Z W — Ry 2 & Customers - Impact of adoption (Continued)
& (&)
REEBES BRESBHE
ZR|ZE185 &5 2 B SE155%
STENEESHE SENEESE
2016F12A31A EHAE  2017F1A18
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 1 January
2016 Reclassification 2017
HMPEMRIERESE R Other payables and accruals 4,044,333 (1,574,355) 2,469,978
BHEE Contract liabilities - 1,574,355 1,574,355
HZE2017F12831A L&
Year ended 31 December 2017
REEBE REEBEHH
A SE185% iR & %R SE155%
SENSE EFSE FENSE
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
amount Reclassification amount
U 25 Revenue 21,296,534 (474,585) 20,821,949
HERMISHEERX Selling and marketing
expenses 5,158,798 (474,585) 4,679,213
AEBER2018F1 H1H k20174 There was no impact on the Group'’s retained earnings
1A ZREBBFIWEZ BT as at 1 January 2018 and 1 January 2017.
pe.
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2 EESTTHEHME (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

22 BFBEz2H (&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(c) EEBUBHKEERFEISHERK (c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
BEFSE#AZ W — RN & Customers — Impact of adoption (Continued)
& (48)
0 RAZZEEE () Accounting for refunds
AEBBEFATEZEARINA The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
R EmIEH RN - REBE R H products are under the standard warranty terms.
ERNFRAMEENERMGTER Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
R BARERERNBERARE returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
BE SAERRERNEEL TS and low value of each individual product, the amount of
Ao BRERHRE W T KA B products returned were immaterial. It is highly probable
MEBEBREE - FHit - HEBRERE that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
FEREBE - AEENSmE R recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
BT LR REREFTER for goods return was recognised. The validity of this
SHEELAEM- AL EBREEY assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
e EBEIHEEERT & reassessed at each reporting date. As a result, no
b2 accounting impact for refunds while applying HKFRS
15.
()  EFBRHEE DL EE (i) Accounting for customer loyalty programme
ANEBIWEHEHETRATES S E The Group does not introduce any customer loyalty
BEAVBHREEREISHETEN programme which is likely to be affected by the HKFRS
R BWERE - 15.
(i)  FIEFTHZ D5 EE (i) Accounting for payment to customers

JERB B BIRELERIFE155E ]
EEERENEFP 2REWLE
REFZRSERTOR KWL
FriERe s & ER D (BRIEZ
NASARROERIRBERAE P
U EL) o B It > 20174F 2 W2 &
HERMBHEERIBDARE
474,585,0007T ° FA20184F + U =
RBERMSHEERIRLS AR
#500,855,0007T °

The application of HKFRS 15 may result in the
consideration payable to a customer recorded as
a reduction of the arrangement’s transaction price,
thereby reducing the amount of revenue recognised,
unless the payment is for a distinct good or service
received from the customer. As a consequence,
revenue and selling and marketing expenses for 2017
decreased by RMB474,585,000. For 2018, revenue
and selling and marketing expenses decreased by
RMB500,855,000.
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2 EESBERME (&)

2.2

2.3

108

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SRR 2EE (F) 2.2

(c) BBHBIHEERFIS5K
BEFEHNZWiE— &

& (F)

) HBEFENEBZEERBEE
=27

AEBENTEEEREEABERNA

ET2ENEY UARMBBFB

AR E155E M E -

s HHMEPENZKWNAEHDN
BEBETE AE 4 E
NZEEEFER (R
2017F12A31HB A AR
#4,369,209,0007T * B
20171 A1 AARE
1,574,355,0007T) °

SN ERNEGT 2.3

231 #2858

BN BEHLQRRE ABHZE
A - M B A B hiEhl e
BEAKEERRGSEE AR X
MAREZEFEE ARG TBEEA
BE o

SEARRM R H AR ZME
EZHEBRARBRNEHTAY
Ho ARBRBETTHH -MBA
AIERSHC KT EFLHE
IAREOR AR B 2 @ St IR IR FF —
o
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Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers - Impact of adoption (Continued)
() Presentation of assets and liabilities related to

contracts with customers

The Group has also voluntarily changed the
presentation of certain amounts in the balance sheet to
reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15.

o Contract liabilities in relation to advance receipts
from customers were previously included in other
payables and accruals (RMB1,369,209,000 as at
31 December 2017, RMB1,574,355,000 as at 1
January 2017).

Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(@  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 9 either in the income statement or as a
change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@  Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

(b6)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.4 Principle of equity accounting

2.4.1 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (note 2.4.3), after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.4.2 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2018 F i /] ’] /]



)

B 75 R 2R MY AE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Eg n-i-IBZﬁimg (mﬁ)

2.4 REZEEER (8)

242 & H (&)

>

S DX

/7

N

—73

7% ( MTE?ZA.S))\EE"

2.4.3 %

REEDSDE RENPEKA
R HRETHBUARBEER
SEEHEREHRUKBRENRE
B YREM R RS EREEE
HREHREMEEKEHE

REBRERN
B B RERR A 1R B AR E (B HRL

R e YN

B R A S ARKENER
ERUBBRZBERMNER
{EfA] H A S 1R R B R AR R
AEBETSRRE —FEE
ERRS - ERAREERIELM

B
DA °

'l /] 2 % — %P HZER AR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2018 F#§

ik g T RARGREERBERE
£ RAZLENESRAER

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Principle of equity accounting (Continued)

2.4.2 Joint arrangements (Continued)
Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (note 2.4.3), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.4.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Principle of equity accounting (Continued)

2.5

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

2.4.3 Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.10.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities held at fair value through
OCI are included in the fair value reserves in other
comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

()  Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’, in the

income statements.

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

17
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2 — 5 years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in the income statement or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

2.11.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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211 eREE (&) 2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
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2.11.3 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the income statement and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in ‘administrative expenses’
in the income statement.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the income statement and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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211 eREE (&) 2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
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2.11.3 Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in the income statement as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

2.11.4 Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 3.1(b) for further
details.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017 the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following categories:

o financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
o loans and receivables, and
° available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification determined on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determined the classification of its investments at initial
recognition. See note 21 for details about each type of
financial asset.

() Reclassification

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.
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2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
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2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

0 Reclassification (Continueq)

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade receivables’, ‘other
receivables’, ‘restricted bank deposits’ and ‘cash and
bank balances’ in the balance sheet (also refer to Notes
2.15 and 2.16).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

(i) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

(i) Recognition and measurement (Continueq)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as ‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

(@)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueqd)

(@)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

(b)  Assets classified as available for sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period

whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Assets classified as available for sale (Continued)

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement —
is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of item being hedged. Derivative instruments
held by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised

immediately in the consolidated income statement.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable

variable selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See note 2.11.2 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
note 2.11.4 and 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.16 Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-

current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the

facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Borrowing costs

2.21

#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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2 EESTTHEME (& 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

221 EHRIEEFEH (&) 2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
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(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)
(Continued)

The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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2 EESTHRME(H&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 W 25 7 52 2.24 Revenue recognition
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Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells beverages and
instant noodles. Sales are recognised when control
of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer
has full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a period of
time. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is
only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in other payables and accruals) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales. No element of financing is deemed
present as the sales are made with a credit term of 60-
90 days, which is consistent with market practice.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of good's (Continued)

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amount of
products returned were immaterial. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
for goods return was recognized. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion
activities, the Group did not provide a distinct good
or service to customers and therefore recorded as a
deduction of sales price.

The Group does not expect to have any contract
containing financing components. As a consequence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transition prices
for the time value of money.

2.25 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 10 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

2.27 Leases
(@) The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group made
upfront payments to obtain operating leases of land
use rights. The upfront payments of the land use rights
are recorded as assets and amortised over the lease
periods varying from 20 to 70 years on a straight-line
basis.

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 87
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

(b) The Group is the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk
] Foreijgn exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the USD for
certain PRC subsidiaries whose functional currency are
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

139
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3 BH¥EKRERE(HF) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

31 BREREZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

140

(a) WEEE (&)
O SMNEmRBE (E)

EEECHERR BREERTF]
BEEAENEEEHINERR - BE
BERRBEXHMEHEREERA
BELMNIMNERR AEEERBE
REASME T ERERAK W h
SEMBRE BERKNEERS
HEERNEELRBALIFER
DREENERER MEEL
SINEE LR

HRAEEARBIERZEIENR
wmIGKBPEAM 5 HZE
BERAARBEBINEER - HMER
SREEERAZEEXAR I
Mo (1E7T]) BT (178
T EHE 2 BUE 5 MR (Hf &
23) R MIRTTHER (H5E26) &
B8 (MEE31) -

72018%F12 8318 - fiWifr A b
HRFTE MAREHETRE
TLHE 82 1E5% B £2018%F 12
AS18 I FE /& % 7 5 R
/18 I #) A R #108,0007T (2017
Fomd HEmMARBE241,000
) EETBEHRBEUAETRE
TAHENEEARIRE MIRTTAS
Fr8BrE X EE G-

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2018 F#§

(a) Market risk (Continued)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. To manage their
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities,
entities in the Group use forward contracts outside the
PRC, transacted by group treasury. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from recognised assets or
liabilities, such as trade receivables (Note 23), cash and
bank balances (Note 26) and borrowings (Note 31),
part of which are denominated in United States dollar
(“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (‘HKD”).

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would have been
approximately RMB108,000 lower/higher (2017:
RMB241,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD and HKD
denominated borrowings and cash and bank balances.
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3 HERRERE(H&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
31 BREBEE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ WEERE (&) (a) Market risk (Continued)
0 SMNEERE (&) () Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
[R\ B A Exposure
TR AEERRERARETE The Group’s major exposure to foreign currency risk at
EERINE RS (AARETTH the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB’000,
B): was as follows:
M EH A
UETHE UB T EtE E¥HE
Other
usb HKD currencies

denominated denominated denominated

12018%12A31A As at 31 December 2018
Be Cash 14,968 2,653 206
EWEHER Trade receivables 1,564 3,231 -
RITIEE Bank borrowings (13,726) - =
R2017F12A318 As at 31 December 2017
Re Cash 14,375 3,297 2,402
ERE HER Trade receivables 218 2434 -
RITIRE Bank borrowings (13,068) - -
RERKBER S Amounts recognised in the income statement
FAEREBERRER TS ZIMNER During the year, the following foreign-exchange related
SRR amounts were recognised in the income statement:
2018 2017
AR®T R AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEWAN—FE Finance income — net
—REEEENL — Foreign exchange gains/(losses)
M5,/ (E18) on financing activities 344 (5,857)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to major equity securities price
risk because of its holding of listed equity investments
which are classified on the consolidated balance sheet
as FVOCI (Note 19). The Group has not hedged its price
risk arising from investments in equity securities financial
assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with reference to
quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2018, if the quoted market price of
the listed equity investments had increased/decreased
by 10% with all other variables held constant, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s publicly traded FVOCI
and total equity would be approximately RMBO0.7 million
(2017: RMB1.0 million) higher/lower than the current
value.

For the Group’s equity investments that are not
publicly traded, the fair value is determined with
reference to valuations based on a combination of
income and market approaches. The market approach
takes reference to certain multiples of publicly traded
companies.
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3 BHMHEEKRERE (F) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
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31 HEEKREZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and bank balances (Note 26) and
borrowings (Note 31) with interest charges, the Group
have no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 26 and Note 31 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB24,477,000 (2017: RMB9,708,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank balances which would offset partially
by interest expenses on borrowings.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, at FVOCI and at FVPL, favourable
derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding
receivables.

() Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. As at 31
December 2018, the bank deposits and cash at bank
were deposited in reputable financial institutions which
are considered with low credit risk, the table below
shows bank deposits and cash at bank balances by
counterparties:

2018 2017
AR¥ET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

R57T Counterparties
—g KA MiRTT* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 158,665 228,583
—HINEERTT — Foreign owned banks 1,234,429 753,714
—HEANEEIRT — Other domestic commercial banks 3,782,073 1,799,639
5,175,167 2,781,936

* MAPEBEARITEERET
BIRITIRODARRE  PRERE
RITRMBR AR REETR
MARRA RFBEZERRITR
DARRT -

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2018 F#§

Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
() Risk management (Continued)

If wholesale customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit
limits by wholesale customers is regularly monitored by
line management.

For derivative financial instruments, management has
established limits so that, at any time, less than 10%
of the fair value of favourable contracts outstanding are
with any individual counterparty.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for credit
deterioration.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of goods that
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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BsEREE ()
(b) EEmEE (&)
i) EEEEHRE(E)
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AEBERBEEVBREELSE
O A EEHREERE
RNPHERE SAEERKES
REARBREEAGTEHANERE
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SHRACREHGEEERRSH
MEMRE B - ERELEL R
2018412 H31H k201841 A1
BHEENEEAERREHNEED
BABEE (RANETBVBHEREE
AIZE95R) IR T -

2018128311 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December
2018 and 1 January 2018 (on adoption of HKFRS 9)
was determined as follows for both trade receivables
and contract assets:

ROXA 91Z180% 1812365k  —FiL &t
Within 91 to 181 to Over
90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total

BHEALE Expected loss rate 0.82% 16.86% 71.28%  100.00%
BEHE Gross carrying amount
-EHRUER — trade receivables 504,102 35,402 2,337 1,870 543,711
FERE Loss allowance 4,145 5,968 1,666 1,870 13,649
ROOKA  91E180K 1812365k  —FLA G A&
Within 91to 181 10 Over
2018F1A1H 1 January 2018 90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total
BHEALE Expected loss rate 0.82% 17.60% 72.84% 100.00%
BEHE Gross carrying amount
-BHRUER ~ trade receivables 532,329 41,368 3,366 1,367 578,430
FERE Loss allowance 4377 7,282 2,452 1,367 15,478

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 BBRERERE (&)

3.1

BEEEE (&)

(b) EFEmEE(E)

(i) 2EEERE (&)

B 5 RWERR (&)
201812 A31H « & BR F &Y

HMARABERBRDERNEIRE
(GEL RN U

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)
Trade receivables (Continued)
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at

31 December 2018 are reconciled to the opening losses
allowances as follows:

2018 2017
AR¥TR AREKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
12H31H 31 December — calculated under
—RIBEFBEGH LR HKAS 39
FEI95RAE 15,478 10,086
FREBAVIRE BT ED Amounts restated through opening
Epjena:E retained earnings = -
R2018F1H1HH Opening loss allowance as at 1 January
H W s B 2018 - calculated under HKFRS 9
—IREEB S ER
B HE 15,478 10,086
FRARBERERERL (Decrease)/increase in loss allowance
EBEEE ORd) /18 recognised in the income statement
(F=¥6) during the year (Note 6) (1,702) 6,604
EAYE R AT E Receivables written off during
TR IE L B B 8 U AR 3K the year as uncollectible (127) (1,212)
MW12H31H At 31 December 13,649 15,478

ETNGFEAREE SRR
AEESWIHE ZRUERR - T 7
ErAE e &R ERANIEREE
(8 EHARLREAEE
PR AT B R AL B AR B
60H E90H M BRI & A 13K
(R -

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 60-90
days past due (credit terms).

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 BH¥EKRERE(HF) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b) =EEE (&)
(i) EEHEERE (&)
ZSREUBRR (18)

e B 5 R AR BB RN & 88
MA2FNBITHRFA S - &K E %
FIEMEEM S BRI AR —EE -

B 5 R FURE HY ST AT & 5T B

RBEFE B 5 REERNRE
TERESEREAETTIG -
B AT R UK [B] # {8 71 7 U SRR R
BEZARSREE M T M - B
FEWFETT R BRI AEBEERST
FHREDEEERRERNRERTE
EiR ez F RIGRIAM = - 5t
BB RN R ER BB @
R AEERRMFEMEMIATIE
B RPBFRERRE:

s EBABAERTBRE:

o BERAFREAMBEHRN
ERF &

e  XMEMHIER-

31 BHEREZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as administrative expenses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade

receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables
was assessed based on the incurred loss model.
Individual receivables which were known to be
uncollectible were written off by reducing the carrying
amount directly. The other receivables were assessed
collectively to determine whether there was objective
evidence that an impairment had been incurred but not
yet been identified. For these receivables the estimated
impairment losses were recognised in a separate
provision for impairment. The Group considered that
there was evidence of impairment if any of the following
indicators were present:

° significant financial difficulties of the debtor

probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and

default or late payments.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 BHMHEEKRERE (F) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

b) EERE (&
i)  EHEERE(E)
B HEWIR (58)

B 5 e W AR BURE &Y 7 B & 51 UK

SR TREEN SR D
R BRI R R
T o

BREHAAI R HMESRMEE

REER AR EthemEER
5 Lt JE AR R TR o E b JIE W R TR R
BNEI2EAEREEBENXS
HEHEEBIETE RTEER
be B VAR IE RS A KIEE M
7€ o fitl FE WK I 2 2 BE R B ¥
TR TESRAE R MRIG N - JRE YR 2 B
BRI B E1BETE - 7R2018F 1 A1
B - #R B 7 2 E A EH b FE K
HE H A ERRIEN IR B BB EE
SRHITESATE AUAEET
RIEHFHEE -

31 HEEKREZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
receivables (Continued)

Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised were written off against the provision when
there was no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. The change of the impairment methodology to
other receivables has immaterial impacts on the existing
amount of loss allowances for other receivables as at
1 January 2018 and hence the Group has not made
adjustments.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3.1

150

BEEREE (&)
(b) =EEE (&)
(i) EEHEERE (&)

R RER 2 EREERE (5
B/ BEEE

FR-ERESREERBN T
(MF) /BERERZT O [1TK
R | AT IARER -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

Net impairment (gains)/losses on financial assets
recognised in the income statement

During the year, the following (gains)/losses were
recognised in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income
statement in relation to impaired financial assets:

2018 2017
ARMET T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 REWERETRE Movement in loss allowance for
EiEREE trade receivables (1,702) 6,604

(i) L FEGFARGATHEE

ERTEBREREAFET AR
EMEBREEBZEERR -
PR2018F12A31H T & L &
MEEZRK (2017F: AR
60,000,0007C ) °

() HEBELEE

BRZRDESRREEBIRMR
RAZBEERRSEEY BBEX
BAM DARGEERERRE NS
HUPRES REEMHETZ
BN -AEEZBRNERRRLZ
EAHEERERE  UERASE
BHRAERMIBERZESAIHE
e

(i) Financial assets at FVPL

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in relation to
debt investments that are measured at FVPL. There was
no exposure to such financial assets at 31 December
2018 (2017: RMB60,000,000).

(c¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

PR-F -EmE @t
Less than Between 1
xEE Group 1 year and 2 years Total
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2018%12A31H As at 31 December 2018
B8 Borrowings 1,987,726 - 1,987,726
EEFENR Interest payments on borrowings 39,528 = 39,528
ERESER Trade payables 1,554,219 - 1,554,219
HEthEREREN B Other payables and accruals,
(TaEkemar) (excluding non-financial liabilites) 2,341,946 = 2,341,946
HitREE A Other long term payables - 237,655 237,655
5,923,419 237,655 6,161,074
R2017F12831A As at 31 December 2017
BE Borrowings 834,768 500,000 1,334,768
EEMSRR Interest payments on borrowings 24,128 12,822 36,950
ENE SRR Trade payables 1,396,000 - 1,396,000
Hit RS BERETER Other payables and accruals,
(TREFLBAE) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,179,064 - 2,179,064
Hit REENFUE Other long term payables - 251,319 251,319
4,433,960 764,141 5,198,101
% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 6/]
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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AEBRKREEEERAEG B R4
K A50% ° 7220184 K%2017
F12A3THMEARGELLRNT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018
and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

ARBT T ARBETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BEE (MEES1) Total borrowings (Note 31) 1,987,726 1,334,768
B IRE REEFER Less: cash and time deposits (Note 26)

(Hf5E26) (5,176,478) (2,782,731)
ReF8E Net cash (3,188,752) (1,447,963)
PR Total equity 13,222,307 12,815,477
BEIR Total capital 10,033,555 11,367,514
BEARBELE Gearing ratio -31.78% -12.74%

HMRRNEERNFREMRN A&
B R2018F12A31H M E AR E E

LR DA

DNPEME

TRMBBEESITIRAFEIIEZ
ERTA-BEEREREWT:

s HABEXRBBEEEEM
BHRE (REHE) (F1

E) -

s KBRTFIEMEBRMOBREIN
ZEESRRBZABRCH
s A Al A EE (Afan
ER) S E&E (BRAER)

(%2E) -

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2018 was
negative since the Group is in net cash position.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 BHXERERE (& 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

33 AVEMLE (&) 3.3

e EBESBBUNREAER
MSEE WA (AEATEER
BWA) (E3E) -

TRBERIAEES@MEENR2018
FR2017512A831B:t8 2 A F

Fair value estimation (Continued)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2018

(EE and 2017.
R20184F A20174
12A31H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
BRAFERTA FVOCI (Note 19)
HEi2mBR AR
SHEE (HiE19)
— %1 — Level 1 6,956 -
—Z3E - Level 3 211,665 -
218,621 -
AHHESREE AFS (Note 19)
(FIzE19)
—F1E — Level 1 = 10,428
—53E - Level 3 = 211,665
= 222,093
BAFEFABEN FVPL (Note 25)
S BEE (H7E25)
— 533 - Level 3 = 60,000

/I 64 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the investments are determined based on the
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

There were no changes in level 3 instruments related
to FVOCI (2017: AFS) for the year ended 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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EmME AEBEETHERESE
FE TEBERESHEE
MRIEHBR -RBRORERS
AEBEEES R ERTS L ek
FRAMBIESRES UK
NEEFAEMEZERANAFE
(CO17E A HESREE) ° 1R
Bk ERZWIRE R RRME
MM EBESREENNREM
BB RFEBBMIBZEN
EREMBEHEEREEZHEE
METE - R2018F12A831H & &
FrRBhIR R BEF14% (20174 ¢
14% ) HIRZE R E R EHER
MR -mi5EH WRE QNG
SEERELETAERBEEE
e ARBTEEE WA
o UFERATEF A ME®R
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CREE) - RIBZ AL AFESE
B E R RN TEHEE WA
3 LA B 2 75 L K M R A S B
MET - REEEHE BE2EA
BHEUEBEE PPREERE
Fra ] AR E =R QR AL
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Bl AFETAEMEZEEKA
(2017 AL EESMEE)
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#8,278,0007T M4 AR
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R #16,805,0007T, & 4 AR

21,598,0007T ) °

2018512 A318 » I AFEET A
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B -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

For the Group’s equity investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. In connection with the investments in
shares, the Group adopts a combination of income and
market approaches. The income approach adopts a
discounted cash flow method to assess the fair value
of the FVOCI (2017: AFS). Under this methodology,
fair value is determined by discounting the projected
cash flow of the investee company to present worth
based on profit and cash flows forecast and other
relevant information provided by the investee company.
The discount rate used for the investment as at 31
December 2018 was 14% (2017: 14%) per annum
which was determined by the risk-free rate, market
return, estimated beta of the investee company and
firm specific risk factors. The market approach adopts
various sales/income multiples to assess the fair value
of the FVOCI (2017: AFS). Under this methodology, fair
value is determined by multiplying various sales/income
of the investee company to multiples with regard to the
risks and nature of the businesses. In estimating the
multiples, reference has been made to the operating
results of companies with similar business nature,
having their operating activities in the PRC and whose
ownership interests are publicly traded.

As at 31 December 2018, if the discount rate and
the multiples used was 10% higher/lower from
management’s estimates (i.e. 15.40%/12.60%), the
carrying amounts of the FVOCI (2017: AFS) would be
approximately RMB8,278,000 lower/RMB10,728,000
higher (2017: RMB16,805,000 lower/RMB21,598,000
higher) than the current value.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
approximated their fair values.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@) Fair value of FVOCI (2017: AFS)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market, such as equity interest
classified as FVOCI (2017: AFS) (Note 19) is determined
by using valuation techniques (Note 3.3). The Group
uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and
to make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date. The
effect of the changes in one or more of the inputs has
been disclosed in Note 3.3 above.

(b) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/decrease the deferred tax assets by
RMB10,919,000 (2017: RMB13,769,000).

(c) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment

Land use rights and property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales
and business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
of beverages, instant noodles and others. The executive
directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on segment profit or loss. Other information provided,
except as noted below, to the executive directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and
no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

/] 6O #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FEZHEERT:

AWEE Segment results

g Revenue

W TR 2 B Timing of revenue recognition

EX-BRFEH
E-BRERA

nEbaEn/ (BR)

BEWA-FR

N E AR
JEAE R & 7

B P15 1 At
FrgHRX

R

RBERAMHIEM
28EE
FEREH

IHEERAE
BE
REDEARNRE
BiE

BaE

REFRDEE

At a point in time
Over time

Segment profit/(l0ss)

Finance income - net

Share of profit of investments
accounted for using the equity
method

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment items included
in the income statement
Depreciation and amortisation

Segment assets and liabilities
Assets
Investments accounted for

using the equity method

Total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilities

Addition to non-current assets

The segment information for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

R

Beverages
AR¥TTR
RMB’000

12,619,416

12,619,416

12,619,416

1,285,022

32,133

960,298

10,447,079

551,143

10,998,222

3,498,190

627,330

HEE
Instant
noodles

AR®TR
RMB’000

8,425,149

8,425,149

8,425,149

460,927

221,898

3,157,950

3,157,950

2,448,781

277,112

2018
£ ASE  A%E
Others Unallocated Group
ARBTR AR%®TR AR%Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
727,675 - 21,772,240
556,720 - 21,601,285
170,955 - 170,955
727,675 - 21,772,240
26,075 (440,099) 1,331,925
- 123,475 123,475
- 52,241 84,374
1,539,774
(510,070)
1,029,704
70,638 115,352 1,368,186
709,294 6,670,398 20,984,721
- 196,694 747,837
709,294 6,867,092 21,732,558
360,300 2,202,980 8,510,251
8,510,251
41,387 39,936 985,765
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WaEkosHER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
DEHER (&) (@) Segment information (Continued)
2017
g HEE Hity AOEE AEE
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
AREBTT AREFTT ARETT AREFr ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SEHEE Segment results
Wizs (R E5) Revenue (restated) 12,179,014 7,974,498 668,437 - 20,821,949
Yo R 2 s Timing of revenue recognition
EX—FEH At a point in time 12,179,014 7,974,498 501,416 - 20,654,928
E—BEEA Over time - - 167,021 - 167,021
12,179,014 7,974,498 668,437 - 20,821,949
PEEF,/ (EE) Segment profit/(loss) (restated)

(g E5) 1,015,245 411,815 49210 (289,659) 1,186,611
BEWA-FE Finance income - net - - - 61,710 61,710
PR E AR 2 JE(G Share of profit/(loss) of

REER/ (BR) investments accounted for

using the equity method 18,971 - - 9,632 28,503
BRETEE AR Profit before income tax 1,276,824
ERREZ Income tax expense (398,608)
FE & Profit for the year 878,216
BERAMIEM Other segment items included

AHER in the income statement
ER#EH Depreciation and amortisation 966,893 265,738 70,424 98,450 1,401,505
PTHEEREE Segment assets and liabilities
BE Assets 10,263,188 3,665,027 630,157 4,758,464 19,316,836
REFENRORE Investments accounted for

using the equity method 575,265 - - 144,451 719,716
BEE Total assets 10,838,453 3,665,027 630,157 4,902,915 20,036,552
A& Liabilities 3,378,047 1,717,052 578,274 1,552,702 7,221,075
ECY=Rr Total liabilities 7,221,075
REFRBEE Addition to non-current assets 623,483 114,872 624 11,779 750,758
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Segment information (Continued)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, FVOCI (2017:
AFS), financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss, cash and banks, and investment properties and
related land use rights.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category
comprised primarily of deferred income tax liabilities,
current income tax liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use
rights, property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets located in different
countries is as follows:

2018 2017
AR®T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
SEMBEE (TR The total of non-current assets other
TETAMEL than financial instruments and
RSt &E) 5 deferred income tax assets
— - PRC 12,942,400 13,636,185
—BINE R — Overseas countries 30,675 63,705
SRTA Financial instruments 780,533 229,210
BEFTISTHEE Deferred income tax assets 328,684 286,972
14,082,292 14,216,072

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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5 WEKoHMER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

b) EEFEHNEBEzEE (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers

FEBEHATIEEFSHERH The Group has recognised the following liabilities related
ZBfE: to contracts with customers:

20185 20184 20174

12A31H 12A31H 1A18

31 December 31 December 1 January

2018 2018 2017

ARBTR ARBTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BHEBE-R Contract liabilities - Beverages 1,020,291 801,423 965,047
ANEE-HEE Contract liabilities

- Instant noodles 605,065 434,412 478,379
BHERBE-HM Contract liabilities - Others 73,630 133,374 130,929
HWENER Total contract liabilities 1,698,986 1,369,209 1,574,355
() BHEEZEAZE () Significant changes in contract liabilities
2018F A E ML BN EITE The increase in contract liabilities in 2018 was due
HEEREREE - to the change in the time frame for a performance

obligation to be satisified.

/I 64 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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HEFENEBEAE (&)

(i) BHEHEEHER K

TRIIRNE RIS BE A ER A
W EEABNENEBERRNK
BOANERBEFERITOHREL
RIEERmEE-

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates
to performance obligations that were satisfied in the
prior year.

20184 20174
12A31H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR®TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(EEF)
(Restated)
FTARIIA A B B8R Revenue recognised that was included
H B R 2 in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period
BREL Beverages 801,423 965,047
paREd il Instant noodles 434,412 478,379
H A Others 133,374 130,929
1,369,209 1,674,355

(i) KEITHIEAEF

AEBEREBROAITORE A
AERBESRENET RRARM
BEHRBAOBRA—FHIAT-

(iii)  Unsatisfied performance obligations

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and
omitted disclosure of remaining performance obligations
as all related contracts have a duration of one year or
less.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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expenses are analysed as follows:

Raw materials, packaging materials,
consumables and
purchased commodity used
Changes in inventories of finished goods
Manufacturing outsourcing expenses
Promotion and advertising expenses
Employee benefit expenses,
including directors’ emoluments
(Note 9)
Transportation expenses
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 14)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 15)
Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 16)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17)
Operating lease in respect of buildings
City construction tax, property tax and
other tax surcharges
Provision for impairment of
land use rights (Note 14)
Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment (Note 15)
Provision/(reversal) of provision of
inventories to net realisable value
(Note 22)
(Reversal)/provision for impairment of
trade receivables
(Note 3.1(b))
Auditors’ remunerations
— Audit services
Others

Total

2018
AR®T R
RMB’000

12,652,310
(173,273)
46,629
1,629,000

3,217,445
855,931
54,014
1,285,837
19,941

8,394
128,206

266,856

19,329

27,787

9,260

(1,702)

7,020
760,316

20,813,300

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other

2017
ARETFTT
RMB’000
(#&5E7)
(Restated)

12,118,282
96,344
43,087

1,323,559

3,025,180
833,989
57,206
1,314,559
18,692

11,148
137,017

273,722

(2,825)

6,604

7,269
723,856

19,987,589
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HitbEiE — F8

7 OTHER LOSSES - NET

2018 2017
AR®T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEME BMELKREZ Losses on disposal of property,
i8R plant and equipment, net (16,965) (12,414)
HE T AR FIE Gains/(losses) on disposal of
(E518)  F8 land use rights, net 1,050 (16,174)
TETAZENG Gains from settlement of derivatives - 4,663
A HERE (FTEE19) Impairment of AFS (Note 19) - (20,419)
HAt Others 6,494 12,818
(9,421) (31,526)
H A 8 OTHER INCOME
2018 2017
AR®T R AR®TTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT/ B Government grants 151,099 135,866
HEMZE  BERZE Rental income from lease of property,
URigEmME e A plant and equipment and
investment properties 128,352 120,257
AR WA (H5E34(a)) Consultation service income (Note 34(a)) 58,660 52,388
Hity Others 44,295 75,266
382,406 383,777

BT B U A 35 B 7 B % (81 75 BT AR
RSB Em (EARKEREBA
DEELESY V& IR Gy
B 0 ¥R o 5% % KT 48 B B AR TR
MEARBRERN AR - BHERED
RiFaBRERZ [HBlA] ARER -

The income from government grants represented financial
support subsidy received from various local governments
in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their
contributions to the economy and development of the regions
in which the subsidiaries are located. Such government
grants were unconditional and with no future commitment to
be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statements.

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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9 EIEMNPAX BEEEHE 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2018 2017
ARMT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TERE® Wages and salaries 2,568,047 2,448,606
BRE KA =S Pension and other social welfare
(EEEMHRETE) (defined contribution plan) 390,652 332,330
BIE&ERERET Staff quarters and housing benefit 106,629 100,181
H 2 7 Other benefits 152,117 144,063
3,217,445 3,025,180
(@ TEESFMAL (@) Five highest paid individuals
B E2018F12A31HLFE 2 The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest
AEBRAEESTMATBEEM in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
H(2017F W& )EF - H 7 included two (2017: two) directors, whose emoluments
B R M 5E36(a)FT 25 2 5 T are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 36(a).
R -RENEZNTHB=F The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2017:
(2017 =R )mmFMWA LT three) individuals during the year are as follows:
FEESI T
2018 2017
EAXRE e EEEE- Basic salaries, housing allowances,
HZe REYF = other allowances and benefits
(AR¥FT) in kind (RMB’000) 5,458 4,590
#[E: In the band of:
1,500,001 T & HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T (& (equivalent to RMB1,314,001 to
RARE1,314,0017C RMB1,752,000)
Z= AR#1,752,0007T) - 3
2,000,001 T E HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
2,500,000 7T (& (equivalent to RMB1,752,001 to
RARA1,752,0017T RMB2,190,000)
Z= AR ¥2,190,0007T) 3 -

/l 68 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 FINANCE INCOME - NET

2018 2017
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B E WA Finance income
—IRENIRITHEHRZ — Interest income on cash and
FEHA banks 169,273 113,484
— [ 5N 15 % 58 — Net foreign exchange gains 344 -
169,617 113,484
B & K AR Finance cost
—EEZFERE — Interest expenses on borrowings (57,839) (61,038)
—EHEEFE — Net foreign exchange losses - (5,857)
B EEBEREEY - Less: amounts capitalized on
BEAR{b &5 qualifying assets 11,697 15,121
(46,142) (561,774)
BE WA —FEE Finance income — net 123,475 61,710
FEHRAX 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2018 2017
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIERPT1S 1 Current income tax
- BEFERMZ — Current income tax on profit
BN ER PRS0 for the year 480,363 319,067
EIERTSH (HIFE20) Deferred income tax (Note 20) (32,793) 45,128
FEREMEARREZ Withholding tax on dividends from
b PRC subsidiaries 62,500 34,413
510,070 398,608
% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 69
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(a)

(b)
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11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

Subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to CIT
at rate of 25% (2017: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice on
the tax policies of further implementation of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs” ( B #{[2011]585%%8
PORAB e 5 A F & B A B S SR R e R ) |
companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by
the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC set up in the western development region are
entitled to the above mentioned preferential tax rate of
15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 17% and
16.5% (2017: 17% and 16.5%), respectively.
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11 FIEHBAX (&) 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) HMPESR (&) (b) Other income tax (Continued)
7N 52 B Bk BT 15 B0 A1 s A1 B2 #z The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
HARGHERRMN Z EEME differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
25% (20174 : 25% ) st E 2 5% using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2017:
MIEZEZMT: 25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:

2018 2017

AR®T AR¥ETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

B P45 25 A s A Profit before income tax 1,539,774 1,276,824

HHBLEEMESE 2 Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate

1A in the PRC 384,944 319,206
THEB2HMBLE:  Tax effects of:
EBEGETHEAF Preferential tax rates on the profits of
A BER R certain subsidiaries 887 (416)
RIERBEEMBH Tax losses and temporary differences
BEMEEBEER for which no deferred income tax
TR ER asset was recognized 62,137 46,563
AR A Income not subject to tax (21,094) (7,126)
EIEE Expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 20,696 12,142
T 35 5 S NGt 4R Additional deduction of research and
development expenses - (6,174)
R EIHE A A Withholding tax on dividends from
f& 8 2 FEHE PRC subsidiaries 62,500 34,413
FrIisfifx Income tax expense 510,070 398,608

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ,] 7/]
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11 FEHMAX (&) 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) HAMPESR (&) (b) Other income tax (Continued)
EREM2EREED 2 E/ The income tax charge relating to components of other
FAZaT comprehensive income is as follows:
2018 2017
BEA  BUERH BBi% BHA  BEXA Bz
Before tax  Tax charge After tax Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax

ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETIT AREBTT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Ht 2 mues: Other comprehensive income:
~BDFAEFAEML - Net fair value losses
2EKAATE from FVOCI

RER (3,473) - (3,473) - - -
-~ ERE - Impairment of AFS - - - 20,419 - 20,419
—AHEERTH — Net fair value losses
FER from AFS - - - (3,435) - (3,435)
EIEATSHE (ffi5F20)  Deferred income tax (Note 20) - =
12 BRER 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
HK Basic
RERBIDIZFEARNR AR Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
B ARG IR A B 317 T @Ak n i attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
FHEEE - average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2018 2017
NATET A ATEWEEF  Profit attributable to equity holders of
(AR¥TIT) the Company (RMB’000) 1,029,704 878,216
BT SRR INEFIH Weighted average number of
(FA&) ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334
BRERAF Basic earnings per share
(ERAREE) (RMB per share) 23.84 cents % 20.33 cents 4
HARARRWEEEHSLER HE Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
R ERFETRAERBF —B- share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.

/l 72 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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R E 13 DIVIDENDS
2018 2017
AR®T R AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFIRTRERE Proposed final dividend of
BREBERARE23.845 RMB23.84 cents
(20175 - AR#14.23%) (2017: RMB14.23 cents)
per ordinary share 1,029,704 614,751

P20184F K2017F ARARME R
2017 201651231 B IEFE 2K
f& 85 5B AREe619,402,0007T & A
R #119,834,0007T °

MR2019F5 A17THE T ZRFBFRE
E#ERIREEHZE2018F12831H 1
FEZHRESBRARK23.84% (A
f% 8 A AR1,029,704,0007T) ° It &
MBHMERERBEEREMNRKRE -

The dividends paid by the Company in 2018 and 2017 for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 amounted to
RMB619,402,000 and RMB119,834,000, respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018
of RMB23.84 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB1,029,704,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting to be held on 17 May 2019. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

T b {E AR 14 LAND USE RIGHTS
REEN TR 2 ERIETEN T 1 The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
FRAEZCERENIE EREFES operating lease payments for land use rights and their net
T : book amounts are analysed as follows:
2018 2017
AR®T T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 2,103,701 2,221,526
NE Additions 275 -
& Disposals (62,818) (60,619)
BERE (Wie) Impairment provision (Note 6) (19,329) -
BiH (M5Te) Amortisation (Note 6) (54,014) (57,206)
M12H31H At 31 December 1,967,815 2,103,701
B AR Cost 2,385,244 2,472,221
ZETEH Accumulated amortisation (417,429) (368,520)
BRI R Net book amount 1,967,815 2,103,701
#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 78
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14 T H{ERRE (& 14 LAND USE RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
RNEE A T AREEGL N BIE All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and
A HAEEINT are with the lease periods as follows:
2018 2017
AR¥T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EFBBIRARE In the PRC, held on:
50%F PA £ 2 R B Original lease period of over 50 years 9,861 10,085
10%F £50%F 2 JR 1 B Original lease period of
between 10 and 50 years 1,957,954 2,093,616
FRREFEE Closing net book amount 1,967,815 2,103,701
REEz T AREEEEAGREEE Amortisation charges of the Group’s land use rights have
KATHEERER]  [HERTISHEER been charged to ‘cost of sales’, ‘selling and marketing
T RTITHAZ ] MRT : expenses’ and ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated

income statement as follows:

2018 2017
ARMT T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
$HE B Cost of sales 34,135 28,909
HERMSHEMS Selling and marketing expenses 4,137 4,417
TBAX Administrative expenses 15,742 23,880
54,014 57,206

MR2018512 A31H » M b I AR ERAS T ib As at 31 December 2018, there was no land use rights

f# A#E (20174 : AR 19,012,000 certificate had not been obtained (2017: RMB19,012,000).

JT) e
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15 ¥ - BERKXE 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HER EBRIZ Hf
| £ Ih#RE RERKE HE%E EEIR &it
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures  improvements in progress Total
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2017E1 518 At1 January 2017
A Cost 6,279,923 7,670,129 3,257,551 9,152 849,79 18,066,550
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (1,425,844) (8,367,124) (2,166,934) (9,152 - (6,969,054)
2iRERE Accumulated impaiment provision S (263) = S = (263)
REE Net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,090,617 - 849,79 11,097,233
HENI7E12A31BLEE Year ended 31 December 2017
FNERFE Opening net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,090,617 = 849,79 11,007,233
BE Additions 9,049 40,643 351,627 - 343,108 744,427
THEEA Transfer upon completion 596,500 34219 40934 - (671,653) -
te Disposals (2,087) (1532) (19,091) 5 S (22,710)
& (o) Depreciation (Note 6) (284,365) (600,694) (429,500) - - (1,314,559)
ERETFE Closing net book amount 5,173,176 3,775,378 1,034,587 - 521250 10,504,391
H2017%12531A8 At 31 December 2017
RA Cost 6,883,336 7,719,418 3,370,282 9,152 521,250 18,503,438
23t E Accumulated depreciation (1,710,161) (3.943777) (2,335,694 (0,159) - (7,998,784)
ZitERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (269)
REFE Net book amount 5,173,175 3,775,378 1,034,588 - 521,250 10,504,391
HE018512A31ALLEE Year ended 31 December 2018
FNRETE Opening net book amount 5,173,175 3,775,378 1,034,588 - 521,250 10,504,391
wE Addttions - 40,856 364,002 - 573,059 977,917
THEEA Transfer upon completion 396,692 107,483 43,199 - (547,374) -
HE Disposals (218,773) (17,099) (26,709) - - (262,581)
& (Hiit6) Depreciation (Note 6) (314,555) (569,323) (401,959) - - (1,285,837)
B% M (f5e) Impairment provision (Note 6) (20,000) (7,787) - - - (27,787)
FRERTE Closing net book amount 5,016,539 3,329,508 1,013,121 - 546,935 9,906,103
20185125318 At 31 December 2018
A Cost 7,033,627 7,767,063 3,583,034 9,152 546,935 18,939,811
2itHE Accumulated depreciation (2,017,088) (4,437,292) (2,569,913) (9,152) = (0,033,445
ZitERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
FEFE Net book amount 5,016,539 3,320,508 1,013,121 = 546,935 9,906,103
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15 W% BERSKHE (HF

FEERCAGRABERMEBAOT

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2018 2017

AR¥T T ARBETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

$HE A Cost of goods sold 847,462 912,037
HERMSHEMS Selling and marketing expenses 272,238 232,931
TBAX Administrative expenses 166,137 169,591
1,285,837 1,314,559

AEEZBFR2HURTE-

H20184 K2017412 A31 B I 4 1 7
ERWE BEREE-

REBFHEZHS2BRALOAR
#41,200,0007C (20176 : AR
35,700,0007) BaF AREIBE XK
[E Al (KI&ES) ©

FRN AEBEBEEREENEE
AR A R #11,697,0007T (20174 : A
R#15,121,000C) BT E R g E X
ADNEE—REENNEFHFERNE
3.92% (20174 : 3.94% ) TR E A »

The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.

There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB41.2 million
(2017: RMB35.7 million) derived from lease of buildings
is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statement (Note 8).

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to RMB11,697,000 (2017: RMB15,121,000) on
qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 3.92%
(2017: 3.94%) per annum.
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16 REW= 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2018 2017
ARBT AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 353,123 365,384
nNE Addition 2,747 6,331
e (Miske) Depreciation (Note 6) (19,941) (18,592)
M12A31H At 31 December 335,929 353,123
12 A31 B A Cost as at 31 December 497,800 495,053
2FHITE Accumulated depreciation (161,871) (141,930)
M12A31H At 31 December 335,929 353,123
WEMEMREEF THE WIIER The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiangsu,
BRE  WEARBEBA40FM50F M L Sichuan and Guangdong Province and erected on land with
b f o lease periods of 40 and 50 years.
AEBEREMECTEDTHALREE Depreciation of the Group's investment properties has been
mEHEMEAZ] - charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statements.
2018 2017
ARBT T AR¥ETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Gt ON Rental income 87,130 84,547
REELHSWAZYEZ  Direct operating expenses from property
BEELERX that generated rental income (12,271) (13,548)
74,859 70,999
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KEMEZERELRAFEEHS DT The carrying amounts and fair values of the investment
properties are set out as follows:

2018 2017
AR¥TF ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REE Carrying amount 335,929 353,123
~NEE Fair value 416,556 450,777
R20184F Kk2017F12H31H 2 A FE The fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were
ThERE S A AE KRR R b ABIE determined by management’s self-assessment using
(ZE3E) REEEIT 2RI RER discounted cash flow projection based on significant
EBITHHHERE - unobservable inputs (Level 3).
EREANAHEEG ARE (E3E)# Information about fair value measurements using significant
TZAFEFENERHIMOT unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:
FABERARE

Unobservable inputs
2018512831 H

AE ATE HE BRI =
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2018 Rental value  Discount rate
(AR¥T ) (AR¥T )
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

= A

47,603 , 10%
Plant A g 7,762 per annum o
/=B

98,310 S 418,112 per annum 10%
Plant B
5= C

63,511 #%9,732 per annum 10%
Plant C
W ED

” 78,838 45 412,309 per annum 10%

Plant D
/N

94,758 2,851 per annum 10%
Office building = B °
JE &8

33,536 S - per annum 10%
Shops
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16 REYE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
AR A BUE
Unobservable inputs
R2017F12A31H 2
S NS fE RLER &
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2017 Rental value Discount rate
(ARBTT) (AR®BTT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
\Dl A
L 98,843 & 414,331 per annum 10%
Plant A
1A B
B 109,014 F 18,112 per annum 10%
Plant B
\D C
. 99,914 & 413,732 per annum 10%
Plant C
\Dl D
— 13,918 & 412,378 per annum 10%
Plant D
AN
95,835 6,126 109
Office building 76,126 per annum o
oL 33,730 & - per annum 10%
Shops
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17 BEREE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B Ig
Computer
software
ARBFIT
RMB’000
A2017F1A1H At 1 January 2017
AR Cost 93,222
BT Accumulated amortisation (63,577)
BREDFRE Net book amount 29,645
BZ2017F12A31H L EE Year ended 31 December 2017
FYREFRE Opening net book amount 29,645
NE Additions 462
#iH (M5E6) Amortisation (Note 6) (11,148)
FREREFH Closing net book amount 18,959
720175128311 At 31 December 2017
AR Cost 93,684
2T #EH Accumulated amortisation (74,725)
BREDFRE Net book amount 18,959
HZE2018F12A31B L FE Year ended 31 December 2018
FURmFHE Opening net book amount 18,959
NE Additions 4,826
B (MsEe) Amortisation (Note 6) (8,394)
FRIREFRR Closing net book amount 15,391
#2018%F12A31H At 31 December 2018
AR Cost 98,510
RETH#EE Accumulated amortisation (83,119)
BRTE R Net book amount 15,391
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BREE (&)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

BREMG 2#E D AGFATITHRF The amortisation of computer software has been charged
XIRIHEEERTHSEERX] & to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
BEoRHAREKT?7 056,000 & A expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB7,056,000
K #1,338,0007C (2017F : AR and RMB1,338,000 (2017: RMB8,568,000 and
8,568,000t & A R #2,580,0007T ) ° RMB2,580,000), respectively.

UEHEARNKRE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

EEEAGBRBERNEENT The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
2018 2017
ARBTR ARBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B QB Z HE(a) Interests in associate (a) 303,592 291,781
REBREZERD) Interests in joint ventures (b) 444,245 427,935
M12H31H At 31 December 747,837 719,716

HEESREINEEDT:

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as

follows:
2018 2017
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEAG B & R A A (a) Share of profits of associate (a) 18,209 16,012
B G & E S FFEE (D) Share of net of profits of joint ventures (b) 66,165 12,491
HZE12A1AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 84,374 28,503
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18 DIERZEARNIRE (])

182

18

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
Interests in associate

(@)

The movements in interests in associate are as follows:

2018 2017

AR¥T T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

M A1R At 1 January 291,781 278,968
JE A58 Share of profits 18,209 16,012
B S Dividends received (6,398) (3,199)
M12A31H At 31 December 303,592 291,781

MR2018F12 A31H IR X7
R AEBBERRFBEHYIN
T

The particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31
December 2018, which is accounted for using equity
method, are set out as follows:

AMRLER .
ARERB wH R A BREX/BRA rEBEGRE TEER
Paid-up
Country/place and capital/ Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation Share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2018 2017

tmAfE:

Listed:

BAIARENRT REES AR 17.87% 17.87%  OREERT 30T
RN AR AT \ 2001464268 392,600,0007T BERIRER RS
(IREFNRT]) (M) EmZEEREE

(Yantai North Andre Juice Yantai, PRC, RMB392,600,000 The production and sales
Co., Ltd.”) (“Andre Juice”) 26 June 2001 of concentrated apple
(Note) juice, pear juice, apple

essence, forage etc.
products.

* BXEHEBDNARBIERERN * The English name represents the best effort by

AP E RS

GEE

AEEHZBMNRABEEATE SN
TTHRAEEEZEEET —REESIHE
BiTES-

management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Note:
The Group has significant influence over Andre Juice as one

of the board’s non-executive directors was appointed by the
Group.
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18 LIERZEZARNKRE (&) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(@)

REERR 2R (&) (@)

AEEEERERTAHAE B
EREEZABEHBEENT

Interests in associate (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
shares of the associated company’s assets, liabilities
and results in aggregate is as follows:

2018 2017
ARBT T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEEEAER Summary of balance sheet

ERBEE Non-current assets 135,263 149,755
e A& E Current assets 193,170 205,011
BWEE Total assets 328,433 354,766
EREBAE Non-current liabilities 157 157
e B & Current liabilities 24,684 62,828
FEN=R Total liabilities 24,841 62,985
FEE Net assets 303,592 291,781

BEeEmkaR Summary of comprehensive income
& Revenue 189,751 159,989
KSR BB %M Post-tax profits from operations 18,209 16,012
H i 2EKRA Other comprehensive income - -
2HE U A BEE Total comprehensive income 18,209 16,012

-
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18 UERZEZARNKRE (F) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) REELEzER (b) Interests in joint ventures
REELE R EFEHNT: The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:

2018 2017

AR®T T AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

M1A1R At 1 January 427,935 451,506

HI B & A< Capital reduction - (35,766)

FEAL i 7 F 58 Share of net profits 66,165 12,491

2R 2 Dividend received (49,855) (296)

M12HA31H At 31 December 444 245 427,935
HZE2017F12A831H LEFEHI R The capital reduction in the year ended 31 December
ERERBEERRBAIERED 2017 represented return of capital of investment
X2BRFABBHARRBRE in China F&B Venture Investments pursuant to a
ZEZHREERERZRZER shareholders’ resolution passed by all shareholders
HZRARMIERENERRE - approving the capital reduction according to the

respective equity interests of the shareholders.
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(b)

REEhFE R

4=

(%)

A2018F12A31H  AEFEA A
TE(2FCEHYR ETH R
AR 2 BEH T
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as
at 31 December 2018, all of which are unlisted and
accounted for using equity method, are set out as

follows:
EMBRIBER
ARER wHRAH BREX AEEELRE FEEH
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2018 2017

FINTERRERAE &M AR 50% 50%  REAEERERRS
REEBRERDA 200847 H 188 1,000,0007T
([ERAIEREER])

United Advisor Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB1,000,000 Investment management
Management Co., Ltd. * 18 July 2008 and advisory services
(“United Advisor Venture
Management”)

BRERABIEERAR HEEMR 19,060,0003 7 42% 2%  EERESE BEAR
(TEHER]) 20097 A24H R RN E

Guilin Ziquan Beverage Guilin, PRC, USD19,060,000 Production of various types
Industries Co., Ltd. * 24 July 2009 of beverages including
(“Guilin Ziquan”) fruit, vegetable, tea and

coffee etc.

Greater China F&B He#s 10,700 T 50% 50%  REER
Capital Partners Ltd. 2008447160
(“Greater China F&B") Cayman Islands, USsD10,700 Investment management

16 April 2008

REZIS-CEERAR HEHE AR 50% 50% AEREZBER
(MREZI)) 201147 A 298 232,000,007

Wuhan Zijiang President Wuhan, PRC, RMB232,000,000 Production of various types
Enterprises Co., Ltd.* 29 July 2011 of plastic products
(“Wuhan Zijiang”)

SMS Capital Co., Ltd. HEHS 500,000% T 50% 50%  REEE
(“SMSCC”) 2012411 A28H

Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management
28 November 2012
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18 DIERZEARNIRE (]) 18

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) REEbLEzER (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
EMBIER/
DREB HEHRAH HREX AEBESRE TEXER
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2018 2017
SMS Investment Re#Hs 500,000% 7T 50% 50% REER
Management Co., 201351 A2H
Ltd. (“SMS Investment Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management
Management”) 2 January 2013
ERAMEIFRERE ST ARE 39.74% 39.74%  REEE
(TERERRm]) 2009%F4A138 426,500,0007T
China F&B Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB426,500,000 Investment management
Investments* 13 April 2009
(“China F&B")
HELRAMIE REEE 19,000,000 7T 35% 3B%  EEREESH
AR 2013%7A238
Ziquan Beverage industries Yichang, PRC, USD19,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
CO., LTD.* 23 July 2013 beverages
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. FERS 14,720,000 7T 23.44% 23.44%  REEE
(*SMSfund”) 201241273180
Cayman Islands, USD14,720,000 Investment management
18 December 2012
* KX LB ARBERERN * The English name represents the best effort by
PR EEEEL- management of the Company in translating the Chinese

186
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of China F&B'’s

ERMENOT: assets, liabilities and results is as follows:
2018 2017
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRELEEAER Summary of balance sheet
EMBEE Non-current assets 403,984 355,623
MEEE Current assets 51,123 29,933
BEE Total assets 455,107 385,556
EREBAE Non-current liabilities = -
ViEI =K Current liabilities 263 84
BEE Total liabilities 263 84
FEE Net assets 454,844 385,472
AEENEZBED L Group’s % share 39.74% 39.74%
REBDIE2 Group’s share in RMB
ARME ST 180,755 153,187
HE2EkEE Summary of comprehensive income
WA Revenue 24,000 74,277
LA 7R TEE A Post-tax profits from operations 159,677 70,110
Hih 2w Other comprehensive income - -
2H W ARE Total comprehensive income 159,677 70,110
KEB D Group’s share 63,456 27,862
% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. zl 87
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18 UERZEZARNKRE (F) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

op

(b) REELFE2ER (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

i

RERTIEE BERREZIYH

A summary of the financial information of Wuhan

BERBMENAT Zijiang’s assets, liabilities and results is as follows:
2018 2017
AR®T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEEAGBR Summary of balance sheet
FERBEE Non-current assets 81,563 102,087
MENEE Current assets 252,781 295,112
WEE Total assets 334,344 397,199
ERBAE Non-current liabilities = -
MENEE Current liabilities 26,676 17,666
waE Total liabilities 26,676 17,666
HEEE Net assets 307,668 379,533
AEBDEZEDLL Group’s % share 50% 50%
KEBDIEZ Group’s share in RMB
AR TR 153,834 189,767
HE2EHKREX Summary of comprehensive income
WA Revenue 320,837 33,870
R TR FE A Post-tax profits from operations 27,847 31,225
Hi2HEKa Other comprehensive income = -
ZHEW = ERE Total comprehensive income 27,847 31,225
AEE DG Group’s share 13,924 15,628
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19 BAFEFAHMEEBRAN
AHHEEMEE

AEBZIZAFEFAHEMBZ2ERA
(2017F AIEHE)NERMEENUR
EENR UEENT&E:

19 FVOCI AND AFS

The FVOCI (2017: AFS) of the Group are stated at fair value
and include the following:

2018 2017
ARET AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

BELEmESH BB Listed securities, Hong Kong
AR Haisheng Juice 6,956 10,428

JEEMES + Unlisted securities, PRC

SEEFLE Wondersun Dairy 211,665 211,665
218,621 222,093
EEmEHRZME Market value of listed securities 6,956 10,428

FREATFEFAHMEERA (2017
FAAHEE)NERNEENEZ DD
T

The movements in FVOCI (2017: AFS) during the year are as
follows:

2018 2017

AR®T AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R1A1H At 1 January 222,093 225,528
FFAEMEEYE Net fair value changes taken to other

NEESEFE (HE28) comprehensive income (Note 28) (3,472) (3,435)

Mm12A31H At 31 December 218,621 222,093

tTESZAFERBREERZT
LREMEE -

The fair values of the listed securities are determined based
on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
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19 BRAFEFAEMEZEWAN 19 FVOCI AND AFS (CONTINUED)

AHHEEmMERE (&)

R2018F12A31H AEEHEE
HREIZEBRBERAR(EBHART])
37,800,000/% (20174 : 37,800,000
BR) -+ 158 F Rt AR # #92.93% (2017
F:299%) ZEREMNAFEARE
FHRANTERE-

AEBBARREIATELINERNE
RAF (T522LFLE])9% (20174 :
9% ) KR - STEIUFLRRIELTAHE
BABE  B2006FEREIXEMD
HEREE - TEILIEFLETEREZ
RFETILERBAERTEHE (M5
3I)HAEARBHZMHEMESE

REARANRENETAE RN E
W EMBRERAARKE B

The Group holds 37,800,000 shares (2017: 37,800,000
shares) in China Haisheng Juice Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Haisheng Juice”) representing 2.93% (2017: 2.99%) of the
shareholding of Haisheng Juice as at 31 December 2018.
The fair value of the investment is the market quoted price of
Haisheng Juice.

The Group holds 9% (2017: 9%) equity interests in &)L
EBRELIAERMBMR AT (Heillongjiang Wondersun Dairy
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.) (“Wondersun Dairy”), an unlisted PRC
domestic enterprise engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
dairy products since 2006. The fair value of the unlisted equity
interests in Wondersun Dairy is determined with reference to
a valuation based on a combination of income approach and
market approach (Note 3.3).

The investment in Haisheng Juice is denominated in HKD,
and the investment in Wondersun Dairy is denominated in
RMB.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 EEFTEB

RIEFEREERELEMBHAED
N

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities is as follows:

2018 2017
AR¥F T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIEFTISMEE Deferred income tax assets
— & R12E A Rk E 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
BEMSHERE recovered within 12 months 215,513 193,021
—#E12@ Ak E 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
RIEFTISREE recovered after more than
12 months 113,171 93,951
328,684 286,972
BEEFEHAR Deferred income tax liabilities
—EBR12AREE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BEFRSHAE settled within 12 months 6,484 6,265
— R BB12E A% 4%EE 2 - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BEEFSHARE settled after more than 12 months 176,610 167,910
183,094 174,175
BIEFTISTLEE JF58 Deferred income tax assets, net 145,590 112,797

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 EEFABH ()

BEEFBHER 28T

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as
follows:

2018 2017

AR¥T ARBEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

®W1A1H At 1 January 112,797 157,925
RirB Bz R A (F1k)  Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

(FFzE11) income statement (Note 11) 32,793 (45,128)

®12A31H At 31 December 145,590 112,797

FRELERMESHEERBENED (K
AARRA-HEERESRZEE)MT

EIEFRERERE

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:

Deferred income tax assets

BRATEIHA
Ht2EUA
fhemEE
ERERR ALENTE
78 WE BER (20175 : At BE
HERE REFE BB HESREE) FRRE @t
Impairment
provision of Downward
accounts Depreciation adjustment
receivables of property, in fair value
and plant and Accrued of FVOCI Tax loss
inventories equipment expenses (2017: AFS) benefit Total
ARETT ARETT ARBFT ARBFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
201781418 At1 January 2017 5,205 5,125 119,205 6,672 213,520 349,727
REEABER (1K) /FA (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
income statements (348) 2,589 10,835 - (75,831) (62,755)
#2017612A318 At 31 December 2017 4,857 7,714 130,040 6,672 137,689 286,972
WA BER (IB) /3 A (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
income statements (464) 3,578 67,093 - (28,495) 41,712
M2018512A318 At 31 December 2018 4,393 11,292 197,133 6,672 109,194 328,684

/I 92 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2018 F#§



20

e RS AR YA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EEFTSH (&

EEFFSHERE

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax liabilities

REME LGS
BN EBAH il e ast

Accelerated Capitalization

Withholding Business  depreciation  of borrowing

tax  combination of equipment costs Total

ARETR ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R2017F1A818 At 1 January 2017 17,251 129,859 20,644 24,048 191,802
INCIER kR (Credited)/charged to the

(3t N),/ B consolidated income statements 2,413 (3,533) (16,507) = (17,627)

20175128318 At 31 December 2017 19,664 126,326 4137 24,048 174,175
RiFe Rk (Credited)/charged to the

(5t A) /B consolidated income statements = (5,419) 18,718 (4,380) 8,919

R2018%F12A31H At 31 December 2018 19,664 120,907 22,855 19,668 183,094

BEMSHEERERAEEBANKE
AT RMEBERAENBENRRSREE 2
MIEEE TR - NEE W K 552018
F12A31TH K BB ERBUK
A2 BIRE 18 4 A K #814,755,0007T
(20174 : A R#501,795,0007T ) # :2
EIEFT1S T & & 4 A R 179,859,000
7T (20174 : AR¥123,050,0007T) °
R2019F R A FERNZFEROMBE
Bo R4 B AR 88,247,000t * AR
#121,045,0007T « A R #162,815,000
T~ AR #193,422,000T M A R
249,246,0007T °

MR2018FE12A31H » W ARt & T M /B
Nl RES Az AE QR B E
HRIEIEFT ST & & A R 285,206,000
TLo EIEE B AIE B A A5 R IE Bl 5%
RN o A2018F 124631 H  iZ HKRE
EEAME LA ARESTET -

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB179,859,000 (2017: RMB123,050,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB814,755,000 (2017: RMB501,795,000) as at 31
December 2018 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB88,247,000, RMB121,045,000, RMB162,815,000,
RMB193,422,000 and RMB249,246,000 will expire in each of
the five years starting from 2019.

As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB285,206,000 have not been recognized for the
withholding tax that would otherwise be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. Management
currently has no intention to remit those earnings in the
foreseeable future. Such unremitted earnings totalled RMB5.7
billion as at 31 December 2018.

#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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21 REFEsHERMIA 21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
BOFESA
Hit2m| BATERA
WA AHEE BEm
ElsE SREE SREE SREE wat
Receivables FVOCI AFS FVPL Total
REEEBREXR Assets as per
FIRMEE consolidated balance
sheet
#2018F12A31H As at 31 December 2018
BRATEA FVOCI (Note 19)

Hin2 AR

SREE (F19) - 218,621 - - 218,621
JENE 5850 (MfE23)  Trade receivables (Note 23) 530,062 - - - 530,062
BeREMERE Deposits and other

(TRERFAH) receivables (excluding

prepayments) 708,366 - - - 708,366
REEBRH Long-term time deposits

(Kizkee) (Note 26) 550,000 - - = 550,000
Be RFTHR Cash and bank balances

(Fi3526) (Note 26) 4,626,478 - - - 4626478
B Total 6,414,906 218,621 - - 6,633,527
#2017F12A31H As at 31 December 2017
HEESREE AFS (Note 19)

(Bi5E19) - - 222,093 - 222,093
BEATEFABEN FVPL (Note 25)

SREE (M5es) - - - 60,000 60,000
JENE 5850 (MfE23)  Trade receivables (Note 23) 562,952 - - - 562,952
BeREMERIE Deposits and other

(TREEER) receivables (excluding

prepayments) 994,664 - - - 994,664
Be MRITER Cash and bank balances

(Kizkee) (Note 26) 2,782,731 - - - 2,782,731

BE Total 4,340,347 - 222,093 60,000 4,622,440

/l 94 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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RERNEINERTH

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(&) (CONTINUED)
HitiR @R
HENSRES
Other financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
GREESEBRFITNEE Liabilities as per consolidated balance Sheet
#2018 12A31H As at 31 December 2018
B E S8R (M FE29) Trade payables (Note 29) 1,554,219
HbEAREREGER Other payables and accruals
(TafEkemas) (excluding non-financial liabilties) 2,341,946
B8 (fEs1) Borrowings (Note 31) 1,987,726
H & B A R (F15530) Other long-term payables (Note 30) 237,655
@i Total 6,121,546
20174124318 As at 31 December 2017
FEfTE S (MiFeg) Trade payables (Note 29) 1,396,000
HiENFERETER Other payables and accruals
(TafEkemas) (excluding non-financial liabilties) 2,179,064
fE & (fiE31) Borrowings (Note 31) 1,334,768
Hib R EEAFIE (f15£30) Other long-term payables (Note 30) 251,319
@ar Total 5,161,151

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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22 F&8 22 INVENTORIES
2018 2017
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MR Raw materials 379,446 313,060
T8 m Work in progress 119,976 97,420
X & Finished goods 722,221 559,038
5 Consumables 237,376 189,855
1,459,019 1,159,373

BRARI W AHEK AR E 4 H
TZHEEKRALAEARE1465228E
TT (20174 : ARM14,266BET) °

REZE2018F 12 A31H I+ F/Z #i#fi 84
RIEEBEN B AR 260,0005T
(20174 : # B A R ¥2,825,0007T)
(#6)  ZERBEETABERRZ
[ ERA]H e

23 EWE SR

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
approximately RMB14,522 million (2017: RMB14,266 million).

The Group recognised inventory provision of approximately
RMB9,260,000 (2017: reversed RMB2,825,000) (Note 6) for
the year ended 31 December 2018 in respect of the write-
down of inventories to their net realisable values. These
amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income
statement.

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
AR¥ TR ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEUE SRR Trade receivables
- RBE=FH — from third parties 537,528 575,244
— 2R B R T (FI5E34()) — from related parties (Note 34(b)) 6,183 3,186
543,711 578,430
OB E R Less: provision for impairment (13,649) (15,478)
EUE ZERFR  FE Trade receivables, net 530,062 562,952

/] 96 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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23 BWEZ &R (&

REBBBERTEP6OREIORZE
AT (20174 : 60K E90K) - EWE
ZERFHREDTAT :

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
usually 60 to 90 days (2017: 60 to 90 days). The ageing
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2018 2017
ARBT AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEWE SRR - 185 Trade receivables, gross
—90KR AR — Within 90 days 504,102 532,329
—91E180K - 91 to 180 days 35,402 41,368
—181E365K — 181 to 365 days 2,337 3,366
——FE — Over one year 1,870 1,367
543,711 578,430

AEERWE SRR ZFREEATI
EHEHE:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2018 2017
ARET T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEWE 5 RN - AA%E Trade receivables, gross
—AR¥E - RMB 538,916 575,778
—%7T - USD 1,564 218
— BT - HKD 3,231 2,434
543,711 578,430

REER BRESERXOREELER
FEMRE-

2

I

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 97
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23

24

198

BWE SRR (&)

RBREAH AEBRAZZESEER
[\ Bz 3 bt FE U B BR R Z BRI © AN
SEYESBEMNEMRMESER-

AEEEAEEW B REEANFEIRD
B x ERMERKEZERRA
MEENESBRARERRERE
BEHEEERE - ME3.1(0)RHEA B
HRENFS-

EREREIETRENAEEIEZE
[BL B - HNEE [EL B & F R @R 2 B R R
Mf3E3.1 ©

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of trade receivables as mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation

of the allowance.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and

interest rate risk can be found in note 3.1.

ERRE -REREMEWRIK 24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
15 RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
H b e W 5k I8 Other receivables
—EE R E M — National Debt Reserve Repurchase
products 250,000 775,000
— FE U B 5 kB — Amounts due from related parties
(MF3E34(0)) (Note 34(b)) 52,072 73,508
—H bk R EWFRIA — Other deposits and receivables 406,294 105,994
708,366 954,502
W, FERNEREE 9 Less : non-current portion (11,912) (7,117)
Bl B &6 Current portion 696,454 947,385
TERT IR Prepayments
—TERHEER — Prepaid value added tax 224,355 220,509
—TEf FHER 2B - Advance payments to suppliers 82,010 87,530
306,365 308,039
1,002,819 1,255,424
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TR FIE - BT R H b UK
5 (&)

R2018F 128 - AE B AR & 5 A
R#E2.58 7T (2017F : AR¥E7.75(8
TR ESBELFRXSAMBE TREYR
B(REFEEE ) ER -Hb A
ATARMOSETHEBYOBERA
H7 R HERR7 2% E9%:T B A&
R EE N ETHR201951 A B B 2R &
UgEL - }A2018F12A31H ' IR& i =
XEMME ZEREVERESEE
EEY (M:26) -

BABMMEBEMNFE  RE REMEKE
FERAREE REMNKREELZR
NEERZAFEMESE-

BRAVEFABRSNESREE

BRAFEFABENEMEEITRR
TEEmSESRE - RAFEFAR
[E A (ER) —F8] 58 (BT

24

25

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

In December 2018, the Group purchased National Debt
Reverse Repurchase (“NDRR”) products from Shanghai Stock
Exchange with principal amounts totalled RMB250 million
(2017: RMB775 million), including RMB250 million with a term
of 7 days and interest rate from 7.2% to 9%. The Group can
get the principal and fixed interest upon the maturity of the
NDRR products, which has been received by the Group in
January 2019. The NDRR was classified as cash and cash
equivalent as at 31 December 2018 for the purpose of cash
flow statement (Note 26).

Substantially all of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts
approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
represented the investment in money market fund at banks.
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in “other (losses) — net” in the
income statement (Note 7).
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26 REHEHEH HELMETHE 26 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH

1553 AND BANK BALANCES
2018 2017
AR®ET R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RHTEHER Long-term time deposits 550,000 =
& RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 4,626,478 2,782,731
RITRFHB S EAE Total of cash at bank and on hand 5,176,478 2,782,731
RESREXRENHE  RVITEFBER A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and
CHBSEEM2HERAT cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statements is as
follows:
2018 2017
ARET R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITRFERE Cash at bank and on hand 5,176,478 2,782,731
e BE¥EEE S Add: National Debt Reverse Repurchase
products (Note 24) 250,000 775,000
W RAEEEEBBE =M AA Less: Long-term and short-term
RHI 52 B SE BRTF 5k time deposits with original
maturity over three months (3,862,000) (1,200,881)
PR HIER 1T 17 3K Restricted bank deposits (533) (500)
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,563,945 2,356,350
MR2018F12A81H  RE B FRRTT As at 31 December 2018, the effective weighted average
Wi REERINEFEOFERNE RIATE rate on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 4.17%
(20174 1 4.38F ) ° (2017: 4.38%) per annum.
MR2018F12A318 X R B R I1TF XK As at 31 December 2018, the restricted bank deposits
¥R ITF R AR ¥533,0007T (2017 of RMB533,000 (2017: RMB500,000) mainly represented
F: AR¥500,0007T)  EBTHEHA deposits at bank pledged as security for bills of the Group.

SERECERRZHRZEMR-
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LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, total of cash at bank and on hand

BEtAIMT BEEE were denominated in the following currencies:
2018 2017
AR®T T AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—AR¥ - RMB 5,158,651 2,763,538
—X7T -USD 14,968 14,375
—BT - HKD 2,653 3,297
—HAfh - Others 206 1,521
5,176,478 2,782,731
ARBERIWIERAARABEMIE B B RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
HBo B - ARBEIBMBINE RE international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign

R B ONA S R B B R 2 S B
B AR R R AR BIFTARBR

currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated
by the PRC authorities.

27 RERKRHO RER 27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ACCOUNT
EE
Authorised

EERHE (L& BAHTE

Number of Share capital

ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to

FAEL AREFL

HKD'000 RMB’000

R2018FE1A1EE At 1 January 2018 il
2018%F12A31H 31 December 2018 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BRITRAR
Issued and fully paid
RHAEE S BRARE  ROBER &t
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total
Tign  AREFR  AREFT  ARETR
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
H2018E1R1BE At 1 January 2018 til

2018F12A31H 31 December 2018 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663
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202

28 HttFBERREEF 28 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS
BABHR  DVERE EERE EREAN B3
Contribution Fair value Statutory Retained

surplus reserves reserves earnings Total

ARETT  ARETR ARt ARETT  ARETxn

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

R2OITE1 1A 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2017 1,144,299 (25,414) 1,117,880 4,933,683 7,170,448

mE R ERE (F319) Impairment of AFS (Note 19) S 20,419 S = 20,419

FEEMN Profit for the year = = = 878,216 878,216
ELESREE ATERE Fair value losses on AFS (Note 19)

(F15E19) - (3,435) - = (3,435)
BYEETRE Appropriation to statutory reserves - S 130,727 (130,727) =
B¥{T2016F 2R 8 Dividends relating to 2016, paid - - = (119,834) (119,834)
R2017E12B318 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2017 1,144,299 (8,430) 1,248,607 5,561,338 7,945,814
R2017F128318 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2017

(BREEF) as originally presented 1,144,299 (8,430) 1,248,607 5,561,338 7,945,814
SHEREE Change in accounting policy - (33,345 - 33,345 -
R2018F1 F1R 2 EFIARE Restated total equity as at

1 January 2018 1,144,299 (41,775) 1,248,607 5,594,683 7,945,814
FE&RA Profit for the year - - - 1,029,704 1,029,704
BATEFAEZEREAR Fair value losses on FVOC! (Note 19)

ATEER (FIF19) - (3,472 - - (3,472
BREEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 159,192 (159,192) -
BEXM017EZRE Dividends relating to 2017, paid - - - (619,402) (619,402)
R2018% 128310 2 &84 Balance at 31 December 2018 1,144,299 (45,247) 1,407,799 5,845,793 8,352,644
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28 HttEEREAERR (&)

(a)

(c)

BABER

ARARNBABRERIEART]
RO ETMZAARBEREITEA
RESR EHEETZEAMED
2B RAREEL DR &85
FER

RRASHEEEEER  ZFH
ABERA] 7R T AR A A e
BA-

NP ERHE

AEEATEEERERATE
SFK A 2 T AT A
ATEED -

EERE

BA R A R B SR R B R A
AR EHESRE AR D
& AT {E & B #90K TE B 7% 5% P ER
W s AFR (ERE T UEF
EHRERR) FRE—EMNZE
EFE - FTBRERBIIBEE R
HY 1 48 5%

ERIEBECENANELEF
MR PN B AR - TS
FRERBE S M D IRE - BREE
AR Z10%BIEEERB A
Be BEAEBEHLBETIORN
RNEZFEMEARE0% A LE © BEHh
HERARAEZEAESTENIFR
JE NSRRI BR R R m A AR T
BHMREAFBREZARKAE
T ERTINEBREDETMAK
UHHBEHBLAR EEEEESE
SEBRE T K EREE R B R
i M B ACETE R o

AEBBRABERERRBHA
A EE BARRNEEL LN
BINRRER -

28 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

#— ¥ P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Fair value reserves

Fair value reserves of the Group comprise of the
changes in fair value of FVOCI and AFS.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.
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29 ENEZERN 29 TRADE PAYABLES
2018 2017
AR®T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERTE SRR Trade payables
—%=hH — 1o third parties 1,193,954 1,127,978
— A5 (MEE34(b)) - to related parties (Note 34(b)) 360,265 268,022
1,554,219 1,396,000
HEBETAEE ZEAHET /30 The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
REIOK - ERE FIRN 2 IRk » # 10 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as
K follows:
2018 2017
AR®BT R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERE SR Trade payables
—30KR AR — Within 30 days 1,242,747 1,032,357
—31E290K —31-90 days 238,338 293,730
—91E180K - 91-180 days 20,138 35,636
—181E365K — 181 to 365 days 21,640 22,133
——FLAE — Over 1 year 31,356 12,144
1,554,219 1,396,000
FIERENEZERFTEIUARBE - All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
EEHERERNEEA A TEMR amounts approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet
o dates.
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30 HhENRERETER 30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2018 2017
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(se&E5)
(Restated)
TEsE R EE A Accruals for promotion and
fEstEH advertising expenses 1,336,645 1,206,635
FERTE K@ Salary and welfare payables 305,770 477,455
BEPINHEE Deposits from customers 506,604 397,598
RSB E R Payables for purchase of equipment 294,613 236,124
HE A RIERETER Other payables and accruals 547,176 590,027
3,090,808 2,907,839
B IEBNHEREE Less: non-current portion (237,655) (251,319)
BVHA &R o> Current portion 2,753,153 2,656,520
BRIMEMEMNRERESEAY Substantially all of the other payables and accruals are
DARBHE - BEEEMAERELNES dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximate their
BHZAFEHEE- fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2@6
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31 BE 31 BORROWINGS

2018 2017
ARET T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEBPHA Non-current
FERT R - SRR Notes payable, unsecured 500,000 500,000
R RIRBIER S Less: current portion of notes payable (500,000) —
- 500,000

B H#A Current

MERTTEE  ®IKFE Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 1,487,726 834,768
o ERRERNEE 5 Add: current portion of notes payable 500,000 =
1,987,726 834,768
BEERT Total borrowings 1,987,726 1,334,768

AEEENEBEHASBEARKESET
(2017F : A\R¥BIETT) 23.9E E &
B FE ARG WAFR2019F8 728
H &

The Group’s notes payables comprised 3.9% notes with
principal value of RMB500 million (2017: RMB500 million) and
five years term expiring 28 August 2019.

REBEEZERBPNT: The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:

2018 2017

ARMET T AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FLAA Less than 1 year 1,987,726 834,768
—EWF Between 1 and 2 years - 500,000
BEEE Total borrowings 1,987,726 1,334,768

BEZERERANEHEAZATE
VSRS values as at the balance sheet dates.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair

206 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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B8 (&) 31 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
AEEEEZREERZ TIWEKE: The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in the following currencies:
2018 2017
AR®F T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHE RVB 1,974,000 1,321,700
ETT UsD 13,726 13,068
1,987,726 1,334,768
REFHEERB 2 INEFHIERNEHT) The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
N balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
2018 2017
AR®T R ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITEE  EEE Bank borrowings, unsecured
—AR% - RMB 3.92% 3.99%
—%7T -UsD 2.46% 1.47%
FET R IE Notes payable
—AR% - RMB 3.90% 3.65%
AEEEA T ARRRZRITEERE The Group have the following undrawn bank borrowing
g : facilities:
2018 2017
AR¥T R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBAE: At floating rate:
——FAEH — Expiring within one year 3,662,795 5,201,627
——F L EFH — Expiring beyond one year 466,698 522,738
4,129,493 5,724,365

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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B P15 % Al & A Profit before income tax
PTYSEMEL 2 A Adjustments for:
—AEREAR Z G — Share of profit of
"B R (M3E18) investments accounted for
using equity method (Note 18)
— T b AR (PiTEE14) — Amortisation of land use rights
(Note 14)
—ME -HEK — Depreciation of property, plant and
HREITE (MisE15) equipment (Note 15)
—REMEFRE (K:E16) — Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 16)
—mEEEH (MF17) - Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17)
—HEME HEREED — Losses on disposal of property,
EiE (M) plant and equipment (Note 7)
—HELERE T/ — (Gains)/losses on disposal of
[E518 (PM5E7) land use rights (Note 7)
— Al SR EEE — Provision for impairment of
(PEE7) AFS (Note 7)
—FEMBRZ]EIRFE L — Provision/(reversal) of inventories to
Bt (#E) (FisE22) net realisable value (Note 22)
—EBWE S ERFUBRERE 2 — (Reversal)/provision for impairment of
(BEEE) BE trade receivables (Note 23)
(M3E23)
— TR A RERE — Provision for impairment of
land use rights
—ME WEKREHZ — Provision for impairment of
BB S property, plant and equipment
—HMEF X ( Bi5E10) — Interest expenses (Note 10)
—BH (FR) EiE — Foreign exchange (gains)/losses
( Mﬁm) (Note 10)
—TESRTAAFENSF — Fair value gains on derivative
(MFEE7) financial instruments (Note 7)
EEEEY: Changes in working capital:
—EURE BRI — Decrease/(increase) in
($£h0) trade receivables
—ENFIE Ee Kk - Increase in prepayments,
H b B U R IE L N deposits and other receivables
— H fth JEBD HA pE UK ROA - (Increase)/decrease in other
(& hn) R non-current receivables
-5 (i“ n )/ DA — (Increase)/decrease in inventories
—ENE FRIE 0 - Increase in trade payables
ﬁ{ﬂlﬂfﬁ /T)\IE& - Increase in other payables
FEET B RN and accruals
—GaHaEE jJD/ el > — Increase/(decrease) in
contract liabilities
— H fth IE BN HA FE 5 IR R 2 — Decrease in other

non-current payables

BEELEZHRS Cash generated from operations

Annual Report 2018 F#§

2018
AR®T T
RMB’000

1,539,774

(84,374)
54,014
1,285,837
19,941
8,394
16,965
(1,050)

9,260

(1,702)
19,329

27,787
46,142

(344)

2,939,973

34,592
(63,220)
(4,795)
(308,905)
158,219
38,474
329,777

(13,664)

3,110,451

2017
ARBTT
RMB’000
(#eE5)
(Restated)

1,276,824

(28,503)
57,206
1,314,559
18,592
11,148
12,414
16,174
20,419

(2,825)

6,604

45,917
5,857
(4,663)

2,749,723

(26,621)
(27,486)
4,163
57,979
257,846
483,772
(205,146)

(179,560)

3,114,670
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32 BEELE2HE (H&) 32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

RESRERT HEVE BE IR
whtEREZMESFARE:

In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment and land use rights comprise:

2018 2017
ARBTR ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRENFE (M sE14MFIFE15)  Net book amount (Note 14 and Note 15) 325,399 83,329
HEME WERZE Losses on disposal of property,
LA Kz -t {58 PR #E Ay plant and equipment and
518 (k7)) land use rights (Note 7) (15,915) (28,588)
H 8 R IE 2 3 0 Increase in other receivables (238,096) (5,000)
HEME WERE&ER Proceeds from disposal of property,
T R P8 5B plant and equipment and
land use rights 71,388 49,741

AEBHINERFENS 2 HAREES

This section sets out an analysis of the movements in net

DT e debt for each of periods presented.
B8 BE
(E7E) (&) st
Borrowings Borrowings
(Non-Current) (Current) Total
ARBEFT ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HZ20165F12A31H As of 31 December 2016 500,000 2,100,169 2,600,169
Reng Cash flows
METHHRERA Inflow from financing activities - 11,062,327 11,062,327
MEEHHRE R Outflow from financing activities - (12,326,829) (12,326,829)
BRI Currency translations - (899) (899)
B Z2017F12A31H As of 31 December 2017 500,000 834,768 1,334,768
Reng Cash flows
METHRETEA Inflow from financing activities - 17,013,970 17,013,970
MEGHHRE AL Outflow from financing activities - (16,361,483) (16,361,483)
FEREEE) Non-cash movements (500,000) 500,000 -
Bk Currency translations - 471 471
B £2018512A31H As of 31 December 2018 - 1,987,726 1,987,726

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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33 A
(@) BAREIE

AEBEERYE  BERRENE

33 COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

The Group’s capital commitments in respect of

AAEERT : property, plant and equipment are as follows:
2018 2017
AR¥T T AREBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRIAMER B Contracted but not provided for 591,645 400,084

(b) HEHEEHEE
EEBEBERMBA -
AEERE AT B E &

HABF ETAREHNEEEE
BT AEBZARKRNREES

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group is the lessee:

The Group leases buildings under non-cancellable lease
agreements. The Group’s future aggregate minimum
lease payments under these non-cancellable operating

NR@BAT leases are as follows:
2018 2017
ARMT T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEBBm—F Not later than 1 year 28,528 22,698

il —F Later than 1 year and

BETNHARF not later than 5 years 37,970 50,487
HBAF Later than 5 years 52 84,164
66,550 157,349
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33 i (&)

(b)

KEMERE (&)
FEEEBLHEA -

AEEBETTHEE LR
BETHBRRENE BERR
8- 2SR BAETRNE B RER
1 ETTRENEEBERET
74 95 8 o 3k M 9 B 1 TR 0 4
mT -

33 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
The Group is the lessor:

The Group leases out investment properties, plant
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under these non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

2018 2017

ARETR ARBET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

THB—F Not later than 1 year 35,996 61,952
il —F Later than 1 year and

BB AF not later than 5 years 107,761 121,044

BilAF Later than 5 years 25,056 31,872

168,813 214,868

% — P EFEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 BHMARZ 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AEE 2 BRRERRBRE—EERD
BERAR([R—0%])  DREER
HFRPGMBBR AR LT ZRE - ANRF]
EERRB—EZHBARRAEE
ZEEEERMERARBIERBT

(a) HEBLETHRS:

ER S EITHNRZMT

The ultimate holding company of the Group is £ — 2 {H
AR~ 7A] (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation*) (‘UPE”), a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
The directors of the Company are of the view that the
subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures and associates of the
Group are regarded as related parties.

(a) Transactions with related parties:

The following transactions are carried out with related

parties:
2018 2017
s ARE TR AR®EF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI R K an t5 & - Sales of raw materials and ()
finished goods:
G—EZHEBERAR Subsidiaries of UPE 79,426 85,322
AEBZEEDLER Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 4,092 198,103
83,518 283,425
TRATHLR B p R - Purchase of raw materials and ()
finished goods:
b UPE 14,632 13,178
H—EZHBRAA Subsidiaries of UPE 3,532,781 3,473,843
AEBEZEELER Joint ventures and associates of
kRN the Group 650,751 683,560
4,198,164 4,170,581
VR - Logistics service expense: ()
B—rEIHEBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 19,462 15,584

2/] 2 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 BABAXRE (&) 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
() EEEBLETHRE: (&) (@) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)
2018 2017
M aE ARET T ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EAIREA - Consuiltation service income: 0]
;1% UPE 324 -
m—rEIZHME QR Subsidiaries of UPE 50,942 43,113
REBrEERER Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 7,394 9,276
58,660 52,389
HEWA - Rental income: (i)
H—EZWERF Subsidiaries of UPE 58,309 61,720
RrEEZEEPER Joint ventures and associates of
RN the Group 1,647 2,291
59,956 64,011
* RXEGEBTBHAABERER . The English name represents the best effort by the
NP HBRESD - management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.
P 7E Notes:
(i) FiSHE REEK S REME () The above sales and purchases of finished goods and
R BEXYRIRS IR raw materials, purchases, receipt of logistics service
PR 755 T 48 ¥ 4B BE 15 3 2 I e and provision of consultation service are carried
i7e out in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements.
iy HMeEHEMEZIWA WRE (i)  Rental income represents income from lease of
RTHI 5 FTET S 1 ade 2 G FR U ER o properties and is charged in accordance with the terms

of agreements made between the parties.

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2»] 8
Annual Report 2018 £ #§



e B R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 BEAXRS (& 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)
(b) EHEEES4EER: (b)

Balances with related parties:

MR2018F12A31H AEBHEE
RAEt A TN E K&

The Group has the following significant balances with its
related parties as at 31 December 2018:

2018 2017
AR®T T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE Y A B 75 85 Balances due from related parties:
TEW B Z R Trade receivables
(Ktaz23) : (Note 23):
H—rEZHBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 6,183 3,186
TET 3 E K A Prepayments and other receivables
JEY S IE (Hiat24) (Note 24):
H—rEIHEBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 49,919 61,900
AEBZEEDER Joint ventures and associates of
AN the Group 2,153 11,608
52,072 73,508
58,255 76,693
JIE 1~ A B 77 B 58 - Balances due to related parties:
FETE Z B Trade payables
(H1it29) - (Note 29):
G—EZHBAA Subsidiaries of UPE 334,058 247,596
AEFZEELER Joint ventures and associates of
/NG| the Group 26,207 20,426
360,265 268,022

& U
s
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34 BHMAEXS (&)

()

(a)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

FEEEAEHM: (c) Key management compensation:
2018 2017
ARBT T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fe LA REMEF]  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 18,409 12,463
35 APREEEERKMHEES 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
AR EEBER (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2018 2017
ARBT T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—KMBARZIEE Investment in a subsidiary 7,884,385 7,806,256
R—KEERNR) 2R Interest in an associated company 1,189 1,436
AL ECHEE Available-for-sale financial assets - 15,359
BRAFERA Financial assets at fair value through
Hai2ERA K other comprehensive income
TREE 6,955
Y% WE KR Property, plant and equipment 2
7,892,531 7,823,057
RBEE Current assets
AR RIE R Prepayments and other receivables
Hoh fE W 5RIB 578 871
N EENGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 402,454 303,764
RehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 215,078 39,191
618,110 343,826
BEEHRE Total assets 8,510,641 8,166,883
% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/1 6
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35 XAEEEEBEREFHESST 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

(#&) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(@ EATREEAEER (&) (a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
2018 2017
AREF ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EQUITY
fi& A Share capital 39,764 39,764
f& 17 % B AR Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
HAabfE Other reserves 1,357,187 1,381,078
REB BT Retained earnings 1,761,277 1,391,044
mrEs Total equity 7,988,127 7,641,785
a8& LIABILITIES
kFBERE Non-current liabilities
BE Borrowings - 500,000
RBEE Current liabilities
Hofh pE T 5RIE & Other payables and accruals
EETE A 8,788 12,030
BEE Borrowings 513,726 13,068
522,514 25,098
HweE Total liabilities 522,514 525,098
EEREERE Total equity and liabilities 8,510,641 8,166,883

KRNBEERBBEREN2019F3H22
AEESeitf THUTESAERE

Fo behalf.
BEX Bl
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HNITEFE HITEF
Executive Director Executive Director
2/] 6 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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35 XRREEEEREGHE®ST 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
(#8) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) B REE (b) Reserve movements of the Company
BABH  DTERE BRER CH
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R2017%18182  Balance at 1 January 2017

33 1,381,078 (16,984) 467,988 1,832,082
FERF Profit for the year = = 1,042,890 1,042,890
At HESREE 2 Fair value losses on AFS

~rFEEE - (3,435) - (3,435)
AHLEZRE Impairment of AFS = 20,419 = 20,419
B % {20164 2 #% 8 Dividends relating to 2016, paid - - (119,834) (119,834)

A2017%128318 2 Balance at 31 December 2017
oS 1,381,078 - 1,391,044 2,772,122

20174128318 2 Balance at 31 December 2017

Z8 (BE%EE5)  as originally presented 1,381,078 - 1,391,044 2,772,122
ERE Change in accounting policy - (20,419) 20,419 -

R20185181H2  Restated total equity as at

ERIfY 1 January 2018 1,381,078 (20,419) 1,411,463 2,772,122
FERF Profit for the year - - 969,216 969,216
BAFERA Fair value losses on FVOCI

Hinz2EEA

ZATEER - (3,472) - (3,472)
B 20179 228 Dividends relating to 2017, paid - - (619,402) (619,402)
R2018F12831H 2 Balance at 31 December 2018

&t 1,381,078 (23,891) 1,761,277 3,118,464

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/1 7
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36 EEEANRES 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
() EBEREETHRAEZHME (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

BEERERTTHRABZHMEH The remuneration of every director and the chief
AT executive is set out below:

BEEf3 we ¢ BfERA EEREH @it

Discretionary Housing
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance Total

ARBTRT ARETR AR®ETR ARBTR ARET:x
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

2018% 2018
HIES Executive directors
BELRE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (%5 %) 66 445 3,927 - 4,438
FmELE Mr. Liu Xinhua ( 2137%)
(GEL) (Notefi) 48 1,344 1,972 240 3,604
FHTES Non-executive directors
BRtiid Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (Bk%%4) 4 - - - 4
fREIE S A& Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (R EI/E)
(PR EEG)) (Notefii) 48 - - - 48
BUFNTES Independent non-executive
directors
BEELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (R E27%) 258 - - - 258
BLERE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
(BC#) 258 - - - 258
KREEXE Mr. Lo Peter (K% £) 258 - - - 258
REREE Mr. Chen Johnny (FR& %) 247 - - - 247
1,224 1,789 5,899 240 9,152

2/] 8 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 ESwEAKLER (&) 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
@ EEREaTHRAEZHE (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(#&) (Continued)
BENE e 5 WiFa FEZE @t
Discretionary Housing
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance Total

ARBTL  ARBTT ARBETR AREBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20178 2017
HESR Executive directors
EREEE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (% %) 163 314 4,030 = 4,507
BmELE Mr. Liu Xinhua ( 2I372)
(P3E() (Note(i) 35 672 2,613 240 3,560
BREELE Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (B EIE)
(P zE) (Note(i) 20 368 - - 388
FRITES Non-executive directors
BRAE Mr. Su Teung-Ming (B§£:8) 39 - - - 39
REEEE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (&4 )
(P& Giy) (Notefii)) 17 - - - 17
BREELE Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (B EIE)
(P aE() (Note(i) 23 299 - 72 394
BUFRTES Independent non-executive
directors
REEEE Mr. Chen Sun-Te ([RE&) 246 - - - 246
BLELE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
(BfE) 246 - - - 246
KEELE Mr. Lo Peter (K5 £) 246 - - - 246
REREE Mr. Chen Johnny (R 7Z) 235 - - - 235
1,270 1,653 6,643 312 9,878
P 7E - Note:
iy  H2017F3R25HEEZ - 0] Appointed on 25 March 2017.
(iy HR2017F7A1BHNTESH (i) Re-designated from an executive director as a non-
EIEBMITES - executive director on 1 July 2017.
(i)  MR2017F5H19H R (i)  Retired on 19 May 2017.

% — > #¥ R EE R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/] 9
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36 EEEMNRER (&)

(@)

220

EERESTHRAEZHME

(%)

RELZ£20184F K2017412 H31
HIEFE BERAAREEHENK
RERETAMSHLH  AAFA
M EREAESEINMEER
IR ANE B 5 R N BE B 2 SR BX
ERBERFHE -

AABAERAKE 2 XHR L
ARAREFEFNETHERERNES
(THRAEEXIMEE)  ARAF
JE #5 R B o AN 4R 2 EAA B R AD
REBCERR G LHRAK -

RAFEE  HEEEC WIREKK
EAE ()R K42 ) SR B AR A

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
no arrangement was in place under which a director
of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the
Company to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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37 SUBSIDIARIES

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

EMALER
NRAB HHRAH ERTRBERE FrishE TEEYKEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2018 2017
EEEE Directly owned
G—TMERERAR Re#s 910,080,000 7 100% 100%  REER/HEES
200646 A29H
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD910,080,000 Investment holding/
29 June 2006 Cayman Islands
BEES Indirectly owned
G—0% (PE)REBRAR HE g 1,090,670,000% 7T 100% 100%  REER/FH
1998437108
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD1,090,670,000 Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.") 10 March 1998
MEF-CERMEBR AR RESERE 37,500,000% 70 100% 100%  AEREEHRE R@
199241130 R,/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) ~ Urumaj, PRC. USD37,500,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 13 January 1992 beverages, foods and
instant noodles/PRC
REG—rERRERAA LB 65,000,0005 70 100% 100%  HERHEEFHR
199344 7148 F M,/ e
(Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 April 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BIS—%RmBRAT REIE I 96,000,000 7L 100% 100%  FEREESRHK
1993%5A14H R,/ HE
(Kunshan President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 May 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RER—C¥RmBRAA PRI E 59,600,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEEFHR
1993F7A7R F M,/ e
(Wuhan President Enterprises Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 7 July 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BHR—EERAF Y- 75,000,000 70 100% 100%  HEREEHRHK
1994412 A5H R,/ HE
(Guangzhou President Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of

Enterprises Corp.”)

5 December 1994
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER
ARER HHRAH ERITRAERE Pl TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2018 2017
BER—CEERAR B 39,900,000% 7T 100% 100%  4EREERHK
199546 A15H FRE/
(Shenyang President Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 15 June 1995 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BRG—LEBRAA RE AL 60,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBESRERK
199842 A23H FEME/
(Hefei President Enterprises Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 23 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RRER—CEERAA REREE 29,200,000% 7 100% 100%  HEREERHK
199842 A26H FRE/
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD29,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 26 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RS- RBERAF HEE R 52,900,000% 70 100% 100%  EEREESRE/HE
200142 A208
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD52,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.") 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
BER—EERAR HEEE 44,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEREERHR
200145188 FRE/
(Nanchang President Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 18 May 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BNF—CEERAR REAE M 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AEREEHRHK
200147198 HiEE,/ HE
(Fuzhou President Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 19 July 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
MG —rEERAA HR 37,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEREERHR
200246 A258 iV
(Zhengzhou President Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 25 June 2002 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G- (LB EEERAR HE g 8,600,000% 7T 100% 100% SR FREERRRES/
20056104178 hE
(President (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages,
Trading Co., Ltd.”) 17 October 2005 instant noodles and

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 B ~TF (&) 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMRIER
NRAB HEK B ERTRBERE P e TEEY/BEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2018 2017
BEBEERHERAF g 1,000,000 & ¥ 100% 100% ANERER/ &
20065124280
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
ERG—CERMEBRAR R E B3 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EFEREERHK
200711 A8H HRE/HE
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BEERBRAA B 1,761,920% 7T 100% 100%  BREBER/ B
200856450
(Champ Green Capital Hong Kong USD1,761,920 Investment holding/
Co., Limited.) 5 June 2008 Hong Kong
ESG—BREKERAA REEE 4,150,000% 7T 100% 100%  AERBEEHH/HE
200942 A20H
(Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
G-cEFBERERAF EiE 4,963,255,600% 7T 100% 100%  REERKRES
200944 A30H
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD4,963,255,600 Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
SEXERFA(LE) FE L 150,000 7T 100% 100% ERAS
BRAF 2009%5H128
(Champ Green (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.") 12 May 2009
RO F—CEERRA RERD 30,000,000% & 100% 100%  HEREERHK
201059718 F M,/ e
(Changsha President Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
A —TERE R Bk AR #1,000,0007T 100% 100%  BHRERB/TE
BRRA 20105 8A24H
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Noodle Restaurant Dining 24 August 2010

Culture Limited Company)
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37 fEBAR (&)

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER
ARER HHRAH ERITRAERE Pl TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2018 2017
BIG—CEERAA HRERT 25,000,000 70 100% 100%  4EREERHK
2010104 28H FRE/
(Zhanjiang President Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 28 October 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
MER—CEERR RE RS 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBESRERK
2010411 168 ks VAl
(Nanning President Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 16 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RER—LEEBRAT RERE 20,000,000% 7 100% 100%  AEREESRH/TE
2010612428
(Changchun President Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 2 December 2010 beverages/PRC
Mrgsi— AR B 7 A 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AHRERIEHE
20106124158
(Akesu President Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
EMG—EBRAT REIZEM 30,000,000% T 100% 100% EERBESEK
201141A288 HEE,/ HE
(Taizhou President Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 28 January 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ERG—CEERAA REEE 33,600,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERRMRIAEERLE
2011425168 REE/HH
(Chongqing President Chongaing, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
products/PRC
HRHE-CEERD RE AR 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBESEK
2011428248 HEE,/ HE
(Balyin President Enterprises Baiyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 24 February 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
TEE-EBRREXARAR  RELE AR #60,000,0007 100% 100%  HEER/F
200348A1H
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC

Century Co., Ltd. *)
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

e RS AR YA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMALER
ARER HH%RAH ERTRBERE P e TEEY/BEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2018 2017
HER—%EREN HE g AR #20,000,0007 100% 100%  BAHRH
BARAA 2003%7A18H
(Uni-President Shanghai Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
Management Consulting 18 July 2003
Co., Ltd.")
BEG—CERRATF FEEE 22,000,000% T 100% 100% EEREERR /HE
201143 H8H
(Hainan President Chengmai, PRC. USD22,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC
ARER—EBRAA REARE 35,000,000 70 100% 100%  HEREERHK
2010411 A15R F M,/ e
(Shijiazhuang President Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 15 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BEEG—EERAA HEER 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  FEREERHK
2011445180 HRE/ HE
(Jinan President Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 18 April 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EGH—CEERRA HEER 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  HEREERHK
201147 A6H F M,/ e
(Guiyang President Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 6 July 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RS- CERRKBERAR REER 4,800,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEEZK/HE
201147 H6H
(Wuxue President Enterprises Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
Mineral Water Co. Ltd.") 6 July 2011 water/PRC
LEGERRESBERAT L Lc i} 950,000% 70 100% 100%  EeERRRIAXERMLE
201146F28H ki
(President (Shanghai) Private Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Label Marketing & 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
Trading Co., Ltd.”) PRC
MME—rEBRAF R 85,000,000% 7L 100% 100%  HEREESRHK
201146A21H R,/ HE
(Hangzhou President Hangzhou, PRC. USD85,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of

Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

21 June 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER
ARER HHRAH ERITRMRRA Pl TEERKEY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2018 2017
BNG—EERAF FE RN 33,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  EERBEHRE/F
201169A2H
(Xuzhou President Xuzhou, PRC. USD33,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
S-BE(RWERAR REE 10,000,000% 7T 100% 100% BEEERAGHE/HE
201243A28H
(President (Kunshan) Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Trading Co., Ltd.”) 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
ARG —rEERAF A 30,000,000% T 100% 100%  EEREESRE/HE
201243A9A
(Henan President Henan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
BRE—CEBRRKERDA REZR 1,700,000% 7 100% 100%  EARRMRIAEEREE
2012F5A308 /e
(Wuyuan President Enterprises Wuyuan, PRC. USD1,700,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.") 30 May 2012 food and dairy products/
PRC
RAES—CEERAA R 50,000,0003 7T 100% 100%  AEREEHRHK
201247R68 FHEME/
(Shaanxi President Shaanxi, PRC. USD50,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 6 July 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IES—CEERATF HEER 30,000,000% T 100% 100%  4EREERHR
2012411 A58 FRE/
(Jiangsu President Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 5 November 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RAWLK—E (FH)BERK REEM AR #180,000,0007 100% 100%  EEREFK/HE
BRAA 20135 3A158
(Changbaishan Mountain Jilin, PRC. RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
President Enterprises (Jilin) 15 March 2013 water/PRC
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.*)
G-rE(RILEXRE HREELL A K#60,000,0007T 100% 100%  BiE/TE
BRAA 201354 A9R
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Kunshan, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
Real Estate Development 9 April 2013

Co., Ltd.)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALER
NRAB HH%RAH ERTRBERE P e TEEY/BEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2018 2017
EER-CEERAT R 16,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AEREEHRH/FEH
201354 A22H
(Ningxia President Yinchuan, PRC. USD16,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
AEEF—ERARAA R A 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EFEREERHK
2013F559R HRE/HE
(Uni-President Enterprises Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.") 9 May 2013 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
WEG—CEERAR REER 30,000,000 7. 100% 100%  EERBEERE/HE
2013F9A5H
(Shanxi President Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
EER—REARAF HE LS 40,000,000% 7T 100% 100% ERERRIE/F
2001%10A 148
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd*) 14 QOctober 2001 food products/PRC
WEES-rEEMELEE T B 30,000,000% 70 100% 100%  EEREEHH/HE
BRRA 2013511 A1A
(Uni-President Enterprise (Hutubi) Hutubi, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Tomato Products Technology 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.*
PRt ERER R HE G 80,000,000% 7 100% 100%  HEREERHK
ERAR 2014557150 F M,/ e
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD80,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shanghai) Drink&Food 15 May 2014 beverages and instant
Co., Ltd.%) noodles/PRC
G—HE (R ERAF RE AR #96,000,0007 100% 100% BEEEARHE/HE
200449A234
(Uni-President Trading Hubei, PRC. RMB96,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Hubei) Co., Ltd.") 23 September 2004 food products/PRC
REG—ERRATF PEXE 12,000,000 7T 100% 100% EEREERE /TEH
2014%8H 158
(Uni-President Enterprises Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Tiandin) Co., Ltd") 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC
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37 BT (&) 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMAIER,
ARER WHRAH EROTRARRE FisRE TEEY /LY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2018 2017
HEG—CEERAT MBS 6,000,000% 7T 100% 100% HERBERH/HE
2015638108
(Uni-President Enterprises Hunan, PRC. USD6,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hunan) Co., Ltd") 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC
BEGFRHIE HEESR AR 100,000,007 100% 100%  AEREEHREH
BRAA 200966 A9R
(Yantai Tongli Beverage Yantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Industries Co., Ltd*) 9 June 2009 beverages/PRC
F-rEELRRY REELL 1,200,000% 7 100% 100%  4ERFEEAKE/FE
BRAA 1995124278

(President Enterprises

Kunshan, PRC.
27 December 1995

USD1,200,000

Manufacturing and sale of
seasoning/PRC

(Kunshan) Food Products
Technology Co., Ltd.")

FRBEMNTE 8 EBREBNHERQF
ERERETER NASEHSEMAK
VZ—FEMBRARNEHRRZARE

All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong
are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in the
Cayman Islands is an exempted company with limited liability.

228

(/NI
* HEYEZBIARRERBRZNBPI XL * The English name represents the best effort by management of
BEIESL - the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(—KRHASEEEMALNERAR)

(Stock Code B4Rk 220)
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